CITY OF

AGENDA
RIO RIO DELL CITY COUNCIL
STUDY SESSION — 6:00 P.M.
DeLL REGULAR MEETING — 6:30 P.M.
—_— TUESDAY, JANUARY 7, 2014
CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS

675 WILDWOOD AVENUE, RIO DELL

WELCOME . . . By your presence in the City Council Chambers, you are participating in the process of
representative government. Copies of this agenda, staff reports and other material available to the City
Council are available at the City Clerk’s office in City Hall, 675 Wildwood Avenue. Your City
Government welcomes your interest and hopes you will attend and participate in Rio Dell City Council
meetings often.

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need special assistance to participate in
this meeting, please contact the Offfice of the City Clerk at (707) 764-3532. Notification 48 hours prior
to the meeting will enable the City to make reasonable arrangements to assure accessibility to this
meeting.

THE TYPE OF COUNCIL BUSINESS IS IDENTIFIED IMMEDIATELY AFTER EACH
TITLE IN BOLD CAPITAL LETTERS

A. CALL TO ORDER
B. ROLL CALL
C. SPECIAL STUDY SESSION - 6:00 - 6:30 p.m.

1) 2014/0107.01 - Finance Director Job Classification, Salary and Recruitment 1

D. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
E. CEREMONIAL MATTERS

F. PUBLIC PRESENTATIONS

This time is for persons who wish to address the Council on any matter not on this agenda and over
which the Council has jurisdiction. As such, a dialogue with the Council or staff is not intended. Items
requiring Council action not listed on this agenda may be placed on the next regular agenda for
consideration if the Council directs, unless a finding is made by at least 2/3rds of the Councilmembers
present that the item came up after the agenda was posted and is of an urgency nature requiring
immediate action. Please limit comments to a maximum of 3 minutes.

G. CONSENT CALENDAR



The Consent Calendar adopting the printed recommended Council action will be enacted with one vote.
The Mayor will first ask the staff, the public, and the Council members if there is anyone who wishes to
address any matter on the Consent Calendar. The matters removed from the Consent Calendar will be
considered individually in the next section, “SPECIAL CALL ITEMS".

1) 2014/0107.02 - Approve Minutes of the December 17, 2013 Regular Meeting

(ACTION) A
2) 2014/0107.03 - Approve Finance Director Job Classification, Salary Schedule and

Recruitment (ACTION) 18
3) 2014/0107.04 - Arrangement with departed Finance Director Stephanie Beauchaine

for Interim Services (RECEIVE & FILE) 21
4) 2014/0107.05 - City Manager Salary for Recruitment (RECEIVE & FILE) 26
5) 2014/0107.06 - Audit Results on Transportation Fund for year ended June 30, 2012

and June 30, 2013 (RECEIVE & FILE) 28
6) 2014/0107.07 - Continue discussion of Bio Solids Giveaway Program to the

January 21, 2014 regular meeting (ACTION) 37
7) 2014/0107.08 - Status Report on Wastewater Rate Study (RECEIVE & FILE) 43

8) 2014/0107.09 - Approve Professional Services Agreement with Avery Associates
for City Manager Recruitment for a total cost not to exceed $24,400
(ACTION) 47

9) 2014/0107.10 - Approve Release of Retention in the amount of $6,546.15 to SJL
Construction for the Davis St./ Wildwood Ave. Safe Routes to
Schools Project (ACTION) 82
10) 2014/0107.11 - Approve re-appointment of Alice Millington and Gary Chapman
to the Rio Dell Planning Commission for three (3) year terms
ending December 31, 2016 (ACTION) 85
H. SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS
I. SPECIAL CALL ITEMS/COMMUNITY AFFAIRS
1) “SPECIAL CALL ITEMS” from Consent Calendar
2) 2014/0107.12 - Adopt Guidelines for Wildwood Ave. Sculpture Program and
Continue appointment of members to the Wildwood Avenue

Sculpture Committee to the January 21, 2014 meeting (ACTION) 9

3) 2014/0107.13 - Declare (2) Public Works Trucks Surplus and Approve Purchase of
(1) Used 2002 % Ton GMC Diesel Pickup (ACTION) 104



J. ORDINANCES/SPECIAL RESOLUTIONS/PUBLIC HEARINGS

1) 2014/0107.14 - Conduct Second Reading (by title only) and adopt Ordinance No.
314-2014 Establishing Purchasing Procedures, Section 3.30.110 and
Amending Section 3.30.100 of the of the Rio Dell Municipal Code
(ACTION) 111

2) 2014/0107.15 - Conduct Second Reading (by title only) and adopt Ordinance No.
315-2014 Amending Building Codes and Appendices, Section 15.05.020
of the Rio Dell Municipal Code (ACTION) 115

3) 2014/0107.16 - Introduce and Conduct First Reading (by title only) of Ordinance
No. 308-2014 Establishing Environmentally Sensitive Habitat Area
(ESHA) Regulations, Section 17.30.080 of the Rio Dell Municipal Code
(ACTION) 120

K. REPORTS/STAFF COMMUNICATIONS

City Manager

Chief of Police

Finance Director

Community Development Director

=R

L. COUNCIL REPORTS/COMMUNICATIONS

M. ANNOUNCEMENT OF ITEMS TO BE DISCUSSED IN CLOSED SESSION AS
FOLLOWS: No Closed Session Items Scheduled

N. ADJOURNMENT

The next regular meeting will be on January 21, 2014
at 6:30 p.m. in City Hall Council Chambers



CiTY OF

Rio Dell City hall m

675 Wildwood Avenue D‘ I I :
Rio Dell, CA 95562 —
(707) 764-3532 CALIFORNA
riodellcity.com

January 7, 2014

TO: Horable Mayor and City Council Members

FROM: Jim\@#retch, City Manager

SUBJECT: STUDY SESSION--Finance Director Job Classification, Salary and Recruitment

IT IS RECOMMENDED THAT THE CITY COUNCIL CONSIDER AND TAKE ACTION ON
THIS MATTER AS A REGULAR AGENDA ITEM ON 1-7-14:

1. Approve amending the job description for the Finance Director to include the
responsibility for the City’s risk management program, special studies as required and
special project administration as assigned by the City Manager, and to act as City
Manager in his/her absence as assigned, and

2. Adjust the salary schedule (steps A thru C) for the Finance Director by 11.76%, to be
$75,408, $77,670 and $80,000 respectively, pending the outcome of the total
compensation study being prepared by Cooperative Personnel Services and action by the
City Council.

BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION

Finance Director Job Description

As the Council is aware, the City’s Finance Director of 8 years left her position with the City on
December 20, 2013 to take a similar position with the City of Millbrae in San Mateo County. In
anticipation of her separation, the City Manager (CM) carefully reviewed the present job
description to determine whether the position had evolved over time and needed to be amended,
it had. At the same time the City Manager evaluated the benefit to the organization of upgrading
the position to assume a greater role for overall city administration , something like a Deputy
City Manager or Finance Director/Deputy City Manager. And, after much thought neither
approach is recommended to the Council. There is perhaps a better approach to modify the
position classification to fit the needs of the organization at a lesser cost.

What is recommended to the Council is an amendment of the Finance Director’s job description
to include the following duties:

1. Risk Management functions, including representing the City on the Joint Powers
Authority (JPA) Board of Directors.




2. Undertake special studies on a wide range of management/administrative topics as
assigned by the CM.

3. Administer/management special projects, including capital projects, as assigned by the
CM.
4. Act in the capacity of CM in his/her absence, as assigned

These changes in the job description will allow for greater administrative flexibility in the
organization without diminishing the fact that the primary qualification and responsibility of the

position is governmental accounting and public budgeting and finance.

Finance Director Salary

The current salary steps for the Finance Director are $67,473, $69,497 and $71,582 respectively.
There are only 3 steps, not the normal 5 steps like rank and file employees. The Council may
recall that when the salary study was completed back in 2010, this position was found to be over
51% below the median salary of the comparative labor market. The Council approved a
significant adjustment in compensation for the position up to 85% of the median salary.

Once again CPS has conducted a salary only survey of comparative agencies at our request
(attached) and has found that the salary for the Finance Director is 24% below the mean and
26% below the median salary of comparable agencies. It could be argued that Ferndale’s
position is not comparable in terms of knowledge and duties and at $4,833/month should be
deleted from the survey. If that were done the position is out by approximately 30%.

A recent conversation with City and County administrators from Humboldt and Del Norte
Counties reveals that all public agencies on the north coast have been unsuccessful lately in
recruiting public agency accounting professionals. That has been our experience also and it may
be again when we recruit the Finance Director. Accordingly, it is recommended that the salary
for the Finance Director (top step) be increased from $71,580 to $80,000, an increase of
11.763%. A further adjustment at this time would likely complicate the internal salary
relationships of several other positions and should wait for the results of the CPS study.

The job flyer for the position will note that a total compensation review for all positions is under
contract.

It is recommended that the job description for the Finance Director be amended to add the job
duties as mentioned above and that the salary ranges for the position be increased 11.76%.




»‘0“\ B
‘ o O .
X ] Human Resource Services Finance Director

Surveyed Agency Classification Title ];Monthly Min. Monthly Max.
sity of Arcata Finance Director $6,715 $8,164
sity of Blue Lake No Comparable Class N/A N/A
.ity of Crescent City Director of Finance $6,326 $7,932
Sity of Eureka Finance Director $7,996 $9,720
sity of Ferndale Treasurer $3,417 $4,833
Sity of Fort Bragg Director of Finance/City Treasurer $7,114 $8,648
Sity of Fortuna Finance Director $5,282 $6,418
Sity of Rio Dell Finance Director $5,623 $5,965
sity of Willits Finance Director/City Treasurer $5,382 $6,542
AcKinleyville Community Services District  |Finance Director $5,539 $7,070

Base Salary Median $7,501
Base Salary Mean $7,416
Percentage Above or Below Median -26%
Percentage Above or Below Mean -24%
lity of Rio Dell

w



RIO DELL CITY COUNCIL
STUDY SESSION
REGULAR MEETING
DECEMBER 17, 2013
MINUTES

The study session/regular meeting of the Rio Dell City Council was called to order at 6:00 p.m.
by Mayor Thompson.

ROLL CALL: Present: Mayor Thompson, Councilmembers Johnson, Marks, Wilson and
Woodall

Others Present: (Study Session) City Manager Stretch, Community Development
Director Caldwell and City Clerk Dunham

(Regular Meeting) City Manager Stretch, Chief of Police Hill,
Finance Director Beauchaine, Community Development Director
Caldwell, Wastewater Superintendent Chicora and City Clerk
Dunham

Absent:  Water/Roadways Superintendent Jensen (excused)
SPECIAL STUDY SESSION

Review of City Manager Work Plan/Priorities

City Manager Stretch stated at the last regular meeting, the Council concurred to retain the
services of an executive recruitment firm to handle the City Manager recruitment so that he
could get more of the special projects on his work plan accomplished over the next 6 months.
He said the purpose of the study session is to go over the list of items on his work plan to insure
his priorities are also the Council’s priorities.

He presented the original work plan adopted in 2013 as well as a list of new priorities that
emerged over the last 6 months with priority items identified in bold. From the 2 lists, he
identified by priority the following 10 projects that he anticipated to be completed by the end of
the fiscal year, June 30, 2014:

CalPers retirement/actuarial evaluation

CPS total compensation study

Recruitment of Finance Director

Recruitment of City Manager

New labor contracts with (2) Employee Associations and (6) contract employees
Adoption of City Budget for 2014-15

Complete Employee Handbook revisions concerning employee rights/due process
Revisions to Business License Ordinance

. Monument Springs negotiations with property owners

10 Capital Improvement ADA project/ City Hall planning lead person with Architect

00 =R LA B R B



DECEMBER 17, 2013 MINUTES
Page 2

City Manager Stretch then provided a brief overview of each of the 10 priority projects and said
he has delayed entering into contract negotiations with employees and may consider extending
the current contracts for 6 months pending the results of the CalPERS actuarial.

He said with regard to the CPS total compensation study, it appears that the salary for the
Finance Director position is approximately 25% lower than the average median salary because of
a couple of local jurisdictions that had to increase the salary during their recruitment process.
Also, the salary for the City Manager position is out about 7 or 8%. He suggested a study
session be scheduled during the next regular meeting to discuss the recruitment process for the
City Manager and job description, salary and recruitment for the Finance Director.

He commented that the budget process for 2014-15 will be impacted due to the turnover of
finance staff, noting that he relies quite heavily on the Finance Director during the budget
process to produce expenditure and revenue reports in addition to other financial reports. He
noted that the update of the Business License Ordinance is approximately 85% complete;
estimating it will take 60 hours of additional work to complete. He added that he feels confident
the City will be able to come to an agreement with the property owners with regard to the
Monument Springs negotiations.

He said the last item on the list concerns working with staff, the City Council and the Architect
to address the ADA improvements at City Hall and preparing a site master plan as part of the
planning process to identify the future spatial requirements for City staff. He said with Council’s
concurrence, the Community Development Director, Kevin Caldwell will be taking the lead on
this project.

Mayor Thompson suggested Kevin also work on completion of the Business License Ordinance.
City Manager Stretch commented that the Business License Ordinance update is more of a City
Clerk function.

Councilmember Marks commented that the update of the Business License Ordinance will take
up a large amount of available hours by the City Manager and said she also felt it should be
relinquished to someone else. The consensus was that completion of the Business License
Ordinance and administrative fee update be turned over to the City Clerk for completion.

Councilmember Marks referred to Item 9 on the original work plan related to the Accufund
Budget Planning Module and said with a new Finance Director coming in, it would be beneficial
to have the module so the formulas will be in place. She noted that without having the salaries
and revenue projections, it will be difficult to forecast CalPERS. She said she would like to see
the budget module moved up the priority list.



DECEMBER 17, 2013 MINUTES
Page 3

City Manager Stretch stated that it would be realistic to say that the budget module will not be
implemented until after a new Finance Director is in place.

Mayor Thompson said perhaps this could be set as a priority for the new Finance Director.

Councilmember Marks pointed out the importance of having a good solid tracking mechanism
for accounting.

City Manager Stretch commented that he believes Accufund has a lot of capabilities that have
not been implemented.

City Manager Stretch mentioned that he not only wants to make sure his priorities are those of
the City Council, he wants to make sure those priorities are carried over to the new City
Manager.

Councilmember Woodall stated that she is comfortable with the list of priorities as identified by
the City Manager.

Mayor Thompson pointed out that the estimated hours for the City Manager to work with the
recruitment firm was not included on the list. City Manager Stretch stated that it was omitted in
error and that he would like to help with the City Manager recruitment; if necessary he will work
with them on his own time.

Councilmember Marks stressed the importance of the City Manager participating in the
recruitment process.

Councilmember Johnson said no matter what the Council decides as priorities now; there will be
a number of unforeseen items that evolve over the next 6 months that will be of high importance.
He asked the City Manager if he is comfortable with the list with the removal of the 2 items
turned over to staff. City Manager Stretch said he feels confident he will be able to achieve
those goals over the next 6 months with the exception of adoption of the 2014-15 City Budget
because of the data normally generated by the Finance Director.

Mayor Thompson called for public comment on the proposed City Manager work plan/priorities.
There was no public comment received.

The study session ended at 6:30 and the regular meeting resumed.
PUBLIC PRESENTATIONS
None

CONSENT CALENDAR



DECEMBER 17, 2013 MINUTES
Page 4

Councilmember Marks asked that Item 2 be removed from the consent calendar for separate
discussion.

Motion was made by Johnson/Woodall to approve the consent calendar including the approval of
minutes of the December 3, 2013 regular meeting; approval of Resolution No. 1214-2013
Establishing a Fund Balance Classification Policy; and approval of Resolution No. 1215-2013
approving Mid-Year Budget Adjustments. Motion carried 5-0.

SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS
Project Status Report by Craig Olson, Project Engineer, HDR Engineering

City Manager Stretch announced there will be no status report this evening as the engineer was
unable to attend.

SPECIAL CALL ITEMS FROM CONSENT CALENDAR

Approve giveaway of the Wastewater Treatment Plant’s Exceptional Quality Class ‘A’ Bio-
Solids to City residents and if necessary, County residents to dispose of excess bio-solids product
Councilmember Marks said after reading the staff report, she decided she would rather the City
give the bio-solids (sludge) to another organization rather than to citizens. She said it was never
her intention to give it to citizens since it is unknown what it will be used for over the long term.

Wastewater Superintendent Chicora commented that citizens would be limited to 1 yard of bio-
solids per year. Councilmember Marks stated that she objects to any amount going to her
properties and said she will provide the City with a list of those properties.

City Manager Stretch said it seems that decision would be between the property owner and the
tenant and doesn’t think the City should be the keeper of such a list.

Mayor Thompson asked for public comment on the matter; there was no public comment
received.

Motion was made by Johnson/Thompson to approve the giveaway of the wastewater treatment
plant’s exceptional Class ‘A’ bio-solids to City residents and if necessary, to County residents to
dispose of excess bio-solids product. Motion failed 2-3.

City Manager Stretch asked if the Council understands that the City will have to pay to dispose
of the bio-solids if there is no giveaway program.

Councilmember Wilson suggested the matter be brought back to the Council for further
discussion. City Manager Stretch said he will gather more information and bring it back to the
Council at the next meeting. Council concurred.



DECEMBER 17,2013 MINUTES
Page 5

SPECIAL CALL ITEMS/COMMUNITYAFFAIRS

Appointment of two (2) Council Members and one (1) alternate Council Member to the Nuisance
Hearing Committee

Community Development Director Caldwell provided a staff report and stated that the newly
adopted Nuisance Regulations requires the establishment of a Hearing Committee consisting of 2
members of the City Council and the City Manager, plus 1 alternate City Council Member to
facilitate timely meetings and resolve any potential conflicts of interest.

Councilmembers Woodall and Johnson volunteered to serve on the committee. Councilmember
Marks volunteered to serve as the alternate member.

Councilmember Johnson questioned the term length for members on the committee. Staff
responded that the appointments will coincide with the other external boards and committee
assignments which occur after each City Council election.

Motion was made by Wilson/Johnson to approve the appointment of Councilmembers Woodall
and Johnson to the Nuisance Hearing Committee and Councilmember Marks as alternate.
Motion carried 5-0.

Receive report on River Bar Survey results and approve staff’s recommendation as submitted
Chief of Police Hill provided a power point presentation related to the river bar survey results
and said because of recent citizen concerns regarding the river bar and access to the river were
brought to the City Council’s attention, he put together some information regarding the issue and
sent a survey out to the community to see what the overall opinion is on the issue. He reported
that only 96 surveys (less than 10%) of the surveys sent out were completed and returned which
is not necessarily representative of the community’s opinion on the issue.

He explained that the survey questions basically had to do with the type of recreational activities
the river bar is used for, the problems associated with river access, community opinions on
restricting access and opinions on additional tax revenue to address concerns.

He reported that of the surveys returned, about 25% were from people who live close to the river;
65% stated they use the river bar for recreational activities, primarily walking, hiking, walking
their dog and fishing. He said only 15% of those people stated that they ride their ATV’s or
motorcycles on the river bar. Another common use mentioned was swimming.

Chief Hill further reported that the most common problem identified in the surveys was
excessive noise from off-road vehicles occurring during both day and night time hours. Also,
that garbage and trash is left on the river bar.



DECEMBER 17, 2013 MINUTES
Page 6

With regard to river bar access, Chief Hill said a majority of the respondents were not in favor of
closing the river bar to motorized vehicles; however were in favor of restricting access to
daytime hours. Also, the majority was not in favor of creating a special tax to facilitate
additional patrol and enforcement for the river bar.

Chief Hill then reviewed some of the specific suggestions and comments made by the
respondents which included the placement of trash cans near the river; signage regarding no
camping and no camp fires; utilizing community volunteer groups to pick up trash; and
installation of a security camera at the gate access. Some of the comments received were that the
community already pays enough taxes and the police should already be patrolling the river bar;
additional public access would reduce public access from private property; vehicles and ATV’s
are destroying the riparian area below the river bank; and the river bar provides a place for
positive recreational activities for young people.

In closing, he said based on the survey results his opinion is that access to the river bar should
remain restricted to day time use; make an effort to improve public access points for non-
motorized use; increase enforcement efforts by adding signage and making a better effort to
patrol the river bar; review the noise ordinance for possible revision to address noise issues
specific to the river bar and OHV use; and revisit the issue in the future with resubmittal of a
survey to the community to determine if these efforts have helped to mitigate some of the
problems associated with the river access.

Mayor Thompson called for public comment on the issue.

Brandon Phillips, Metropolitan Road, addressed the Council and said that all of this is a waste
of time and if access to the river bar is taken away, there will be no place for recreational
activities and nothing else for kids to do. He said the river bar should be left open and if people
who live around it don’t like the noise; they can move or go down to the river and tell the people
who are making the noise to stop. He commented that he hardly ever hears noise and if he does,
he doesn’t have a problem figuring out who it is since there are only about 5 people that ride
ATV’s on the river bar.

Councilmember Marks commented that the last time she tried to walk along the railroad tracks
she saw what appeared to be homeless camp sites and asked Brandon if that is a problem on that
side of the river.

He commented that he has observed some homeless people camping on the river bar with
garbage and trash but that he personally doesn’t have a problem because he runs them and has
called the police department and they took care of the problem. He commented that there are
people that can’t even to the wrong thing right and if they’re going to dump their garbage, they
should at least dump it where no one can see it. He said when you’re dealing with idiots, that’s
just the way it is and that this problem exists in the whole county; not just Rio Dell. He also
commented that he basically controls that area of the river bar and just yesterday a couple came



DECEMBER 17, 2013 MINUTES
Page 7

by and wanted to access the river bar to look for fossils and he gladly opened the gate and let
them through. He said he has had access to the river since he was a kid, and it’s just not right to
deny access to anyone who wants to use it.

Judy Ingraham, 1151 Riverside Dr. stated she has lived here for over 20 years and that she
doesn’t mind people fishing or riding ATV’s on the river bar but it is disturbing when they ride
ATV’s around and around the same area behind her house for hours at a time. She said also there
is a lot of garbage being left on the river bar. She said she doesn’t want to take recreation away
from kids but pointed out that she also has an ATV and she takes it to the Oregon dunes or
Samoa to ride. She said she did not appreciate the fact that a motorcycle track was put in behind
her house and said kids should have more respect for people’s privacy and the river bar.

Karen Chase, 480 Edwards Dr., commented that she doesn’t want to repeat her concerns by
presenting the same pictures of the destruction of the river bar but pointed out that once the
destruction is done, you can’t get it back. She stressed the importance of protecting the City’s
archeological resources. She said she appreciates the City’s efforts in sending out the surveys
and feels that sincere efforts have been made by giving the City a beautiful facelift (Wildwood
Ave. Streetscape Project). She asked the Council to seek the same level of sincerity before
making the river bar accessible to off-road vehicles.

Michael Chase asked that the City Council restrict river access to foot traffic only due to the
illegal dumping of garbage and marijuana debris. He commented that the destruction of the river
bar is resulting in the loss of vegetation. He said there is not enough manpower to patrol the
river bar and asked who the responsible party is in the event someone is injured on the river bar.

City Manager Stretch stated that the State Lands Commission is responsible for everything
beyond the access point.

Michael Chase commented that the river bar is basically the front yard of Rio Dell and its’ most
valuable resource.

Councilmember Wilson stated that it is not the intention of the City to close the river to the
public and that he appreciates the study but it doesn’t really resolve the issue. He said 100 years
ago you could do a lot more to destroy the environment but that is not the case today. He agreed
that the river bar is a valuable resource and should be protected. He said he had hoped to see
more citizens here with ideas of how we can allow recreational use of the river bar, and at the
same time, protect it. He said 1 option might be to keep the gate locked and require the user to
obtain a key from the City with a minimal charge. He said if the Council accepts staff’s
recommendation to basically leave things as status quo, nothing will change. He said there needs
to be more dialog.

Councilmember Johnson stated it seems that a lot of the problems are related to garbage and
noise and said it might be worthwhile to put out trash cans to collect some of the garbage.

10



DECEMBER 17, 2013 MINUTES
Page 8

Chief Hill commented that it probably won’t help because the people who would use the cans are
typically the same people that would also take their garbage with them if there were no cans. He
said there have been problems with people dumping household garbage in the City cans
throughout the City. He also commented that the police department can have a higher presence
at the river bar but it means it will take them away from somewhere else they need to be. Also,
citizens are not willing to pay for enhanced enforcement. He said signs could be put up
regarding rules for use of the river bar which may or may not help. He noted that 10% return on
the surveys is hardly representative of the entire community and pointed out there are many
people who use the river bar responsibly.

Councilmember Woodall asked if the City even has the ability to prohibit access to the river
since it is regulated by the State, and asked what the funding source was for removal of
abandoned vehicles on the river in the past.

Chief Hill responded that the vehicles were removed through the Vehicle Abatement Program.

Councilmember Marks commented that there are other river access locations besides Edwards
Dr. and the City can’t control people accessing the river from Scotia. She suggested placement
of a security camera at the cul-de-sac on Edwards Dr. to perhaps catch some of the people
responsible for the illegal dumping but as she pointed out there are many other ways to access
the river bar including from the trail leading from the Riverside Estates Mobile Home Park.

Mayor Thompson asked how often the police department accesses the river bar, and if the entire
area is Rio Dell’s jurisdiction. Chief Hill said they access the river bar on an average of 2-3
times/week, and their jurisdiction includes all of the area to the other side of the river.

Councilmember Marks suggested a sign be placed at the entrance to the river bar encouraging
citizens to contact the police department if they observe any illegal activity occurring.

Councilmember Johnson referred to a comment made by Brandon Phillips that there are only 2
dozen people who ride ATV’s on the river bar and suggested guidelines be developed regarding
helmets, mufflers, garbage, and how, when and where you can ride ATV’s; somewhat like self-
policing. He said he would like to get citizens involved with self-policing and to come up with

“responsible” guidelines that meet all of the legal requirements

Brandon Phillips interjected that it is all about common sense and if you see someone dumping
garbage, you need to do whatever is necessary to stop them. He said there will always be the
kind of people that won’t respect property or follow the rules and “you simply can’t fix stupid.”

Councilmember Marks said it takes interaction and involvement by the community to make a
difference.

1



DECEMBER 17, 2013 MINUTES
Page 9

Chief Hill suggested to get the word out to the community that if you are riding an ATV on the
river bar, you have a responsibility to obey the rules and respect the river bar.

Councilmember Johnson pointed out that if the use of ATV’s on the river bar is restricted, it will
impact all those folks; not just those abusing the river bar.

Community Development Director Caldwell commented that some jurisdictions have licensing
and permitting requirements for off road vehicles and as part of that, have a brochure titled
“tread lightly” that provides guidelines and also specifies limits on noise. He said with regard to
the dumping of garbage on the river bar; universal garbage collection would help to reduce the
amount of garbage being dumped.

Councilmember Wilson said what he hopes to see come out of this is to send out a clear message
to the community that this is where this situation is going because of the few minority and
everyone needs to work together to come up with a solution that benefits everyone.

City Manager Stretch asked for a consensus of the Council as to whether they support enactment
of any or all of staff’s recommendations.

Mayor Thompson suggested the Council simply receive and file the information and bring the
matter back for further review.

Councilmember Johnson suggested information be sent out to the community through the City’s
newsletter, proceed with staff’s recommendation and continue to discuss options.

Motion was made by Woodall/Marks to approve staff’s recommendations as presented and to
bring the matter back to the City Council in 60 days for further consideration. Motion carried
5-0.

Make determination on access to Eel River from Painter St. and provide staff direction on how to
proceed

City Manager Stretch provided a staff report and said this issue came up as the result of
complaints received from citizens regarding gates installed at the end of Painter St. restricting
public access to the river. He said the matter was presented to the Council at a recent meeting
and staff was directed to engage a Land Surveyor to determine whether the gates were installed
within the City’s right-of-way or within the jurisdiction of the State Lands Commission. He said
Kelly O’Hearn Associates was engaged to research the matter and conduct surveys to determine
the point where Painter St. terminates as a public right-of-way. The determination of his
research concluded that the neighboring property owner erected 2 fences within the City’s right-

12



DECEMBER 17,2013 MINUTES
Page 10

of-way at the end of Painter St. to block the public’s access to the river and also moved their
fence along the south portion of Painter St. into the right-of-way.

City Manager Stretch then reviewed the 3 options as presented in his staff report for establishing
public access to the river from Painter St. for the Council to consider. The options included: 1)
to fence and sign the location for no access to the river, with a lockable gate to provide for
emergency and law enforcement vehicle access; 2) restrict access to foot traffic only with a
pedestrian pass through and lockable gate for emergency and law enforcement vehicle access; or
3) allow full access to the river, including motor vehicles with access hours to be stated on a
sign. He said he added a fourth option which includes that signs for parking be installed at the
best location as determined by the traffic committee.

City Manager Stretch noted that there is no cul-de-sac to facilitate turning around of vehicles so
parking at the end of Painter St. will be problematic. If this location is determined to be used as
a major access point to the river, improvements will need to be made to accommodate parking.
Also, clearing out overgrown vegetation will also be necessary to provide safe access.

City Manager Stretch stated that based on the current situation, staff is recommending option 2,
restricting access to foot traffic only.

Mayor Thompson called for public comment on the issue.

Denise Sweaney, 471 Painter St., commented that she has also heard people shooting guns on
the river bar and suggested before a decision is made on the type of access to the river from this
location, she would like to know what the City’s plans are for future use of the river bar.

Mayor Thompson responded that there are no specific plans being developed at this time and
said the City recently submitted application for a trails grant but was not successful in securing
it.

Denise Sweaney commented that she likes the idea of establishing a committee to come up with
ideas to control the use of the river bar and expressed support for public access.

Michael Chase questioned the amount of environmental damage with regard to water that is
being done by off-road vehicles

Sharon Wolff asked where the access point is on Painter St. and said there is currently no sign
of public access at the end of Painter St. because that area is so overgrown. She questioned the

potential environmental damage caused by oils and toxins from vehicles going into the water. .
She asked for clarification if the goal is to get the access cleaned up for foot traffic only.

13



DECEMBER 17, 2013 MINUTES
Page 11

Gary Chapman, Hilda Ct,, stated he is in favor of providing vehicle access to the river and said
the City should take advantage of what the river can do to promote tourism. He commented that
one of the advantages of the Davis St. access is the R.V. Park and expressed support for
development of a park and picnic area at the Painter St. access area.

Karen Chase commented that Painter St. access is not a safe place for pedestrians with vehicle
traffic.

Councilmember Marks stated that someone has been cutting down trees at the end of Edwards
Dr. which takes away some of the beauty of the river bar.

City Manager Stretch noted that it may be the State Department of Fish and Game removing the
trees.

Motion was made by Woodall/Marks to restrict access to the river from Painter St. to foot traffic
only with a pedestrian pass through and lockable gate to provide for emergency and law
enforcement vehicle access. Also, directing staff to install a sign with access hours posted.
Motion carried 5-0.

ORDINANCES/SPECIAL RESOLUTIONS/PUBLIC HEARINGS

Conduct Second Reading (by title only) of Ordinance No. 302-2013 Establishing Parkland
Dedication Regulations, Section 17.30.190 of the Rio Dell Municipal Code

Community Development Director Caldwell provided a brief staff report and stated the
ordinance was introduced at the December 3, 2013 meeting and the purpose of the ordinance is
to implement Parkland Dedication fees for all residential subdivisions rather than just those
subdivisions subject to the planned development combining zone. He commented that Parkland
Dedication fees can only be used for acquisition and development of parkland; not maintenance.

A public hearing was opened to receive public comment on the proposed ordinance. There being
no public comment, the public hearing closed.

Motion was made by Wilson/Johnson to conduct second reading (by title only) and adopt
Ordinance No. 302-2013 Establishing Parkland Dedication Regulations, Section 17.30.190 of
the Rio Dell Municipal Code Motion carried 5-0.

Conduct Second Reading (by title only) of Ordinance No. 300-2013 Amending Current Parking
Regulations, Section 17.30.180 of the Rio Dell Municipal Code

Community Development Director Caldwell provided a brief staff report and said the ordinance
was introduced at the December 3, 2013 meeting and at this time is being presented for its
second reading and adoption. He noted that the ordinance was incorrectly referenced as
Ordinance No. 305-2013 during its introduction rather than No. 300-2013 as now referenced.

14



DECEMBER 17, 2013 MINUTES
Page 12

A public hearing was opened to receive public comment on the proposed Ordinance amendment.
There being no public comment, the public hearing closed.

Motion was made by Woodall/Johnson to conduct the second reading (by title only) and adopt
Ordinance No. 300-2013 Amending the Parking Regulations, Section 17.30.180 of the Rio Dell
Municipal Code. Motion carried 5-0.

Conduct Second Reading (by title only) of Ordinance No. 309-2013 Amending the Current
Design Review Regulations, Section 17.25.050(3) of the Rio Dell Municipal Code

Community Development Director Caldwell provided a brief staff report and said this ordinance
was also introduced at the December 3, 2013 meeting and is back for its second reading (by title
only) and adoption.

A public hearing was opened to receive public comment on the proposed amendment. There
being no public comment, the public hearing closed.

Motion was made by Johnson/Woodall to conduct second reading (by title only) and adopt
Ordinance No. 309-2013 Amending the Design Review Regulations, Section 17.25.050 of the Rio
Dell Municipal Code. Motion carried 5-0.

Conduct Second Reading (by title only) of Ordinance No. 310-2013 Amending Council Meeting
Regulations, Section 2.05.070 (Holidays) of the Rio Dell Municipal Code

City Manager Stretch provided a brief staff report and said the proposed amendment deletes any
reference to rescheduling a Council meeting if it occurs on an election day since it no longer
makes sense with the City Council Chambers no longer being used as a polling place. He said the
ordinance was introduced at the December 3, 2013 meeting and is back for its second reading
and adoption at this time.

A public hearing was opened to receive public comment on the proposed amendment. There
being no public comment, the public hearing closed.

Motion was made by Wilson/Johnson to conduct the second reading (by title only) and adopt
Ordinance No. 310-2013 Amending Council Meeting Regulations, Section 2.05.070 (Holidays)
of the Rio Dell Municipal Code. Motion carried 5-0.

Conduct Second Reading (by title only) of Ordinance No. 311-2013 Amending Current Nuisance

Regulations, Chapter 8.10 of the Rio Dell Municipal Code
Community Development Director Caldwell provided a brief staff report and stated the
ordinance was introduced at the December 3, 2013 meeting and is back for its second reading

and adoption at this time.

15



DECEMBER 17, 2013 MINUTES
Page 13

A public hearing was opened to receive public comment on the proposed ordinance revisions.
There being no public comment, the public hearing closed.

Motion was made by Johnson/Woodall to conduct the second reading (by title only) and adopt
Ordinance No. 311-2013 Amending the Current Nuisance Regulations, Chapter 8.10 of the Rio
Dell Municipal Code. Motion carried 5-0.

Introduce and Conduct First Reading (by title only) of Ordinance No. 314-2014 Establishing
Purchasing Procedures, Section 3.30.110 and Amending Section 3.30.110 of the Rio Dell
Municipal Code

Finance Director Beauchaine provided a staff report and said EPA completed a desk review audit
of the City’s Brownfield Grant and made recommendations to adopt a lease vs. purchase policy;
and to include disciplinary procedures for any willful violator of these policies. She said as such,
staff drafted a policy to meet EPA’s requirement. She then provided a brief review of the main
principles of the policy.

Councilmember Marks asked if it is a law that the City adopts these policies in order to get
Brownfields grants. Finance Director Beauchaine explained it could potentially jeopardize grant
funding even though the City has not violated any of these policies.

A public hearing was opened to receive public comment on the proposed ordinance. There being
no public comment, the public hearing closed.

Motion was made by Woodall/Marks to conduct first reading (by title only) of Ordinance No.
314-2014 Establishing Purchasing Procedures, Section 3.30.110 and Amending Section 3.30.110
of the Rio Dell Municipal Code and to continue to the meeting of January 7, 2014 for its second
reading and adoption. Motion carried 5-0.

Introduce and Conduct First Reading (by title only) of Ordinance No. 315-2014 Amending
Building Codes and Appendices, Section 15.05.020 of the Rio Dell Municipal Code

City Manager Stretch provided a staff report and said the State of California Building Standards
Commission updates Building Codes every 3 years based on model uniform codes published by
the International Code Council. Each jurisdiction in California is required to adopt building
codes as adopted by the State Building Standards Commission or may establish more restrictive
building standards as deemed necessary; the codes must go into effect January 1, 2014. Staff’s
recommendation is to adopt the codes as adopted by the Building Standards Commission.

A public hearing was opened to receive public comment on the proposed ordinance. There being
no public comment, the public hearing closed.

Motion was made by Woodall/Marks to Introduce and Conduct First Reading (by title only) of
Ordinance No. 315-2014 Amending Building Codes and Appendices, Section 15.05.020 of the

16



DECEMBER 17, 2013 MINUTES
Page 14

Rio Dell Municipal Code and to continue to the meeting of January 7, 2014 for its second
reading and adoption. Motion carried 5-0.

REPORTS/STAFF COMMUNICATIONS
City Manager Stretch stated he had nothing further to report at this time.

Chief of Police Hill reported on recent activities in the police department and said he wanted to
publicly thank the Fortuna Police Department for their assistance with a recent burglary. He said
with the use of their canine, they located the suspect in the brush and was able to the recover the
stolen property. He said they will be assisting the Fortuna Police Department tomorrow, and that
they recovered over 25 Ibs. of marijuana during an arrest.

Finance Director Beauchaine reported on activities in the finance department and said this will
be her last Council meeting but she is working on an interim plan for the next couple of months

while the City recruits for a new Finance Director.

Mayor Thompson, on behalf of the City Council, extended best wishes to Finance Director
Beauchaine on her new job.

Mayor Thompson wished the community a Merry Christmas and Happy New Year.

ADJOURNMENT

There being no further business to discuss, the meeting adjourned at 8:10 p.m. to the
January 7, 2014 regular meeting.

Jack Thompson, Mayor
Attest:

Karen Dunham, City Clerk

17



CiTYy OF

Rio Dell City hall R.I O
675 Wildwood Avenue D‘ E LL

Rio Dell, CA 95562 —
(707) 764-3532 CALIFOANA
riodellcity.com

January 7, 2014
TO: Honorable Mayor and City Council Members
FROM: Jim ‘$Afetch, City Manager

SUBJECT: Finance Director Job Classification, Salary and Recruitment

IT IS RECOMMENDED THAT THE CITY COUNCIL:

1. Approve amending the job description for the Finance Director to include the
responsibility for the City’s risk management program, special studies as required and
special project administration as assigned by the City Manager, and to act as City
Manager in his/her absence as assigned, and

2. Adjust the salary schedule (steps A thru C) for the Finance Director by 11.76%, to be
$75,408, $77,670 and $80,000 respectively, pending the outcome of the total
compensation study being prepared by Cooperative Personnel Services and action by the
City Council.

BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION

Finance Director Job Description

As the Council is aware, the City’s Finance Director of 8 years left her position with the City on
December 20, 2013 to take a similar position with the City of Millbrae in San Mateo County. In
anticipation of her separation, the City Manager (CM) carefully reviewed the present job
description to determine whether the position had evolved over time and needed to be amended;
it had. At the same time the City Manager evaluated the benefit to the organization of upgrading
the position to assume a greater role for overall city administration , something like a Deputy
City Manager or Finance Director/Deputy City Manager. And, after much thought neither
approach is recommended to the Council. There is perhaps a better approach to modify the
position classification to fit the needs of the organization at a lesser cost.

What is recommended to the Council is an amendment of the Finance Director’s job description
to include the following duties:

1. Risk Management functions, including representing the City on the Joint Powers
Authority (JPA) Board of Directors.

18



2. Undertake special studies on a wide range of management/administrative topics as
assigned by the CM.

3. Administer/management special projects, including capital projects, as assigned by the
CM.

4. Act in the capacity of CM in his/her absence, as assigned

These changes in the job description will allow for greater administrative flexibility in the
organization without diminishing the fact that the primary qualification and responsibility of the
position is governmental accounting and public budgeting and finance.

Finance Director Salary

The current salary steps for the Finance Director are $67,473, $69,497 and $71,582 respectively.
There are only 3 steps, not the normal 5 steps like rank and file employees. The Council may
recall that when the salary study was completed back in 2010, this position was found to be over
51% below the median salary of the comparative labor market. The Council approved a
significant adjustment in compensation for the position up to 85% of the median salary.

Once again CPS has conducted a salary only survey of comparative agencies at our request
(attached) and has found that the salary for the Finance Director is 24% below the mean and
26% below the median salary of comparable agencies. It could be argued that Ferndale’s
position is not comparable in terms of knowledge and duties and at $4,833/month should be
deleted from the survey. If that were done the position is out by approximately 30%.

A recent conversation with City and County administrators from Humboldt and Del Norte
Counties reveals that all public agencies on the north coast have been unsuccessfut lately in
recruiting public agency accounting professionals. That has been our experience also and it may
be again when we recruit the Finance Director. Accordingly, it is recommended that the salary
for the Finance Director (top step) be increased from $71,580 to $80,000, an increase of
11.763%. A further adjustment at this time would likely complicate the internal salary
relationships of several other positions and should wait for the results of the CPS study.

The job flyer for the position will note that a total compensation review for all positions is under
contract.

It is recommended that the job description for the Finance Director be amended to add the job
duties as mentioned above and that the salary ranges for the position be increased 11.76%.

19



&S
‘O\J Human Resource Services . .
Finance Director

t
1

Surveyed Agency Classification Title | Monthly Min. Monthly Méx.
City of Arcata Finance Director $6,715 $8,164
City of Blue Lake No Comparable Class N/A N/A
City of Crescent City Director of Finance $6,326 $7,932
City of Eureka Finance Director $7,996 $9,720
City of Ferndale Treasurer $3,417 $4,833
City of Fort Bragg Director of Finance/City Treasurer $7,114 $8,648
City of Fortuna Finance Director $5,282 $6,418
City of Rio Dell Finance Director $5,623 $5,965
City of Willits Finance Director/City Treasurer $5,382 $6,542
McKinleyville Community Services District |Finance Director $5,539 $7,070
Base Salary Median $7,501
Base Salary Mean $7,416
Percentage Above or Below Median -26%
Percentage Above or Below Mean 249

Zitv of Rio Dell

N

o



CiTY OF

Rio Dell City hall l.{

675 Wildwood Avenue ' E l I
Rio Dell, CA 95562 ___.._.3_
(707) 764-3532 CALFORNIA
riodellcity.com

January 7, 2014

TO: Honorable Mayor and City Council Members
FROM: Jim h, City Manager

SUBJECT:  Arrangement with departed Finance Director Stephanie Beauchaine for Interim
Services

IT IS RECOMMENDED THAT THE CITY COUNCIL:

Receive and file this report

BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION

As the City Council is aware, Finance Director Stephanie Beauchaine left City employment on
December 20, 2013 to take a similar position with the City of Millbrae. She served in the
Finance Director capacity since November 2006 and due to recent staff turnover is the only
person with the knowledge and history to complete the following:

1. Make the final adjustments on financial statements needed to complete the 2012-13
Audit.

2. Prepare the final reimbursement requests, progress reports and project reconciliation for
the just completed Wastewater Treatment Plant project.

3. Prepare the final report on the Administrative Civil Liability Complaint Compliance
Project related the WWTF.

4. Prepare the final disbursement and project reconciliation for the Safe Route to Schools
and the Wildwood Avenue Enhancement Project, and

5. Prepare of the monthly General Ledger Reconciliation through March 2014.

Stephanie has agreed to return to Rio Dell on a weekend in January, February and March to
complete these tasks for the City. In addition, she has agreed to provide technical support and
training by phone and on the 3 weekends to the City’s recently promoted Accountant. Her offer
to assist the City through the transition period while we recruit a new Finance Director, at the
same time she assumes her new position with Millbrae is generous and exceptional.

What she has requested in return is that we compensate her at $75/hr. as an extra help employee
for the hours she works in Rio Dell on the 3 weekends mentioned above. Her one-way 5 hour
travel time from her new residence to Rio Dell is not included in the compensation. She has

21



asked for mileage reimbursement at the IRS rate, the usual City per/diem for the weekends
worked and reimbursement for lodging. The attached estimates related to the interim work plan
were prepared by Ms. Beauchaine.

The estimated cost for 45 hours of her time in Rio Dell at City Hall and reimbursement for travel
expenses is $5,107. Assuming that it takes 4 months to fill the Finance Director’s position, the
project salary and benefit savings that will be realized by the City is estimated at $32,000.

This interim arrangement does not require City Council approval. It is recommended that the
City Council receive and file this report.

22



Interim/Consulting Finance Director Work Program

I will make one weekend trip per month in January, February, and March as necessary to
complete the following projects. Tentatively, we have scheduled 1/18 — 1/20, 2/15 —2/17, and
3/22 - 3/23. These dates are subject to change based on work progress and schedule

coordination. I will also be available to log into the system to assist the Accountant and other
staff as necessary.

1. Audit-5 hrs
a. Review the Financial Statements, assist with final adjustments, MD&A wording,
and preparation for final presentation to the council
b. Will certify the OMB Circular A-133
c. Will forward the Final Financials to all agencies currently requiring copies
i. Debt Service Agencies
ii. SCO; etc.
2. Wastewater Treatment Plant Project (WWTP) Completion- 15 hrs
a. DBA Reporting to the State Due January 31, 2014
b. Final Reimbursement Request to the State Due by April 30, 2014
c. Final Progress Report April 30,2013
d. Project Reconciliation, Final Financial Accounting , and recommendation for
transfer of funds between Capital and Debt Service Accounts
e. Organize and Box files for audit/storage
f. Other tasks as necessary to complete the administrative closure
3. Administrative Civil Liability Complaint Compliance Project (ACL) — 5 hrs
a. Detailed list of expenditures March 31, 2014
b. Final Progress Report March 31, 2014
c. Other tasks as necessary to complete the administrative closure
4. Safe Routes to School — 4 hrs
a. Final Disbursement Request (NOC filed 10/31/2013)
b. Project Reconciliation and Final Recommendation on Funds Transfer if
Necessary
5. Wildwood TE Project-4hrs
a. Final Disbursement Request
b. Project Reconciliation and Final Recommendation on Funds Transfer if
Necessary
6. Monthly GL Reconciliation — 4 hrs or as needed
a. Will continue to work with Accountant on GL Reconciliation including,
troubleshooting, review, and sign off
b. Journal Entry review, Financial Statement Review, Budget Review, with
Accountant

23



7. Provide general technical support to staff, and consultants to assist in the transition — As
needed

8. Provide Recruitment Assistance as requested — as needed
a. Calopps.org
b. CSMFO (California Society of Governmental Finance Officers) - Must be a
member to post open positions. As a current member I will post the position if
requested.

c. Paul Rodriguez Director of Finance City of Eureka is a good resource and
sounding board!

The Interim/Consulting Finance Director will remain on Payroll during the duration of the
contract and will be paid an hourly rate of $?7??. Workers Compensation and professional
Insurances will be paid for by the City. No benefits will be provided. A detailed time sheet will
be submitted to the City to be paid on regularly scheduled pay periods. The Interim/Consulting
Finance Director will retain the City issued Lap top to assist with completion of the approved
work plan. It will be returned when interim services are complete.

Travel expenses will be reimbursed by the City including mileage, per diem, and lodging, upon
submission of a detailed expenditure report.

Estimated Cost

Estimated Total Hours 45 = $3,375

January

Mileage 546.54 *.565 = $308.80/2 = $154.40
Lodging Fri- Sun = $225

Per Diem 3 days = $135

Total = $514.40

February

Mileage 546.54 = $308.80

Lodging Fri- Sun = $225

Per Diem 3 days = $135

Total = $668.80

24



March

Mileage 546.54 = $308.80
Lodging Fri- Sat = $150
Per Diem 2 days = $90

Total = $548.80

Estimated Gran d Total $5,107.00

25



CiTY OF

Rio Dell City hall R 0
675 Wildwood Avenue D l I
Rio Dell, CA 95562 —
(707) 764-3532 CALIOSNA
riodellcity.com

January 7, 2014

TO: Honorable Mayor and City Council Members

FROM: @ﬁatch, City Manager

SUBJECT: City Manager Salary for Recruitment

IT IS RECOMMENDED THAT THE CITY COUNCIL:

Receive and file this report

BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION

In anticipation of the City Manager recruitment, Cooperative Personnel Services (CPS) was
asked to review the salary of the City Manager with comparable agencies in order know if the
advertised salary for position when is competitive. We already know that for certain career
candidates that are members of the CaLPERS system that the fact that the City is not a member
puts Rio Dell at a disadvantage and will likely not attract those candidates. In any event, the CPS
survey (attached) only collected salary information at this time to help us determine the salary
range we might want to use in advertising the position.

The survey data for 9 comparable agencies used by CPS indicates that the Rio Dell City Manager
position at the top step of the range is 2.4% below the median and 2.2% below the mean.
However, the Ferndale position is 35% below the median ($6,250 vs. $9,677) and could be
argued to be not comparable. Without Ferndale the percentage below the median for the position
is 9.2% and the percentage below the median is 7%.

It is recommended for recruitment purposes that the salary not be adjusted at this time as the
survey numbers suggest, and that the recruitment brochure simply state the present salary range
is $106,875 to $113,384, with the note that a total compensation survey for the position is
presently under review. That information should be complete by CPS and available to the
Council for negotiation purposes before the recruitment process is finalized.

It is recommended that the City Council receive and file this report.

26



’%IB Human Resource Services

City Mana

Surveyed Agency Classification Title Monthly Min. {Monthly Max.
City of Arcata City Manager $11,000.00] $11,000.00
City of Blue Lake City Manager $7,559.58| $7,559.58
City of Crescent City City Manager $7,875.00f $10,062.50
City of Eureka City Manager $13,083.00| $13,083.00
City of Ferndale City Manager $6,250.00| $6,250.00
City of Fort Bragg City Manager $11,620.17| $11,620.17
City of Fortuna City Manager $8,916.67| $8,916.67
City of Rio Dell City Manager $8,906.00| $9,449.00
City of Willits City Manager $8,750.00 $8,750.00
McKinleyville Community Services District General Manager $9,677.17| $9,677.17
Base Salary Median $9,677
Base Salary Mean $9,658

Percentage Above or Below Median
-2.4%
Percentage Above or Below Mean o

City of Rio Deli

** *he City of Ferndale, the actual City Manager's salary is $5,000/month with a 32 hour/week schedule.

N
~




CiTY OF

Rio Dell City hall m O
675 Wildwood Avenue D E LL

Rio Dell, CA 95562 —
(707) 764-3532 CALEOQANA
riodellcity.com

January 7, 2014
TO: Honorable Mayor and City Council Members
FROM: Jim tch, City Manager

SUBJECT:  Audit Results for 2012 & 2013 Transportation Fund
IT IS RECOMMENDED THAT THE CITY COUNCIL:

Receive and file the Report on Audit of the Transportation Fund for the year ended June 30,
2012 and June 30, 2013.

BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION

Periodically the Humboldt County Association of Governments (HCOG) audits the financial
statements of public agencies that receive Transportation Funds through HCOG, basically to
determine that the monies were properly accounted for and spent in accordance with
Transportation Development Act (TDA) guidelines. Though the audit is dated 10-2-13, it was
received after the Council’s last meeting on 12-17-13.

Cities and Counties are required to meet the transportation needs of their communities with TDA
funds. Once those needs are determined by the governing board of the agency to have been met,
the balance of the funds (if any) may be allocated for the maintenance of the agency’s street
system.

Page 4 of 6 of the financial statements indicates that in 2011-2012 the City received $200,562
and spent $30,229 for Transit operations, $6,500 was allocated for transportation related to the
Adult Day Care Program and the balance of $163,833 was spent for street projects. There was a
fund balance forward to 2012-13 in the amount of $10,379.

The financial statement for 2012-13 provides that expenditures totaled $115,559, with $33,252
for Transit operations, $6,500 for Adult Day Health Care transportation and $75,807 for street
repairs. The year ended with a negative fund balance of $3,683 to be covered by Transportation
Funds monies in 2013-14.

The audit has found that the funds have been used for the intended purpose and are accounted
for. Therefore, it is recommended that the Council receive and file this report.

28



CITY OF RIC DELL

REPORT ON AUDIT OF THE TRANSPORTATION FUND

For the Year Ended June 30, 2013

29



CITY OF RIO DELL

TABLE OF CONTENTS

June 30, 2013

Independent Auditors’ Report

Comparative Balance Sheet - Recorded in the
Transportation Fund

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Balance - Recorded in the
Transportation Fund

Notes to Financial Statements

PAGE
1 -2
3
4
5 -6

30



A L ANDERSON, LUCAS, SOMERVILLE & BORGES, LLP
e CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

ART STEW ART {19245 1004 1338 MAIN STREET DAY 1) A SOMERVILLE |
RCHARD RODZIGUL {19314 5) FORTUNA, CALIFORNIA 95540 KENH D T ORCLES
R (Flil"?,':]’l,'(;';?ll’ (707)725-4483 & (707) 7254442 BRI BT
EUGEME B LU CAS (17330 3013 Toll Free: 800-794-1643 RITA { FISA

FAX: (707) 725-6340 VALSS ANDERS) S EA

E-mail: team@alsbh.com
www.alsb.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

JAES B ANEN KRS0 §y !

Board of Directors

Humboldt County Association
of Governments

611 I Street, Suite B

Eureka, CA 85501

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the
Transportation Fund of the City of Rio Dell as of and for the years ended
June 30, 2013 and 2012, and the related notes to the £financial
statements, as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of
these financial statements in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to
the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements
based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable

assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate

in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we
express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.



Board of Directors
Page 2

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions.

Basis for Adverse Opinion

As discussed in Note 1, the financial statements present only the
Transportation Fund of the City of Rio Dell. Accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America require that the City
of Rio Dell’s financial statements present the governmental activities,
the business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented
component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund
information of the City of Rio Dell.

Adverse Opinion

In our opinion, because of the significance of the matter discussed in
the "“Basis of Adverse Opinion” paragraph, the financial statements
referred to above do not present fairly, the financial position of the
City of Rio Dell as of June 30, 2013 and 2012, or the changes in
financial position or cash flows thereof for the year then ended.

Unmodified Opinion

In our opinion, except as discussed in the preceding paragraph, the
financial statements referred to above present fairy, in all material
reapects, the financial position of the Transportation Fund of the City
of Rio Dell as of June 30, 2013 and 2012, and the changes in financial
position thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Our audit was also made for the purposes of determining compliance with
the Transportation Development Act Sections 99234, 959400 (a), and
99260.7, the California Administrative Code and the rules and regulations
of the Humboldt County Association of Governments. In our audit we
performed to the extent applicable, the tasks contained in Sections 6666
and 6667 of the California Administrative Code.

In our opinion, the funds described above were expended in conformance
with applicable laws, rules, and regulations of the Transportation
Development Act and the allocation instructions of the Humboldt County
Association of Governments.

Arderson, Lucas, Somowille, & Borges

October 2, 2013
Fortuna, California

32



CITY OF RIO DELL

TRANSPORTATION DEVELOPMENT ACT FUNDS
COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEET

Pertaining to Sections 99260(a), 99400(a) and 99400 (c)
of the Public Utilities Code

June 30, 2013 and 2012

2013 2012
ASSETS
Cash $(105,190) $ 10,123
Other receivables 855 2,389
TDA funds receivable 101,440 0
Prepaid expenses 521 563
TOTAL ASSETS $ 52!374) $ 13,075
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE
Liabilities:
Accounts payable s 1,309 S 2,696
Accrued wages 0 0
Total Liabilities s 1,309 S 2,696
Fund Balance (Deficit):
Restricted:
ADHC Program ] 0 $ 0
TDA Programs (Note 10) (3,683) 10,375
Total Fund Balance (Deficit) S_ (3,683) $_10,379
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE (DEFICIT) $ 52!374) $_13,075

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

Page 3 of 6



CITY OF RIO DELL
TRANSPORTATION DEVELOPMENT ACT FUNDS
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

Pertaining to Sections 99260(a), 99400(a) and 99400 (c)
of the Public Utilities Code

For the Year Ended June 30, 2013

With Comparative Amounts for the Year Ended June 30, 2012

2013
Variance
2013 Favorable 2012
Budget Actual (Unfavorable) Actual
REVENUES

Intergovernmental:

TDA revenues $ 63,271 $ 61,688 $ (1,583) $ 63,702

HTA assessment 30,229 33,252 3,023 30,22°

ADHC claim 6,500 6,500 0 6,500

Interest 15 0 (15) 0

Other income 0 51 57 2,369

Total $ 100,015 $_101,497 $ 1,482 $102,800
EXPENDITURES

HTA assessment $ 30,404 $ 33,252 $ (2,848) $ 30,229

ADHC program 6,500 6,500 0 6,500

Street projects 62,235 59, 688 2,547 63,552

Capital outlay 21,144 16,119 5,025 100,281

Total $_.120,283 $ 115,559 S 4,724 $200,562
EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER

EXPENDITURES $ (20,268) $ (14,062) § 6,206 $ 2,518
FUND BALANCE -

BEGINNING OF YEAR 10,379 10,379 0 7,860
PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENT 0 0 0 0
FUND BALANCE (DEFICIT) -

END OF YEAR (Note 10) $_(9,889) $_ (3,683) § 6.206 $.10,379

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

Page 4 of 6



NOTE 1 =~

NOTE 2 -

NOTE 3 -

NOTE 4 -

CITY OF RIO DELL
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the Year Ended June 30, 2013

REPORTING ENTITY:

These financial statements consist only of the Transportation Fund of
the City of Rio Dell. This governmental-type Special Revenue Fund
accounts for various transit and street-related activities provided by
the City and is financed with Transportation Development Act monies.

BASIS OF ACCOUNTING:

The Transportation Fund of the City of Rio Dell is accounted for using
the modified accrual basis of accounting whereby revenues are
recognized when they become both measurable and available to finance
expenditures of the current period and expenditures are generally
recognized when the related fund liabilities are incurred.

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICES:

Under Sections 99260(a), 99400(a) and 99%400(c) of the Transportation
Development Act, the City of Rio Dell claims and expends funds in
order to provide the following services and programs:

1. Participation and support of the Redwood Transit System, which
provides fixed-route transit service to the City’s residents;

2. An ongoing road maintenance and repair program which is partially
funded with TDA monies;

3s Participation and support of the Adult Day Health Care Program
transit operations, which provides demand responsive services to
elderly and handicapped residents of the City (see Note 5)

STREET FUND EXPENDITURES:

For the years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012, in addition to the
directly charged transit costs, expenditures were allocated to the TDA
fund as part of an overall City expenditure allocation analysis.
Overall street expenditures were allocated based on specific
percentages developed by the City. The street expenditures were
tested in total and all amounts charged to the TDA fund were found to
be qualified street and road expenditures.

Page 5 of 6



NOTE 5 -

NOTE 6 -

NOTE 7 -

NOTE 8 -

NOTE 9 -

NOTE 10-

CITY OF RIO DELL
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the Year Ended June 30, 2013

ADULT DAY HEALTH CARE PROGRAM:

During the year ended June 30, 2013, the City of Rio Dell expended

$6,500 for transit costs related to the Adult Day Health Care Program.
This matched the contract amount of $6,500 per year for the year ended
June 30, 2013. These funds are claimed under Article 8, Section
99400(c), and the City received $6,500 in funds for this purpose
during the 2012-13 fiscal year.

CONTRACTS WITE TRANSIT OPERATORS:

The City claims monies under Section 99400 (c) of the Transportation
Development Act. This section requires that the City have a contract
with any entity providing transportation services to the City.

For the years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012, the City did obtain a
formal contract agreement with the Adult Day Health Care, and was
therefore in compliance with Section 99400(c) of the Transportation
Development Act.

REQUIRED ANNUAL REPORT TO STATE CONTROLLER:

Section 99406 of the Public Utilities Code requires that entities file
an annual report of expenditures of monies received for street and
highway purposes with the State Controller’s Office by the annual
filing deadline for each fiscal year.

The annual report for the year ended June 30, 2013 was filed prior to
the State Controller’s office filing deadline.

USE OF ESTIMATES:

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally
accepted accounting principles requires management to make estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the
date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues
and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ
from those estimates.

INTEREST INCOME APPORTIONMENT:

The City follows the practice of apportioning interest income amongst
each respective fund as part of a quarterly journal entry. An
appropriate amount of interest income was apportioned to the
Transportation Fund for the year ended June 30, 2013 and 2012.

FUND DEFICIT:

As of June 30, 2013, the Transportation Fund of the City of Rio Dell
was reporting a deficit Fund Balance of $3,683. During the current
2013-14 year, the City is claiming and receiving approximately $14,000
of TDA funds in excess of their budgeted TDA expenditures in order to
cover this fund deficit.

Page 6 of 6

36



675 Wildwood Avenue
Rio Dell, Ca 95562
(707) 764-3532

CITY OF RIO DELL
STAFF REPORT
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA
December 17,2013
TO: Mayor and Members of the City Council
THROUGH: Q;etch, City Manager
FROM: Rick Chicora, Wastewater Superintendent

DATE: January 7, 2014
SUBJECT: Bio Solids Giveaway Program

RECOMMENDATIONS

Continue the discussion on this topic to January 21, 2014.

BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION

CiTY OF

RI
DeLL

-—-—.—&
CALFQOaNA

The City Council received the attached staff report on December 17, 2013 that included the
recommendation to: “Authorize the giveaway of the wastewater plant’s Exceptional Quality
Class A Bio Solids to City residents as first priority, and to other county residents as a second
priority if required to dispose of excess biosolids product.” The motion failed to pass, at which
time the Council asked that additional information be developed for reconsideration at the next

meeting.

The Wastewater Superintendent is still researching the topic and hopes that the Water Quality
Control Board staff can add to our knowledge base, but they have been away during the holidays.
Accordingly, it is recommended that the Council continue the discussion on the giveaway of the
wastewater system’s Class “A” biosolids to City residents, or other county residents, until the

meeting of January 21, 2014.

37



CITY OF

675 Wildwood A R'I O
UHAWOo0 veniie
Rio Dell, Ca 95562 DE LL

(707) 764-3532 T CALFOANA
CITY OF RIO DELL
STAFF REPORT
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA
December 17,2013
TO: Mayor and Members of the City Council

THROUGH: Jim Stretch, City Manager

FROM: Rick Chicora, Wastewater Superintendent
DATE: December 17, 2013

SUBJECT: Bio Solids Giveaway Program
RECOMMENDATIONS

Authorize the giveaway of the wastewater plant’s Exceptional Quality Class A Bio Solids to City
residents as first priority, and to other county residents as a second priority if required to dispose
of excess biosolids product.

BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION

As the Council may recall, the City entered into an agreement with Hank Brenard Environmental
to purchase our biosolids for $40.00 a ton. After a number of attempts to reach him failed, we
contacted several landscaping businesses, but could not find a market for our product. During
this period, the biosolids product has been accumulating and now has become a burden. We
would like the Council’s permission to go in a different direction.

After exploring different ideas with other plant operators in the area, it is proposed that the City
establish a program similar to Fortuna’s whereby we offer our Class A biosolids to City residents
free, with proof of residency, on a first come first serve basis. If we get to a point where the
demand for the product is less than our production, then the program would be expanded to
Humboldt County residents outside of the City.

Staff proposes to advertise these giveaways on the City’s website and will post the event around
the community. If that doesn’t produce satisfactory results, we can advertise in the Humboldt
Beacon. Each person that comes to the plant at the Corporation Yard to receive the biosolids
would be required to sign the attached hold harmless (release of liability) agreement, and supply
a tarp to cover the material during transport.

38



Since the plant only produces about 2 yards of biosolids a week, these free events would
generally occur every few months. The free biosolids events will occur during the normal work
week at the Corporation Yard, so no additional staff cost will occur.

BUDGETARY IMPACT
No revenue from the sale of biosolids was anticipated in the 2013-14 budget and no extra salaries

are to be paid to administer the program. Thus, there is no financial impact from the program.
However, there would be a budget impact if we have to pay to dispose of the material.

ATTACHMENTS:

1. Hold Harmless Agreement
2. Newspaper Ad if required

39



HOLD HARMLESS, INDEMNIFICATION, AND RELEASE AGREEMENT

This Agreement is executed on this day of , 2013, by and between the City of Rio Dell, a
municipal corporation of the State of California, hereinafter called CITY, and
, herein called RELEASOR.
WITNESSETH

WHEREAS, City produces biosolids from its wastewater treatment facility, which solids are regulated by the
California EPA (Cal EPA) and the North Coast Regional Water Quality Control Board (NCRWQCB); and

WHEREAS, said biosolids meet the "Class A, Exceptional Quality" criteria of the Cal EPA 503 Regulations,
with regards to concentrations of regulated metals, pathogen reduction, and vector attractions reduction; and

WHEREAS, Releasor desires to receive from City said biosolids for their personal application, and

WHEREAS, City is requiring Releaser to enter into this Hold Harmless, Indemnification, and Release
Agreement for the receipt of said biosolids as specified herein;

Now, THEREFORE, it is MUTUALLY AGREED as follows:

Releasor, their successors and assigns, in consideration of City agreeing to give free of charges Releasor
biosolids, agrees to indemnify, release, hold harmless and to defend the City, its officers, officials, employees and
agents from and against any and all claims for damages, losses and expenses, including attorney fees arising out of
Releasor's use of biosolids described herein, which may be made by reason of death, personal injury or damage to
property sustained by any person, firm, or corporation, arising directly or indirectly from or in connection with
claims related to possession or use of biosolids..

I agree, for myself, my successors and assigns, to indemnify, release, hold harmless and to defend the City, its
officers, officials, employees, and agents from and against any and all claims for damages, losses, and expenses
including attorney fees arising out of the application of biosolids to my land, which may be made by reason of
death, personal injury, or damage to property sustained by any person, firm, or corporation, arising directly or
indirectly from or in connection with claims related to the possession or application of biosolids to my land.

This release is intended to discharge the City, it officers, officials, and employees from and against any and all
liability arising out of or connected in any way with the application of biosolids to my land, even though that
liability may arise out of negligence or carelessness on the part of the City of its officials, officers, employees or
agents.

In witness whereof, the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be executed the day and year first above
written.

Signed: Dated:

Wastewater Superintendent
City of Rio Dell

Releasor Signature
Print Name and Address:

Name: Address:

City: State: Zip: Phone:

Address where biosolids product will be applied as soil amendment

40



CiTy Or

RIO

5 Wilwd \'enue 7

Rio Dell, CA 95562 . |
(707) 764-3532 DEL
—
CALEFCRANIA

To:  Karen Dunham, City Clerk
From: Rick Chicora, Wastewater Superintendent
Date: 12/10/13

Subject: Ad for Rio Dell Bio Solids Giveaway

Could you please arrange to have this ad appear in the Humboldt Beacon.

The City of Rio Dell will be hosting a week long give away of biosolids for Rio Dell residents
only on Monday January 6" thru 10™ or until the supply is gone. The availability of the biosolids
product will be on a first come first serve basis and quantities per trip, parcel or residence may be
limited by the City.

This Exceptional Quality Class A Biosolids is intended for the beneficial reuse as a soil
amendment at a place of residence and may not be sold or applied on a property other than the
property identified in the release of liability. Loading hours will be 9:00 am to 3:30 pm each day
at the Rio Dell Wastewater Treatment Plant which is located at 475 Hilltop Drive, Rio Dell, CA.

All persons that appear to receive a load of biosolids must sign a “hold harmless” release of
liability and provide proof of residency if it is a City only noticed event. Drivers must have tarps
for covering the material while transporting from the facility. More information is available by
calling 764-5754.

41



42



CITY OF

Rio Dell City hall R.l O
675 Wildwood Avenue D E LL

Rio Dell, CA 95562 —
(707) 764-3532 CALFOANIA
riodellcity.com

January 7, 2014

TO: Honorable Mayor and City Council Members

FROM: @;tch, City Manager

SUBJECT:  Status Report on Wastewater Rate Study

IT IS RECOMMENDED THAT THE CITY COUNCIL:

Receive and file this report

BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION

SPECIAL NOTE

This is a status report prepared for the Council information and is not advertised or intended to
reopen the policy issues debated and settled by the Council over the last 7 months.

THE FULL HISTORY

As the Council may recall, an agreement with Bartle Wells Associates (BWA) was approved on
November 20, 2012 to conduct a wastewater rate study to focus on the equitability between
various classes of customers and to develop-volume based wastewater rates.

On January 3, 2013 the Council approved an amendment to the BWA agreement to also include
the review for updating the wastewater connection fee that had not been revised in 26 years.

Bartle Wells Associates produced a draft report for review on May 1, 2013, received by the
Council on the agenda of June 18, 2013. The Council approved on a 5-0 vote to proceed with
Option 1, which was to allocate 70% of wastewater cost to the fixed charges and 30% of the cost
based on volume. Staff was requested to develop additional information based on questions
asked by the Council. The Council’s motion included the directive to proceed with the
recommended fee of $5,220 for new connections to the system.

On August 6, 2013 the City Council received answers to their questions and a lengthy discussion
ensued. Additional questions were raised and the Council asked that BWA return for another
study session and that the wastewater connection fee be separated from the Proposition 218

43



process for the wastewater rate issue. From the discussion it was apparent that the Council was
split on implementing the recommended wastewater rate study.

On September 3, 2013 the City Manager placed an item on the agenda, asking the Council if it
wished to refocus its instruction to the Consultant’s for the study methodology. A majority of the
City Council felt that the study parameters should not be changed.

Also on September 3, 2013, after learning that connection fees are not subject to the Proposition
218 process, a noticed public hearing was held for the introduction and first reading of Ordinance
307-2013 to increase the wastewater connection fee from $950 to $5,220 as recommended by
BWA, based on wastewater system replacement costs, less depreciation.

On September 17, 2013 Doug Dove of BWA made a power point presentation of the study
recommendations and addressed each question that was submitted prior to the meeting and many
others that developed during the 1 hour discussion. In the end, a majority of the Council was
satisfied with the recommendations and asked staff to identify the key points of the session,
which was done via email on September 19, 2013 (attached).

Also on September 17, 2013 the City Council conducted the second reading and public hearing
on Ordinance 307-2013. Receiving no opposition, the Ordinance was adopted to become
effective on October 17, 2013.

The next steps required to move the implementation of the wastewater rate study forward was to
critically review the pertinent Rio Dell Municipal Code sections for amendment in order to
implement the recommendation of the BWA study and the key points agreed to by the Council.
Then with Council approval of the draft language, the Proposition 218 public hearing process
would be advertised and conducted. However, due to substantial staff turnover in the Finance
Department and the press of business related to audits, grant program management and mid-year
reports, the draft language needed to implement the wastewater rate study became less of a
priority. Then, the Director of Finance announced that she had accepted a similar position with
the City of Millbrae and would be leaving December 20, 2013.

On December 17, 2013 the City Council approved an amendment to the agreement with Bartle
Wells Associates (attached) to finalize the study, prepare revisions to the City Municipal Code as
required to implement the study and to prepare the Proposition 218 notice and to attend the
public hearing.

STATUS OF PROJECT

The status of the project at this time is that BWA intends to have the draft language for the Code
amendments prepared for the meeting of January 21, or February 4, 2014. The Proposition 218
notices will also be prepared and submitted to the City Attomey for his approval as to legal form.

It is recommended that this status report be received and filed by the Council.

44



Stephanie Beauchaine

From: Doug Dove [ddove@bartlewells.com]

Sent: Thursday, September 19, 2013 11:18 AM

To: 'Stephanie Beauchaine’; 'Jim Stretch'

Cc: Alison Lechowicz

Subject: Key Points from Workshop for Developing Final Rate Recomendations

Stephanie and Jim,
Here are the key points | came away with after Tuesday’s Council workshop.

1. Use the 70%/30% fixed/volumetric rate alternative (I did not detect any objection to this)

2. Use 3 month winter water use average to estimate residential wastewater flow {Dec, Jan, Feb)

3. Use a cap of 15 hcf for volumetric charge (use of a cap is very common and reflects the limitations of estimating
wastewater flow from water consumption records)

4. Allow an adjustment process for customers that have “legitimate” leaks

5. New residential accounts will be billed based on the city-wide residential average until a usage history is
established

6. New commercial accounts at existing locations will be billed based on prior business’s water consumption unless
the new business is significantly different than the old

7. For brand new commercial businesses, city engineer will estimate flows and strengths for initial billings until a
usage history is established.

8. Wastewater customers will be placed into four standard strength classifications (low, domestic, medium and
high)

9. For unusual customers such as a brand new industrial business with unique flows and loadings, provide the
option to have the city engineer estimate the wastewater flows and loadings on a case by case basis

10. Residential bills can be held in the tenant’s name (with property owner consent) but the property owner is
ultimately liable for any unpaid bills.

Let me know if I've misunderstood or missed anything from the workshop. Ultimately, | would like to prepare a revised
rate study report incorporating the input received at the workshop. I'm envisioning a rate adoption process in the
spring based on the average winter water use of Dec 13 ~ Feb 14.

Regards,
Doug

Douglas R. Dove, President
Bartle Wells Associates
1889 Alcatraz Ave
Berkeley, CA 94703

T (510) 653-3399 Ext. 110
www.bartlewells.com

45



1889 Alcatraz Avenue
BARTLE WELLS ASSOCIATES Berkeley, CA 94703

INDEPENDENT PUBLIC FINANCE ADVISORS T: 510-653-3399
www.bartlewells.com

December 9, 2013

Stephanie Beauchaine, Finance Director
675 Wildwood Avenue
Rio Dell, CA 95562

Re: City of Rio Dell Wastewater Rate and Capacity Fee Study

Dear Stephanie:

According to Bartle Wells Associates’ billing records, we have exceeded the total fee of $26,750, but we
have not completed the Wastewater Rate and Capacity Fee Study. The rate study has taken longer than
what was contemplated in BWA’s proposal and there was more financial analysis than originally
estimated. There are several remaining tasks that City Staff has requested that Bartle Wells Associates
complete in order to finalize the rate study.

1) Finalize the Wastewater Rate and Capacity Fee Study Report

2) Prepare revisions to City resolutions, ordinances, and municipal code related to sewer service
charges and capacity fee

3) Prepare the Proposition 218 notice

4) Attend the Proposition 218 hearing

BWA’s fee to complete these tasks is $4,500. Our fee assumes that the City will be responsible for
postage and mailing of the Proposition 218 hearing notices. We look forward to completing the rate
study and working with City Staff.

Very truly yours,

BARTLE WELLS ASSOCIATES

DAL 2

Doug Dove, CIPFA
Principal

46



CiTY OF

e RIO
Rio Dell City hall
675 Wildwood Avenue D E l.JL
"*—

Rio Dell, CA 95562 il
(707) 764-3532 CALFQANIA
riodellcity.com

January 7, 2014

TO: Honorable Mayor and City Council Members

FROM: Jim @, City Manager

SUBJECT: Contract with Avery Associates for City Manager Recruitment

IT IS RECOMMENDED THAT THE CITY COUNCIL:

1. Approve a $16,900 professional services agreement with Avery Associates for City
Manager recruitment with out—of—pocket expenses not to exceed $7,500; total cost not to
exceed $24,400.

BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION

The City has received proposals from (2) Executive Recruiters to handle the recruitment of the
new Rio Dell City Manager. The proposals are from Avery Associates out of Los Gatos and CPS
HR Consulting based in Sacramento. Both firms are capable of providing excellent services for
the City as noted in their attached proposals. Their approach and time line for the recruitment is
quite similar and so is their price at $24,400 and $24,000 respectively.

The most notable difference between the firms is the number of City Manager recruitments either
recently conducted or presently underway in California. CPS-HR lists 13 executive recruitments
over the last 2-3 years with 6 occurring in Arizona and Nevada and 7 being city and county
managers. Avery Associates have 6 City Manager recruitments presently underway; just
completed 3 others and handled a total of 15 City Manager searches in California over the last 2
years.

Avery Associates appears to have the edge over CPS-HR in that they have more recent City
Manager recruitments in California and therefore have a more current and active data base of
potential City Manager candidates to utilize in our search.

It is recommended that the City contract with Avery Associates to conduct the recruitment for
Rio Dell’s new City Manager.

47



AVERY

Los Gatos ¢ San Luis Obispo
December 5, 2013

Jim Stretch, City Manager
City of Rio Dell

675 Wildwood Ave.

Rio Dell, CA 95562

Dear Mr. Stretch:

We are pleased to submit our proposal for the recruitment of the new City Manager for the City
of Rio Dell. We take great pride in providing our clients exceptional service and excellent
results. These successful client partnerships result from an active and comprehensive level of
Principal involvement leading to positive business relationships and highly satisfied clients.

We feel well suited to support your recruitment needs in this assignment. Our firm has extensive
experience in City Manager recruitments. Currently, we are at various stages of City Manager
searches for the cities of South San Francisco, San Mateo, Sunnyvale, Monterey, Lynwood and
Hollister and have recently completed City Manager assignments for the cities of Pacifica and
Emeryville, and the County Executive Officer for the County of Santa Barbara. During the past
24 months we have also completed City Manager recruitments for the cities of Chico, Los Altos,
Riverbank, Menlo Park, Dixon and Greenfield. As a result of these assignments, we have a
current and active database of City Manager candidates that would be utilized in this search.

Our extensive database of executives in municipal government provides an excellent foundation
for the outreach efforts we describe in our proposal. We’ve also had extensive interaction with
City Councils, City Managers and Assistant City Managers based on our labor relations practice.
All of these contacts would be an excellent resource in support of this recruitment.

Following review of our proposal, it is our hope that our history of successful recruitments, our
professionalism, and positive results we have delivered for our clients will provide the basis for
selection of our firm. The enclosed proposal contains the following information:

« Company Overview

» Firm Qualifications/Experience
* Recruitment Team

* Recruitment Strategy

« References

* Recruitment Schedule

William Avery & Associates, Inc.
Consultants to Management

3-1/2 N. Santa Cruz Ave., Suite A
Los Gatos, CA 95030
408.399.4424

Fax: 408.399.4423
WWW.averyassoc.net



e Consulting Fee
e Guarantees & Ethics
e Profiles

Thank you for the opportunity to be considered for this recruitment. If you have any questions,
please do not hesitate to call me at 408-399-4424.

Sincerely,

Paul Kimura

PK:jmc

49



PROPOSAL FOR THE CITY OF RIO DELL
RECRUITMENT FOR THE CITY MANAGER

William Avery & Associates, Inc. — Overview

William Avery & Associates, Inc. (Avery Associates) is a successful and service focused
Management Consulting firm based in Los Gatos, California. Incorporated in 1982, the firm
specializes in Executive Search, Labor Relations and Human Resources/Management
Consulting.

The firm currently includes two Principals and several key consultants. Bill Avery, the founder
of Avery Associates, heads the firm. He oversees the Labor Relations practice and also leads
key searches. Paul Kimura is the Principal who oversees the Executive Search and Recruitment
practice. Key staff members include Ann Slate, who supports the search practice and the firm’s
administrative staff includes Anne Matteini, the Finance/Contracts Administrator, and Jackie
Collins and Jessica Towner. Temporary staff as needed augments the team.

Mr. Avery, having served in the past as a City Manager, provides the firm with direct experience
and knowledge of city administration. Mr. Kimura’s expertise in executive, technical and
business recruitment, which he gained during his nineteen years of high technology experience,
provides the basis for many of the recruitment strategies and tactics utilized by the firm.
Collectively and combined, the firms Principals offer exceptional expertise in the area of public
sector recruitment and consulting. Their professional profiles are enclosed as part of this
proposal.

Firm Qualifications/Experience — What Differentiates Avery Associates

Exceptional service delivery and a very high quality work product provide excellent results for
our clients. This begins with the initial client meetings, which lead to detailed timelines for
deliverables followed by weekly recruitment status updates following initiation of the search.
Our candidate outreach efforts are professionally and confidentially conducted. The evaluation
materials we provide clients are routinely characterized as accurate, comprehensive and of very
high quality. We believe more so than any other public sector recruitment firm. This is largely
based on our interview system utilizing behavioral interview techniques, which we describe in
our recruitment plan. This leads to a quality product with excellent end results for our clients.

The service element is based on two factors: The first is the collective service philosophy from
all of our organizational team members. They are each dedicated to providing service and
support to clients. The second factor is based on the high level of engagement and participation
from the firm Principals in every search assignment. This hands-on involvement includes client
interface, identifying and developing the ideal candidate profile and position specification,
development of the search strategy, candidate outreach, interviewing and assessment, completion
of reference interviews, candidate presentation, final interview facilitation and when desired,
negotiation of employment terms with the successful candidate.

50



Recruitment Strategy and Services Provided

L

IL.

Position Profile and Organizational Assessment

The initial assessment phase is a critical component of the search process. Mr. Kimura
will meet with the key decision makers to discuss the organizational needs and position
requirements and to formalize the job description.

In this assignment we would anticipate Mr. Kimura having individual meetings with the
City Council and with key staff members to solicit their views on the ideal candidate. If
desired, the team would also meet with community groups and key stakeholders
identified by the City. Community/stakeholder input can occur in several ways. Most of
our clients utilize either one or a combination of the following approaches: (1) Creation
of an online survey that is accessible to the public through the City's website; (2)
Convening a community meeting to solicit input on the ideal qualifications and attributes
for the city manager; (3) Council identifies representatives from the community who
would then be contacted and "interviewed" by the consulting firm; or (4) Creation of a
link from the City's website to an Avery email box for forwarding direct input.

Our goal for this aspect of the recruitment process is to:

e Understand the City priorities for this position.

e Develop a clear understanding and consensus on the expertise, experience,
education, performance attributes and operational style of the ideal candidate.

e Discuss the goals, objectives, deliverables, and challenges related to this
position.

e Gain insight of the various organizational dynamics and departmental issues
that exist within the organization.

¢ Identify the compelling aspects to this opportunity.

The formal position description and a subsequent ideal candidate profile would be
developed from the above discussions and incorporated into the formal position
announcement. The candidate profile is also utilized in various other means as a
marketing tool, for advertising copy, postings, and for other announcements.

Development of the Search Strategy

Our search strategy will be developed in conjunction with the organizational assessment.
The final approach is based on your input and considerations during the assessment
activity. For this assignment, we feel it is critical to develop a high level of visibility

51



III.

with a comprehensive outreach program supplemented by a focused targeted recruitment
approach. It is our experience that despite extensive mailing, postings and
announcements, many qualified individuals will not know of a position being available.
We would incorporate the following elements into this search:

« Development of a targeted candidate list based on our extensive database of key
executive contacts, referrals and recommendations from key sources, and other
current and former City Management personnel who have extensive contacts and
networks in this area.

« Direct outreach and contact to various city managers and city/county executives who
could be viable candidates for the position. This allows us to contact and market the
position to potential candidates that are not actively seeking new opportunities. This
aspect of outreach is essential to the success of the recruitment as many times, the
successful candidate is not looking for another opportunity or is not aware the
opportunity exists. Our role is to actively and aggressively, yet professionally,
identify and contact individuals that meet the position specifications.

e To ensure we create as much visibility to the position as possible. This includes an
extensive mailing campaign to current city managers in the state and where possible
utilizing email blasts to city management membership. Additionally, we would
utilize Internet posting on sites such as the ICMA, Western City and other
appropriate online sites. We would also use print advertising the ICMA newsletter,
Jobs Available and if turn around time allows for it, Western City magazine.

Candidate Assessment

Our assessment process involves several “tiers” of evaluation. All candidates responding to
this position will initially be evaluated based on their resume and if appropriate, an extensive
phone “‘screening” by a member of the project team. Candidates who pass the initial
“qualifying” criteria are then scheduled for a formal interview with Mr. Kimura. These
extended personal interviews typically take one hour and a thorough discussion of their
experience, accomplishments, management philosophy and interpersonal style takes place.

In interviewing candidates, we utilize a methodology based on “behavioral” interview
techniques. Fundamentally, this approach explores a candidate’s past accomplishments
and experiences that relate to the position being considered. The philosophy here is that
the best indicator of future performance is to evaluate past behavior. This methodology
allows the firm to “project” how a candidate would approach and address the key
challenges in the new position.

Those individuals who best fit the position requirements will have a Candidate
Assessment Report developed by the Principal who conducted the interview.
Additionally, two initial reference interviews are performed on these candidates. The
reference interviews provide our clients with additional insights on the candidate’s
“behavior” and style.

52



IV.

VL

Candidate Presentation

Upon completion of formal interviews, a selection of candidates for presentation is made.
We feel our extensive qualification, interview, and reference interviewing process and the
knowledge gained during our initial assessment period; enable our client to proceed with
fewer rather than more finalists. However, we will not restrict or limit the number of
candidates recommended as this decision is related to the overall strength and depth of
the candidate pool.

The final candidates are presented in our extensive candidate presentation “book”. Each
finalist will have a file consisting of a candidate summary sheet, the submitted cover
letter and resume, the Candidate Assessment Report (based on the “behavioral”
interview), and two candidate reference interviews. This extensive profile on each
recommended candidate continually generates positive feedback from our clients as it
provides extensive detail beyond just a resume.

The Candidate book also identifies other candidates who were given secondary
consideration, which provides the client insight on others who were interviewed. Candidate
summary sheets are created for everyone who submitted a resume would also be included.
This provides the client an insight to the level and nature of response for their position.

Selection Process

Once the final candidate interview group is identified, we will assist in the structuring of
the interview process and coordinate the interview scheduling activity. Our firm will also
provide candidates with guidance related to travel planning, hotel accommodations, as
well as other interview planning issues. Our firm will also develop potential interview
questions and be in attendance during final interviews to help facilitate the process and to
lead an end of day debrief and evaluation process.

Upon request, our firm will also arrange for summary background evaluations on the
City's final one or two candidates. A copy of these confidential reports can be provided
for you. The costs for these investigations are considered independent of the recruitment
expenses listed below and will be invoiced separately.

Position Closure and Follow-Up

Based on the firm’s experience in human resource management and executive search, we are
able to assist our clients in formulating appropriate compensation and other employment
arrangements. We will be available throughout our retention to assist in this process.

As a matter of policy, Avery Associates monitors the transition and progress of any
executive we place with a client. Within the first three to six months following the hired
individual joining the City, we will speak with that individual to ensure the transition has
effectively occurred. During the same period we will also review the individual’s status
with your office.

53



References

L. City of Culver City
Jeffrey Cooper, Mayor; 310.253.6041
Michael O'Leary, Council Member; 310.754.9787
John Nachbar, City Manager; 310.253.6000
Serena Wright, Personnel Director; 310.253.5640

IL. Town of Los Gatos
Joe Pirzynski, Council Member; 408.356.3024
Greg Larson, Town Manager; 408.354.6837

III.  City of Los Altos
Valerie Carpenter, Council Member; 650.941.0487

Recruitment Schedule

Task Scheduled Dates

Search Initiation, Marketing & Advertising Development: Weeks I - 4

= [Initial meetings with City Council, staff; key
stakeholders/community to define the ideal candidate
profile

s Develop working draft of the recruitment brochure for
approval by client

® Recruitment strategy finalized

=  Determination of advertising scope and placement

deadlines
*  Brochure designed and printed
Marketing, Advertisement and Outreach Period: Weeks 4 - 10

Advertise in:

*  Mailing to City Managers

v Jobs Available

= Western City

s ICMA newsletter and website

» City Management Internet advertising
Preliminary candidate screening

Candidate Review - Screening and Finalists Selection Weeks 6 - 10
Development and finalization of Oral Board Interview process Weeks 11-13
and interview questions

Oral Board Interviews with City Council Week 14
Department Head/Finance Staff/Council and/or Community Week 14-15

representative interviews with finalists (if desired)

54



Task Scheduled Dates
Final interviews and reference checks Week 16
Appointment Offer/Acceptance Week >17
Report to Work Date Week >17
Consulting Fee

Based on the services described in our proposal, the professional services consulting fee for this
recruitment will be $16,900. If awarded the search, we would request an initial retainer of $6,900
at the outset of the search. A second invoice of $5,000 would be submitted upon the Clients
acceptance of a finalist candidate group. The final balance of $5,000 would be invoiced upon
acceptance of a job offer constituting completion of the search. Our invoicing models ensures
the firm will remain totally committed to the City throughout the duration of the search as the
final invoice is not submitted until the City has an accepted candidate. The consulting fee will be
inclusive of all services defined within this proposal unless otherwise stated.

In addition to the Professional Services Fee, normal and direct out-of-pocket expenses associated
with the search are charged back to the client. Expenses for this assignment would be a not-to-
exceed amount of $7,500 without the express consent of the City. These expenses include:
advertising, clerical time, supplies, printing, telephone, postage, summary background
evaluations, and consultant travel for client discussions, meetings and local or out-of-area
candidate interviews. All expense items will be detailed and billed on a monthly basis.

Guarantees and Ethics

Whenever William Avery & Associates, Inc. is retained; we make several guarantees and
commitments to a client. Due to our experience, knowledge and success within the
management-consulting field, we assure a client that we will only present candidates who meet a
substantial majority of the ideal qualifications that you have outlined. We are also committed to
continue our search efforts until a successful candidate is employed.

During our placement efforts, we openly share any relationships, previous experience and
knowledge for any candidate we present for consideration. Our commitment and responsibility is
to our clients and their best interests.

It is also our practice to replace a candidate who may voluntarily resign during the first year of
his/her employment. This same commitment applies if the client finds it necessary to terminate
or to request the resignation of the selected individual in the first year for reasons which would
have precluded his/her employment had they been known at the time employment started. In
either case, we invoice a client only for out-of-pocket expenses incurred in identifying a
replacement.

55



Avery Profile
William Avery

William Avery founded his successful management consulting firm in 1981. He has directed
William Avery & Associates in service as a Labor Relations and Executive Search consultancy,
serving personally as a chief negotiator, trainer, and representative in grievance and disciplinary
matters.

A specialist and widely recognized expert in employer-employee relations, he has served as a
City Manager (Los Gatos) and Assistant City Manager. While City Manager, he was President
of the Santa Clara County City Manager’s Association and Chair of the County Employee
Relations Service.

Bill has lectured at De Anza College, San Jose State University, and Stanford University, and
regularly makes presentations for the League of California Cities, CALPELRA, and other public
sector organizations.

Building on his personal track record of success, he expanded the firm’s focus to include
increased emphasis on public and private sector search. He added proven industry professionals
with expertise in these areas. The result has been to create an exceptionally strong management
consulting firm, now known as Avery Associates, with the expertise to provide the full range of
services required for successful public or private sector executive search.

A key measure of the firm’s success has been the many long-term relationships that he and his
staff have established with clients.

Bill holds B.A. in Political Science and an MPA from San Jose State University, where he was
graduated with highest honors.

56



Avery Profile
Paul Kimura

Paul Kimura brings a unique combination of recruitment and business experience to Avery
clients.

Paul is involved in leading Avery’s public sector professional searches. He has been both a
corporate recruitment director and HR director for a number of high technology companies,
ranging from Fortune 500 firms such as Novell and National Semiconductor to a Silicon Valley
start-up. His proven recruitment and HR generalist skills help him bring forward the best
available candidates and properly assess their skills and “fit” with client organizations.

Indeed, many of the recruitment strategies and tactics incorporated into the Avery search process
are a direct result of Paul’s extensive recruitment experience in the high technology industry.

Paul has been a successful HR consultant, guiding clients through all aspects of Human
Resources functions — compensation & benefits, employee and management training,
performance management, and termination issues.

He is skilled in areas such as strategic planning, executive coaching, separation negotiation, and
organizational assessment and design. It’s another service that Avery Associates is able to offer
its clients because of the unique background of its principals — and Paul’s extended skill set in
Human Resources underscores the fact that Avery professionals “have been there” and
understand your needs from a personal perspective.

Paul holds a B.S. degree in Business Administration from San Jose State University. He is active
in professional HR organizations and in the community, where he has worked with a number of
education, youth service, civic, business, and cultural organizations.

“Just as Avery looks to form long-lasting relationships with its clients, I believe in making the
same commitments within my community.”

10

57



CPS HR 4 CONSULTING

PROPOSAL

City of Rio Dell

Executive Recruitment for

City Manager

December 6, 2013

SUBMITTED BY:
LINDA KEGERREIS
Chief Workforce Officer

CPS HR Consuliing

241 Lothrop Way

Sacramento, CA 95815

t: 916-471-3470 f: 916-561-7279
kegereis@cpshrus

Tax ID: 68-0067209
WWw.CDshr.us

eis

ST IRRL. ¥ et A y
WAL 53 Ny - SIS e S e el BT Ll s

Your Path to Performance

58



CPS HR <= CONSULTING

December 6, 2013

City of Rio Dell

Jim Stretch

675 Wildwood Avenue
Rio Del, CA 95562

Sent via e-mail to: cm@riodellcity.com
Dear Mr. Stretch:

Thank you for the opportunity to submit a proposal to assist the City of Rio Dell (the “City”) with
the recruitment of a new City Manager. CPS HR Consulting (CPS HR) is extremely qualified to assist
the City with this very important recruitment. We have vast experience in assisting public agencies
with executive search, screening, and placement.

CPS HR offers a broad spectrum of human resource services while delivering personalized, results-
oriented service, utilizing best practice methods of recruitment and selection strategies from our
team of recruitment experts. It is our commitment to work in partnership with your organization
to a successful result.

We possess a number of important strengths to assist the City in accomplishing the goals for this
recruitment, including:

B The successful completion of approximately 1,700 recruitments for more than 600
clients. We have extensive experience in the recruitment of all types of local government,
executive and professional staff, including council/board appointed executives, department
directors, and key professional and management positions. Although our client list covers
a broad range, please note that each recruitment we conduct is uniquely designed to fit the
needs of the individual client and is calculated to provide a strong, competitive pool of
candidates.

B We have extensive experience recruiting for various executives and managers for a variety
of cities, counties, special districts and nonprofit entities. We understand and appreciate
the intricacies of managing the executive recruitment for an organization and bring that
expertise and knowledge to the recruitment process.

B In-depth understanding of all state and local government operations, programs, and
services. This understanding has been gained as consultants to local governments
throughout the United States.

241 Lathrop Way Sacramento, CA 95815 ¢ 916.263 3600 . 916 2463 3013 www.cps.ca.gov

Page |i

59



CPS HR == CONSULTING

Again, thank you for the opportunity to be considered for this assignment. We are prepared to
make the process as smooth as possible for the City of Rio Dell. Should you have questions or
comments about the information presented in this proposal, please contact Pam Derby at 916-
471-3126 or pderby@cpshr.us.

Sincerely,

, N
L Keg
Chief Workforce Officer

211 Lothiop Way Sacramento, CA 95815 + 9146263 35600 f. 916 263 3613 www.cps.ca.gov

Page |ii

60



Proposal to the City of Rio Dell
Executive Recruitment for City Manager

Table of Contents

(@ U gl o { o= 5 (112U SO OO USSR SRR 4
PrOIETEt AUDEIIOICICTY s s e s s s s o sscsss's s 455 534544455 408 66 EHAS 545 V5 A5H0R 455 45 A 0 03 5
ProJECT TIME LINE ..ttt sttt sttt st e s e s b s sse e s ssaenaens 11

EXOCUNVE REBCIUIIEI suussuummssmsmnasmssmsmosmsmomessssys s s i sss oo s i wsnsisas 12
REFEIEBINCES ...t sttt et s st 14
L@ 13 IO OSSP T SRRSO SIS RRRRUPR 17
Why Choose CPS HR CONSHIIRG ..o smmmiisniiammmmenessssssnssisnisies i iss it shesinanasns sansnamesasassss 18
Appendix A — SAMPIE BIOCHUIE ........cooueiieceecteces ettt se et e e s saa e s ae s 19
CPS HR &= CONSULTING Page [iii

61



Proposal to the City of Rio Dell
Executive Recruitment for City Manager

Our Expertise

CPS HR Consulting has extensive experience in executive recruitment services. Our Joint Powers
Authority Charter specifies that we provide human resources consulting services only to other
public agencies or non-profit organizations. Our wealth of recruitment experience has been
gained through more than 25 years of placing top and mid-level executives in public agencies
throughout the United States.

Our approach to this process is effective for a number of reasons which include:
B Our expert recruiting staff

Our Executive Recruiters possess a high level of expertise in recruiting and placing
qualified managers, directors, and executive professionals. We have a retention rate that
averages more than 5 years. Our staff of experts includes an exceptional group of full
time employees as well as a full complement of subject matter experts, intermittent, and
part-time employees with a wide variety of public and private sector experience. This
allows CPS HR to precisely match the needs of the client with CPS HR’s expertise and
provide a wide range of services.

B High level of client satisfaction

Our Client Satisfaction rating averages 4.6 on a scale of 5. Each of our clients receives a
client satisfaction survey at the end of each engagement to respond to questions on the
quality of our staff, our deliverables and the overall consulting relationship. The answers
to these questions are then compiled and analyzed to identify client satisfaction ratings
which are used as a factor within the CPS HR performance management system. The
ratings are weighted very highly in each employee’s individual performance plan and
annual performance rating to ensure CPS HR continues to deliver on the high level of
client satisfaction our clients have a right to expect from us.

B We are a public agency

As a public agency ourselves, we understand the challenges and issues you face. We
share a common perspective with our clients; we understand how to work with and
within government. Our consultants are drawn from public and private sector
organizations, and employ strategy, innovation, and flexibility to find candidates who can
work well in such a critical position for the City. We work collaboratively with you to
generate creative and practical solutions. This understanding of public sector culture and
policy sets CPS HR uniquely apart from our competitors.

CPS HR &= CONSULTING Page |4

62



Proposal to the City of Rio Dell
Executive Recruitment for City Manager

Project Approach

Our Understanding of the Work to Be Performed
The City of Rio Dell is interested in selecting an executive search firm to provide recruitment
services for a new City Manager. The City Manager is responsible for the efficient daily operations

of the City and provides planning, supervisory direction and control of all City programs and
services.

Key Stakeholder Involvement

The City Council must be intimately involved in the search for a new City Manager. For this
reason, our approach assumes their direct participation in key phases of the search process,
including the development of the candidate profiles and recruitment strategies, the selection of
final candidates, interviews with the finalists, and ultimately, the selection of a new City Manager.
Additionally, at the discretion of the City Council, other key stakeholders may also be invited to
participate in focus group sessions, or round-table meetings to provide input for the development
of the candidate profile.

City's Needs

A critical first step in a successful executive search is for the City Council to define the professional
and personal qualities required of the City Manager. To be certain this occurs, we have developed
a very effective process that will permit the City Council to clarify the preferred future direction for
the City; the specific challenges the City is likely to face in achieving this future direction; the
working style and organizational climate the City Council wishes to establish with the City
Manager; and ultimately, the professional and personal qualities that will be required of the City
Manager.

Assertive and Proactive Recruitment

The best candidates are often not actively seeking a new position. They may be very satisfied with
their current situation, and may only consider a change if a more attractive career opportunity is
presented to them. Yet, among potential applicants there are those who, though personally
satisfied with their current situation, would rise to the professional challenge and apply for these
positions. Evoking that sense of vision and opportunity in qualified persons is among the
responsibilities of CPS HR. This is why we take an aggressive approach in identifying and recruiting
the best available candidates.

Selection

The selection of the best available candidate requires the use of tools specifically designed to
evaluate each candidate against the personal and professional qualities identified by the City
Council. For this reason, we tailor our selection techniques to the City’s specific requirements. In
addition, we also assume responsibility for administering the selection process for the City.

CPS HR /= CONSULTING Page |5

63



Proposal to the City of Rio Dell
Executive Recruitment for City Manager

Detailed Outline

s

*Develop
Candidate Profile
and Recruitment
Strategy

Phase | / ﬁﬂi@ﬂ&fﬁ .
\ //////’

The executive search process presented below and on the following pages is designed to provide
the City with the full range of services required to ensure the ultimate selection of a City Manager
who is uniquely suited to the City's needs. Our process starts with Phase |, outlined below, where
our consultant will meet with the City Council and other City stakeholders as desired by the City, to
ascertain the City’s needs and ideal candidate attributes, to target our search efforts and maximize
candidate fit with the City. From there, Phase Il outlines the recruiting process, which is tailored to
fit the City’s specific wants and needs, with targeted advertising, combined with personal contacts
with qualified individuals from our database. Finally, in Phase lil, the selection process is also
customized for the City. CPS HR will work with the City Council to determine the process best
suited to the City of Rio Dell.

eRecruitment eSelection

Phase | - Develop Candidate Profile and Recruitment Strategy

Task 1 - Review and Finalize Executive Search Process and Schedule
A critical first step in this engagement is a thorough review of the search process and schedule

with the City Council. This will ensure that the City’s needs are met in the most complete manner
possible.

Task 2 — Additional Key Stakeholder Meetings

As desired by the City, CPS HR is prepared to meet with any additional key stakeholders, to obtain
input in developing the ideal candidate profile and to assist CPS HR in understanding key issues
and challenges that will face a new City Manager. The specific nature of the involvement process
would be developed in consultation with the City. The results of the above activities will be
summarized by CPS HR and provided to the City as an additional source of information for
developing the candidate profile and selection criteria.

CPS HR === CONSULTING Page |6

64



Proposal to the City of Rio Dell
Executive Recruitment for City Manager

Task 3 - Development of Candidate Profile and Recruitment Strategy

This task will be accomplished during a workshop session involving the City Council and CPS HR. It
will result in the identification of the personal and professional attributes required for the
position, and include the following activities:

B The City Council will identify key priorities for the new City Manager.

B CPS HR will assist the City Council in identifying the conditions and challenges likely to be
encountered in achieving the priorities identified above.

B The City Council will describe the type of working relationship they wish to establish with
the City Manager.

B CPS HR will assist the City in generating lists of specific competencies, experiences, and
personal attributes needed by the new City Manager in light of the analyses conducted
above.

B CPS HR will present several recruitment and selection strategies for the City's
consideration. The City will choose the recruitment and selection process most likely to
produce the intended results.

Task 4 — Develop Recruitment Brochure and Place Advertisements

Following the completion of the workshop session, CPS HR will work with a professional graphic
artist to design a recruitment brochure and present it to the City for review prior to printing
(examples of current brochures are available for viewing on our website at www.cpshr.us/Search,
and we have provided a copy of a sample brochure in Appendix A). In addition, advertisements
will be prepared and placed for publication in appropriate magazines, journals, newsletters, job
bulletins, and web sites to attract candidates on a nationwide or targeted basis, depending on the
preference of the City.

CPS HR is focused on reaching a diverse candidate pool and would recommend
publications/websites that are targeted to minority and female candidates. We are proud of our
successful record of assisting our clients with placing over 170 minority and female candidates in
executive positions over the past five years. CPS HR will specifically research other jurisdictions
whose demographics mirror those of the Rio Dell area and target outreach to those individuals. In
addition to placing ads on websites aimed at minority candidates, we will contact leaders within
appropriate associations to gain their perspective and referrals of possible candidates.

The recruitment brochure will also be available on our website, so that interested potential
candidates can access the brochure (a link to the brochure is listed in the advertising).
Additionally, we prepare an e-mail distribution list that is sent to prospective candidates and
referral sources. The e-mail will have a direct link to the brochure embodied in the e-mail
message. We also send letters and brochures directly to prospective candidates and referral
sources soliciting interest in the position.

CPS HR &= CONSULTING Page |7

65



Proposal to the City of Rio Dell
Executive Recruitment for City Manager

Phase Il - Recruitment

Task 1 - Identify and Contact Potential Candidates
This very crucial task will include a variety of activities designed to attract the best available

candidates. In addition to the placement of advertisements in appropriate professional journals,
CPS HR will:

B Contact respected and experienced public sector leaders to identify outstanding potential
candidates on a referral basis. CPS HR maintains a comprehensive, up to date database of
such professionals; however, we do not rely solely upon our current database. We also
conduct specific research to target individuals relevant to your specific needs and
expectations to ensure that we are thorough in our efforts to market this position to the
appropriate audience to garner a diverse and quality pool of candidates. These individuals,
as well as other potential candidates, are typically contacted very soon after they have
received a recruitment brochure in order to maximize the impact of the multiple contacts.

B Select top quality candidates for consideration from past recruitments.

B Provide each potential candidate with a copy of the recruitment brochure transmitted with
a personal letter.

B Contact potential candidates by telephone to explain the career opportunity, answer
questions, and encourage them to submit a resume. Oftentimes this component
necessitates multiple conversations with the same person to pique their interest and to
answer their questions.

As a consulting firm that interacts with hundreds of public sector executives during engagements,
we have a cadre of individuals who we inform of recruitments, both to increase the visibility of the
opening and to attract appropriate individuals who fit the special needs of the client.
Communication with these professionals, both via personal phone call and e-mail, ensures that an
accurate picture of the requirements of the job is apparent and proliferated throughout their
professional networks. The approach utilized by CPS HR employs the following techniques:

B Communicating to candidates, through advertising materials and verbally, a strong sense of
the purpose and strategy of the City. For many talented individuals, understanding these
aspects is one of the key motivators to compete in such an environment.

B Providing guidance and resources to candidates regarding the area’s cost of living, mean
and median housing prices, higher education opportunities, K-12 education information,
and other aspects of interest to those who are considering a move to the area. We have
found that potential candidates sometimes make the decision not to apply based on
rumored information, rather than facts and research.

B Actively seeking individuals who are highly visible in the field ~ widely published, frequent
presenters and/or thought leaders — who are seemingly ready for the challenge. These
highly qualified candidates may be attracted by the prospect of collaboration with other

CPS HR === CONSULTING Page |8

66



Proposal to the City of Rio Dell
Executive Recruitment for City Manager

City departments, providing superior legal advice and counsel to the City of Rio Dell, or
continuing to ensure the public confidence in the integrity of the City.

Task 2 — Resume Review and Screening Interviews

All resumes will be submitted directly to CPS HR for initial screening. This screening process is
specifically designed to assess the personal and professional attributes the City is seeking and will
include:

B A thorough review of each candidate's resume and other supporting materials.

B Personal interviews with the candidates who appear to best meet the City’s needs. This
group typically includes approximately 10-15 candidates. CPS HR will spend extensive time
ascertaining each candidate’s long term career goals and reason(s) why the candidate is
seeking this opportunity, as well as gaining a solid understanding of the candidate’s
technical competence and management philosophy. We will also gather data on any other
unique aspects specific to this recruitment based upon the candidate profile.

B CPS HR will conduct internet research on each candidate interviewed, to include
newspaper articles and blog checks.

CPS HR will conduct as many interviews in person that is reasonable within the timeframe and
pricing matrix established with the City.

Task 3 - City Council Selects Finalists

At the conclusion of the previous tasks, CPS HR will prepare a written report that summarizes the
results of the recruitment processes and typically recommend:s five to eight candidates for further
consideration by the City. This report will include the candidate resumes and a profile on each
interviewee's background. CPS HR will meet with the City Council to review this report and to
assist the Council in selecting a group of finalists for further evaluation.

Phase Ill - Selection

Task 1 - Design Selection Process

Based on the results of the meeting conducted in Phase |, CPS HR will design a selection process to
be utilized by the City in assessing the most qualified final candidates. This process will typically
include an in-depth interview with each candidate, but may also include other selection tools such
as an oral presentation, preparation of written materials and problem-solving exercises. CPS HR
will meet with the City to review this process and discuss the City’s preferred approach in
assessing the final candidates.

CPS HR === CONSULTING Page |9

67



Proposal to the City of Rio Dell
Executive Recruitment for City Manager

Task 2 - Administer Selection Process

CPS HR will coordinate all aspects of the selection process for the City. This includes contacting
both the successful and unsuccessful candidates, preparing appropriate materials such as
interview questions; evaluation manuals; other assessment exercises; facilitating the interviews;
and assisting the City with deliberation of the results of the selection tool(s).

Task 3 - Arrange Follow-up Interviews, Final Assessment Process, In-Depth Reference and
Background Checks)

Following the completion of the selection process, CPS HR will be available to complete the
following components:

B Reference Checks: the in-depth reference checks are a comprehensive 360 evaluation
process whereby we speak with current and previous supervisors, peers and subordinates.
It is our policy to not contact current supervisors until a job offer is made contingent upon
that reference being successfully completed so as not to jeopardize the candidates’ current
employment situation. The candidates are requested to provide a minimum of ten
reference sources. CPS HR is able to ascertain significant, detailed information from
reference sources due to our assurance and commitment to them that their comments
remain confidential which leads to a willingness to have an open and candid discussion
with CPS HR. A written summary of the reference checks is provided to the Client.

B Background Checks: we will arrange for a background records check of an applicant’s
driving record, court and credit history, education verification, newspaper article research
and other sensitive items.

Task 4 - Assist Council in Developing Employment Agreement

Once the City Council has made a selection, CPS HR is available to assist the Council and new City
Manager in developing the terms of an agreement that covers compensation and other terms and
conditions of employment. This process is typically completed in collaboration with appropriate
legal counsel.

Value-Added Customer Service

Throughout the outreach and screening process, we are committed to keeping the City fully
informed of our progress. We will collaborate with you to provide updates on the status of the
recruitment via your preferred method of communication (phone conference, email, etc.). In
addition, during each phase in the process, we are either sending personal letters or initiating
phone calls to candidates advising them of their status. We place a high level of importance on
customer service and responding in a timely manner to all client and candidate inquiries. Our
previous clients and candidates have expressed a sincere appreciation for our level of service and
responsiveness to the management of the recruitment process. As a result, we have many long

CPS HR == CONSULTING Page |10

68



Proposal to the City of Rio Dell
Executive Recruitment for City Manager

term relationships with clients that have resulted in the opportunity to assist them with multiple
recruitments.

Additionally, our follow-up extends once you have selected the new City Manager. We will
contact both the City Council and the newly appointed City Manager within six months of
appointment to ascertain if an effective transition has occurred.

Project Time Line

CPS HR is prepared to begin work upon receipt of a fully-executed contractual agreement. We can
complete all search activities up to and including the selection of a new City Manager in 14 to 16
weeks. The precise schedule will depend on the placement of advertising in the appropriate
professional journals, and the ability to schedule, as quickly as possible, the initial meeting. A
proposed schedule of major milestones is presented below.

P SdEA S £ ! i @ .;f.uua"i.-gd
! .. e did >
Draft Brochure »
f.o. i Approved/P ed >
Aggre e Re g >
D »
® o )
'. ding did >
>
R B ground >
CPS HR &= CONSULTING Page |11

69



Proposal to the City of Rio Dell
Executive Recruitment for City Manager

Executive Recruiter

CPS HR Consulting has uniquely qualified executive recruiters to assist the City. Our staff members
possess extensive recruiting experience and a direct, in-depth understanding of local government.
Each of our recruiters routinely serves as an engagement or project manager and personally
handles every aspect of the executive search process. For this engagement, Ms. Pam Derby will be
assigned as the recruiter. Her resume is presented below.

Pamela H. Derby

Profile

Since joining CPS HR Consulting in 2003, Pam Derby has conducted a wide range of recruitments
for county, city, special district and association executives including city manager, assistant and
deputy city manager, city attorney, executive director, general manager, fire chief, police chief,
community and economic development director, human resource director, finance director, public
works director, registrar of voters, library director, and director of information technology in
addition to specialized support positions.

Prior to joining CPS HR, Ms. Derby served as the Aide to the Yuba County Board of Supervisors
serving as the Board’s liaison to County Department Heads, the community, and the media. This
experience provided her with a unique perspective into the special circumstances that exist in a
Board/Council-Manager relationship and a keen awareness of the inner workings of local
government. She is sensitive to balance the wants of the community with the needs of the City so
as to tailor a recruitment process that reaches out to the most appropriate candidates and ensures
a diverse group of individuals from which to make a selection. She has successfully employed
these techniques in jurisdictions ranging from under 10,000 to 10 million. Moreover, she employs
a firmly-held personal philosophy that candidates must be treated with the same respect and
careful consideration as her client. Previous to her local government service, Ms. Derby served in
the private sector and with several non-profit lobbying associations where she was responsible for
the management of several large consumer groups.

Employment History

B Executive Recruiter, CPS HR Consulting
Professional Management Consultant, CPS HR Consulting
Administrative Technician, CPS HR Consulting
Aide to the Board of Supervisors, Yuba County, CA
Special Cases Manager, Consumer Relations, The Money Store, CA
Supervisor, Trailing Documents, The Money Store, CA

CPS HR == CONSULTING Page |12

70



Proposal to the City of Rio Dell
Executive Recruitment for City Manager

Executive Assistant, Randlett Associates, CA

Professional Experience

Education
4

Project manager for local government, special district and non-profit executive
recruitments. Responsible for all facets of process including proposal interviews, all
client meetings, creating marketing and advertising materials, conducting candidate
screening interviews and developing finalist candidate interview processes.

Assisted executive recruiting team in the recruitment of local government and public
agency executives.

Managed staff responsible for addressing escalated customer complaints. Negotiated
and mediated pre-litigation settlements with attorneys, state regulators, and other
state agencies, involving home improvement loans. Served as department fraud
coordinator.

Provided administrative support to SVP, including drafting correspondence, report
writing and special projects as assigned. Supervised department receptionist,
responsible for interfacing with vendors and facilities management.

Provided administrative and research support for private professional lobbying firm.
Researched legislative bills, corresponded with professional association members
regarding legislative proposals.

California State University, Chico, major course emphasis — Physical Education/
English

CPS HR == CONSULTING Page [13

71



Proposal to the City of Rio Dell
Executive Recruitment for City Manager

References

CPS HR Consulting has excellent references and we encourage you to contact them. We have
listed below some of our recent similar recruitments. We are currently recruiting for a City
Manager for the City of Maricopa, Arizona.

CLIENT POSITION CONTACT

Chandler, AZ, City of City Manager (2011) Jay Tibshraeny
Mayor

480 782-2200

jay.tibshraeny@chandleraz.gov

or

Debra Stapleton

Human Resources Director

480 782-2350

Debra.stapleton@chandleraz.gov

Chandler, AZ, City of Assistant City Manager Rich Dlugas
(2013) City Manager

480 782-2210

Rich.dlugas@chandleraz.gov

or

Debra Stapleton

Human Resources Director

480 782-2350

Debra.stapleton@chandleraz.gov

Coconino County, AZ County Manager (2013) Allison Eckert
Human Resources Director

928 679-7102

aeckert@coconino.az.gov

or

Liz Archuleta

Board Chair

928 679-7152

larchuleta@coconino.az.gov

CPS HR === CONSULTING Page |14



Proposal to the City of Rio Dell
Executive Recruitment for City Manager

CLIENT POSITION CONTACT

Gilbert, AZ, Town of Town Manager (2011) Mark Boynton
Employment Coordinator

480 503-6823

Or

John Lewis

Mayor

480 503-6860

John.Lewis@gilbertaz.gov

Pinal County, AZ County Manager (2010) Pete Rios
Board Chair

520 866-7830

Pete.rios@pinalcountyaz.gov

Reno, NV, City of Assistant City Manager, Renee Rungis
Financial Services (2010) Human Resources Director

775 785-5854

rungisr@reno.gov

Sacramento, City of City Manager (2011) Geri Hamby
Human Resources Director

(916) 808-7173

ghamby@cityofsacramento.org

or

John Shirey

City Manager

(916) 808-7213

jshirey@cityofsacramento.org

California Board of Executive Director Liz Houser
Equalization (2012) Deputy Director of Administration
916 445-4272

Liz.houser@boe.ca.gov

California High-Speed Rail Chief Executive Officer Wendy Boykins
Authority (2012) wboykins@hsr.ca.gov
or

Thomas Fellenz

tfellenz@hs.ca.gov

CPS HR aCONSULTlNG Page |15



Proposal to the City of Rio Dell
Executive Recruitment for City Manager

CLIENT POSITION CONTACT
Delta Stewardship Council Executive Director (2012) Angela D’Ambrosio
Special Assistant to the Executive
Director
916 445-5797
angela.d’ambrosio@deltacouncil.ca.gov
East Bay Regional Parks General Manager (2011) Susan Gonzales

District
Assistant General Manager
(2011)

Human Resources Manager
510 544-2151

sgonzales@ebparks.org

Napa-Vallejo Solid Waste Executive Director (2010)
Management Authority

Mark Luce
Board Chair
707 253-4386

Mark.luce@countyofnapa.org

Nevada Irrigation District General Manager (2013)

Yvonne DuBose
Human Resources Manager
530 271-6838

dubose@nidwater.com

CPS HR == CONSULTING

Page |16

74



Cost

Proposal to the City of Rio Dell
Executive Recruitment for City Manager

Fees for Professional Services

The base professional fee for this executive recruitment
service as outlined is $17,000. Our professional fee covers all
CPS HR services associated with Phases |, Il and lll of the
recruitment process, including the necessary field visits (up to
three) to develop the candidate profile and recruitment
strategy, assist the City in finalist selection, and facilitate
candidate interviews with the City.

Reimbursable Expenses

Actual out-of-pocket expenses for such items as consultant
travel, advertising, marketing, long distance telephone,
printing/copying, and postage/delivery charges are
reimbursable at cost. There is no mark-up on expenses and
we will work proactively with the City to ensure that the
dollars being spent for expenses are in keeping with the City’s

expectations. Travel expenses for candidates who are invited
forward in the interview process are not included under our
reimbursable range. The listed reimbursable expenses range
includes a background check on the selected finalist candidate.

Estimated RANEe .......cccecvreerrrrsnnrencersenrsennennenes $5,000 - $7,000

Professional fees and reimbursable expenses would be billed
and paid monthly.

Approximate recruitment costs include:
Brochure Design and Printing ($1,500)
Advertising ($2,500)

Mailings ($200)

Background check - one candidate ($400)

CPS HR === CONSULTING

CPS HR Consulting
Two-Year Guarantee

If the candidate selected
and appointed by the
City, as a result of a full
executive recruitment,
terminates employment
for any reason before
the completion of the
first two years of service,
CPS HR will provide the
City with whatever
professional services are
required to appoint a
replacement.
Professional consulting
services will be provided
at no cost. The City
would be responsible
only for reimbursable
expenses. The same
applies if the initial
recruitment efforts do
not result in a successful
appointment.

Consultant travel (based on three trips including one overnight - approx. $750)

Other recruitment expenses (supplies, shipping, long distance phone calls - $200)

Page |17

75



Proposal to the City of Rio Dell
Executive Recruitment for City Manager

Why Choose CPS HR Consulting

We believe the advantages of using our expertise include:

Our commitment to, and expertise with, public agencies

Our aggressive outreach to qualified individuals who may not be seeking new employment
Our ability to customize our process to fit your needs

Our extensive experience in recruiting executive level professionals for public agencies
across the United States

Our growing list of returning clients who seek our services for multiple engagements

Our proven ability to recruit and place minority and female candidates

The clients and candidates who repeatedly compliment us on our timely and frequent
communication and feedback

Our ability to facilitate discussions and garner consensus with groups, including councils
and boards

Why select CPS HR for this Important Effort

We conduct a detailed needs assessment to identify 1) future organizational direction; 2)
challenges facing the position; 3) the working style and organizational climate; and 4)
required core and job specific competencies as well as personal and professional
characteristics required

CPS HR has a database of candidates for many jobs and an extensive network of external
resources to leverage for executive-level positions

We utilize our vast pool of public and nonprofit resources and contacts to deliver a strong
pool of competitive candidates to the City who will be well prepared to assist the City in
the accomplishment of its specific mission and goals

CPS HR recognizes that the very best candidates for some types of positions are not
typically looking for a job and, therefore, our recruitment team takes a very aggressive
approach to identifying and recruiting such candidates

We encourage applicant diversity and incorporate a variety of activities to attract the best
available candidates

The combination of CPS HR’s seasoned recruitment management and highly qualified staff
enable us to reliably deliver successful results on time and on budget

Thank you for reviewing our proposal. CPS HR Consulting would be pleased to partner with the
City of Rio Dell in this important endeavor. We are committed to providing quality, expert
solutions to help you achieve your goals.

CPS HR &= CONSULTING Page |18

76



Proposal to the City of Rio Dell
Executive Recruitment for City Manager

Appendix A - Sample Brochure

CPS HR == CONSULTING Page |19

77



CITY OF

e, .

ey

CPS HR &= CONSULTING

—

Proposal to the City of Rio Dell
Executive Recruitment for City Manager

SACRAMENTO ¢

Page |20

78



Executive Recruitment for City Manager

UNIQUE OPPORTUNITY

The City of Sacramento City Counchl is seeking
an enthusiastic, experienced local government
professional to become its next City Manager.
This is a wonderful opportunity for a creative and
resourceful leader to help shape the future of
California’s Capital City.

THE SACRAMENTO AREA

Sacramento - California's capital city, historic
center of the Gold Rush and the center of state
govermment. This vibrant metropais that s
one of the fastest growing cilies In the nation

Is known by a number of different nicknames:
“Cameliia Capital” for the flower found so
abundantly In Sacramento neighborhoods; “City
of Trees™ due to the countless miles of tree-
lined streets and wooded parks In the reglon;
and “River City" by virlue of two major rivers
(Sacramento and American) that converge near
historic 01d Sacramento. Clearty, Sacramento is
much mere than just the “Capital City".

Conveniently tocated halfway between the
Pacific Ocean (San Francisco) to the west, and
the Slerra Nevada Mountains (Lake Tahoe) to

the east, the area remains one of the fastest
growing regions in the country. The metropoiitan
area conslisting of Sacramento and parts of Yolo,
Ptacer, El Dorado, Sutter, and Yuba Countles

has a poputation of approximately 2.1 miilior;
Sacramento County has a population of 1.4
million, and according to the U.S. Census Bureau
is the 10" fastest growing county in the United
States. With a population of approximately
470,000, Sacramento is the 7™ largest city In
California.

Many factors coniribute to the economic success
of the region. A principal reason Sacramento
has retained Its attractiveness is that it ofters

CPS HR &= CONSULTING

same of the lowest housing
prices of major cities in the
state. Many new residents
have relocated from the
San Francisco Bay Area and
Southern California to take
advantage of Sacramento’s
employment apportunities,
moderate housing prices,

and competitive salaries.
Sacramento is proud of lis
cuftural diversity. In fact,
Time Magazine declared
Sacramento to be the most
integrated city In the country.

The Sacramento reglon
offers amenities that are attractive to those
with an active lifestyfe. Hiking, biking, goifing,
snow-skiing. water-giding, house-boating,
wine-tasting, and other sports and recreational
opporhunities abound. Educational opportunities
are pientiful, with the Sacramento reglon being
home to Califomia State University - Sacramento;
University of Califomia at Davis; Sacramento
City College; McGeorge School of Law and other
community and four-year college programs.

Sacrameitto boasts the NBA's Sacramento

Kings, the 2003, 2004, 2007 and 2008 Pacific
Coast League champlon Sacramento River Cats
baseball team, the Sacramento Capitals of World
Team Tennts, the annual worid-class Dixieland
Jaz Jubliee, and many other recreational,
enterfainment and cultural activities. Each
December, Sacramento attracts some of

the world's top long distance runners to the
California international Marathon, Historic Oid
Sacramento, \he State Raffroad Museum, Crocker
Art Museum, Governor's Mansion, Sacramento
2Zoo, Sutter’s Fort, American River Parkway, Music
Clreus, Sacramento Convention Cenfer, California
State History Museum and Stafe Capifol Bullding
are other atfractions located In the immediate
area. Top-name emtertainers
perform at Power Balance
Pavilion (formerly Arco Arena)
and Memorial Avditorfum.
Each summer Sacramento
hosts the California Stafe Fair
which attracts more than one
miliion visitors annuafly and
Sacramento is a frequent host
for the NCAA Track and Field
Finals and the US Olympic
Track and Fieid Team Trials.

Proposal to the City of Rio Dell

Sacramento s a charter city operating under

the councl/manager form of government. The
City CouncH conststs of nine members, inciuding
a directly-elected Mayor, who are elected by
District to serve overlapping four-year terms. The
City Councll is the leglsiative body responsibie for
the overall policies and direction of the city. The
Councll appoints the City Manager, City Attomey,
City Clerk, and Cily Treasurer.

Sacramento provides a full arvay of municipal
services including public safety (police and

fire); community development; economic
development; transportation; utilitles; convention,
culture and felsure; parks and recreation; jpa
partners coordination; and the traditional intemal
management support functions (finance, general
services, human resources/labor refations,
Information technology, and legistative affairs).

The FY 2010-11 city budget of approximatety
$833 million, including a general fund budget of
nearly $364 miilion, reflects approximately 4,374
FTE. The five-year capital Improvement program
budget Is $318.7 miilion. The largest sources

of general fund revenues are: taxes (71.2%);
charges, fees and services (10.8%); contributions
from other funds (6.8%); intergovemmentat
(4.6%); fines, forfeltures and penalties (3.0%);
licenses/parmits (2.6%); interest, rents,
concessions (0.9%).

Page |21

79



Proposal to the City of Rio Dell
Executive Recruitment for City Manager

CITY MANAGER

The City Manager Is appointed by the Mayor and
City Councll. He/she Is the chief administrative
officer of the city and Is responsible to the City
Councll for the administration of city affairs,
which are placed In his/her charge by the City
Charter. The City Manager Is responsibie for
the entorcement of all faws and ardinances;
coordination of all municipal programs and
services; makes recommendations to the Mayor
and City Council as appropriate conceming the
operation, annual budget and future needs of the
city.

Direct reports to the City Manager nclude three
Assistant City Managers, the Director af the Office
of Emergency Services, the Director of Public
Safety Accountabliity, and the Public Information
Officer. The City Manager's office cansists of 16
staff and an operating budget of approximately
$3 mililon. The City Manager's office fs located
on the top fioor of a beautiful and modern five-
story administration bullding as part of the 2005
renovation of the City Halt complex.

CHALLENGES AND PRIORITIES

In addition to becoming quickly acclimated

and overseeing the day-to-day operations of
the organization, the new City Manager will be
expected to strategically address the following
Issues and priorities recently reatfirmed by City
Councll.

CPS HR &= CONSULTING

Manager-Counchi
Relations - The new City
Manager will be expected
{o develop a strong
relationship with the Mayor
and City Councii based on
a partnership philosoply,
mutual respect, trust and
open communication.

The City Manager will

be actively involved in
{he policy devetopment
process by bringing creative
fdeas to the Councll and,
when necessary, squarely
confronting difficult
Issues with creativity

and gptimism. The City Manager must also be
sensitive In addressing the individual needs of
each Councif member who represents his/her
District's constituents.

Fiscal Respons!bllity - i (s an ongoing
challenge to continue the high quality services
that provide for the health and safety of the
pudlic and city staff white facing ongoing
chalienging financial times. A focus an the
long-term sustainabiity of the community and
strategically addressing the budget challenges
wiii be paramount for the new City Manager. This
wiil require an organizational assessment and a
creative approach to the prioritizing of resources
to aflow for the optimum level of service in an
efficient and cost-etfective manner with a focus
on responsiveness and customer service of city

departments and employees.

Economic Development - With the slowdown
In growth coupled with the state of the current
economy, mainiaining a healthy economic
development program to attract new quality
develapment projects and retain those the city
already has will be vital to the future successes
of the city. Capitalizing on the strengths of the
region (Le. rich agricuftural heritage and strong
heaithcare Industry presence) will

Interagency Cooperation - Sacramento is the
center of govemment and the hub of a larger
governmental reglon. Efforts continue to seek
partnership opporfunities and collaborative
approaches to addressing transportation, flood
protection, air quality, and other reglonal issues
with the county, neighboring cities, and other
Jurisdictions.

Development Projects — Ongoing development
opportunities that will need to be addressed
include the Downtown Corridor (J, K, L Streets),
Raliyard, River District, 0ld Sacramento
Waterfront, Delta Shores, and other projects
both [n the city’s core, and In surrounding
neighbarhoods.

Redistricting — Several of the Councli Districts
are undergoing significant changes In District
boundarles and related population shifis based
on the latest census data. Redistricting efforts
wiil be complefed in 2011.

Sports and Entertainment Complex — Studies
are underway for the construction of a new arena
to provide the reglon with a venue for major
sports and enlertainment. Location and funding
mechanism discussions continue.

THE IDEAL CANDIDATE

The ideal candidate Is a strongly committed
Individual who has a positive record of
achlevement and a history of developing
constructive working retationships with both
Infernal and external stakehoiders. He or she
wiil actively solicit (deas from all levels of the
organization and will have the abity te eam
respect and to foster Innovalive sofutions through
sound administrative practices and strategic
planning sillls. Successful candidates will
have a demonstrated track record of effective
stafl management, cammuntty relations, and
significant experience working with a councii
or board of directors. The Ideal candidate will

be vital white promoting business-
friendly poticles to make Sacramento
a cholce destination.

Labor Relatlons - As the city faces
significant budget challenges,
working cooperatively with the city's
organized workforce to address
thesa challenges Is paramount.

The new City Manager will bring
labor refations experience that is
proactive, collaborative, and based
on open and honest communication
and mutual respect.

Page |22

80



possess strong budget and fiscal management
eidils.

Specific qualifications are as follows:

Experience and Education

Quafified candidates are seasoned, experienced
ocal government chief executives, assistants or
deputies from a large local governmert agency
with substantial (e.g. 10 years) highiy reievant
experience. A Bachelor's degres in public/
business admnistration, potical sclence or
related field is required. A Master's degree in

a related discipline (e.g. MPA, MBA) Is highly
preferred.

Personal Attributes

in atidition to the foregoing requirements, city
feaders have identified the additional
abilities and skills that the ideal candidate will

possess:

o An experienced large city manager and
administrator in a manager-councl] form
of government who brings an established
network of reflable resources.

= Competent manager of both issues and
gtaft - knows how to mertor and develop
stafl, retains and attracts fop talent, with an
appreciation for a diverse workforce.

* Possesses sirong financial acumen in
managing a clty's budget; is fiscally creative
in his/her approach to dealing with budget
constralnts.

= Politically astule yet apolitical; will develop a
strong working refationship with the mayor
and members of councll while providing his/
her best professional advice.

« Strong interpersonal skills with a strong
presence; cutstanding leader able to inspire
confidence and win the trust of city leaders,
colleagues and peers, staff, the media, and
the public.

= Experienced in organizational effectiveness
~ capable of assessing the organization and
making the necessary changes to improve
efficiencies and effectiveness.

« Community oriented — will actively engage
community groups/leaders.

o Seeks parinership opporhunities; collaborative
In deveioping relationships with reglonal
agencles and stakehoiders.

= A passion for public service; has a vested
Interest in the success of the city.

= Embraces challenges and tirives on
accompiishments; results-griented.

CPS HR &= CONSULTING

Proposal to the City of Rio Dell

Executive Recruitment for City Manager

« Big picture arientation; strategic and
visionary.

« Engenders trust and credibiiity; a person of
the highest integrity.

« Open and approachabie; connects with all
levels of the organization.

COMPENSATION

The salary for this pasition is negotiable
within the range established by City Charter
{$187,356 - $281,040) and will depend on the
qualifications of the successhul candidate.

The city’s excellent benefit program includes:

o Public Empigyees’ Retirement System
(PERS 2% @ 55). Management employees
receive an additional seven pernent
of base pay to offset the cost of retirement
contributions into PERS

« Voluntary 457 deferred compensstion plan
o 40i(a) money purchase plan (City confributes
four percent if employee confributes five

percent)

« Flexible spending plan {(medical, transit and
dependent care)

e 12— 14 pald holidays and 12 days of sick
leave

= Vacation leave starting at 10 days and
Increasing based on years of service

e 80 hours of management leave annually

« Monthly health and welfare fringe benefit
~ ¢an be applied toward employee's
contribution for retirement (if any), heatth,
dental and/or short-term disability insurance

o City contribution toward IRC Section 125
cafeteria heaith and welfare benefits,
including medical, dental, fife, and disahility
Insurance

= $150,000 basic life insurance

« Expense and subsistence
aliowance - $400 per month

o Parking/Aurto allowance -
$400 per menth

« Technology aliowance - $100
per month

o Employee assistance
programs

Note: City employees currently
participate in a furlough program
{one-day per month) reflecting a
salary reduction of 4.6%.

APPLICATION AND
SELEGTION PROCEDURE

To be considered for this challenging and
rewanding career opportunity, please submit your
resume with cover letier, current salary and list
of four work-related references by Monday, May
30, 2011. Resume should reflect years and
months of positions held, as well as size of staff
and budgets you have managed. Forward your
matertals to:

0\)
Executive Search

Stuart Satow
CPS Executive Search
241 Lathrop Way
Sacramento, CA 95815
Tek: (918) 263-1401; Fax: (916) 561-7206
E-mali: resumes€cps.ca,00v

Following the final filing date, resumes wiil be
screened In relation to the criteria outlined in this
brochure. Candidates deemed {o have the most
relevant background will be invited to participate
in a prefiminary screening interiew with the
consuitant In early June. The city wifl then select
semi-finalists to participate In cily interviews
tentatively set for the week of July 11™. An
appointment is expected in July fofiowing
extensive reference/background checks to be
coordinated with the candidate. For additional
Information about this epportunity ptease contact
Stuart Satow.

Page |23

81



CiTY OF

Rio Dell City hall R.l O
675 Wildwood Avenue D E LL

Rio Dell, CA 95562 —_—
(707) 764-3532 CALFOARNA
riodellcity.com

January 21, 2014
TO: Honprable Mayor and City Council
FROM: etch, City Manager

SUBJECT: Release of Retention to SJL Construction for Davis Street and Wildwood
Avenue Safe Route to Schools Project ($6,546.15)

AS THERE ARE NO CLAIMS OR LIENS FILED WITH THE CITY FROM THE SAFE
ROUTE TO SCHOOLS PROJECT, IT IS RECOMMENDED THAT THE CITY COUNCIL:

Approve the release of the retention held for the Davis & Wildwood Safe Route to Schools
Project in the amount of $6,546.15 to contractor SJL Construction

BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION

On July 23, 2013 the City Council awarded a construction contract to SJL Construction in the
amount of $127,584 for the Wildwood Avenue and Davis Street Safe Route to Schools Project.
Work began on August 7, 2013. The project is now complete, with Notice of Completion
recorded by the City on December 9, 2013.

The required 35 days have passed since the Notice was filed and no claims or liens have been
filed with the City from the project. Accordingly, the 5% retention under the agreement can be
released to the contractor in the amount of $6,546.15.

The request for the retention release has been reviewed and recommended by the City Engineer.

82



Memorandum

December 12, 2013

Jim Stretch, City Manager

To:

Cc:

From: Tel: 707-443-8326
Merritt Perry, Construction Manager %‘0

Subject: Davis and Wildwood SR2S Project Pay Request No. 3 — Release of  Jobno.: 8410114

Retention -

Construction of the Davis and Wildwood SR2S Project began August 7" and all project work was
completed in October 31st. The lighted Pedestrian Warning System was activated on Wildwood Avenue
was activated and functioning on December an,

The City recorded the Notice of Completion on December 9, 2013. Provided that there are no claims or
liens filed with the City on or before January 13, 2014, the City can release retention on that date.
The retention withheld on the project to date is $6,546.15. A copy of our calculation of the amount due is
included on the attached sheet.

Please don't hesitate to contact me if you have any questions regarding the project progress or this pay
request.

ATTACHMENTS:
City Engineers Calculation for Pay Request #3 — Release of Retention

GHD Inc.

718 Third Street Eureka CA 95501 USA 1

T 1707 443 8326 F 1 707 444 8330 E eureka@ghd.com W www.ghd.com

83



v8

Winzler Kelly

City of Rio Dell
2013 Davis and Wildwood SR2S
Contractor: SJIL Construction, Inc.

Progress Pay Request #3 - Release of Retention

12/12/2013

CONTRACT ITEMS
Amount
Contract Contract Quantity Complete To |Amount Previously Certified| Amount Currently
Item No. Description Quantity Unit Unit Price A Complete To Date Date for Payment Due
1 Mobilization/Demobitization 1 LS $2,000 $2,000 .00 1.00 $2,000.00 $1,000.00 $1,000 00
2 Stationary Mounted Construction Area
Signs 8 EA $200 $1,600 00 8.00 $1,600.00 $1,600.00 $0 00
3 Temporary Traffic Control 1 LS $3,000 $3,000 00 1.00 $3,000.00 $1,500.00 $1,500 00|
4 Construciton Staking
1 LS $1,000 $1,000.00 1.00 $1,000.00 $1,000.00 $0 00
5 Contractors Material Testing & Quality
Control 1 LS $3,500 $3,500 00 1.00 $3,500.00 $3,500.00 $0 00
6 Water Pollution Control 1 LS $800 $800 00 1.00 $800.00 $800.00 $0 00
7 Clearing and Grubbing 1 LS $4,000 $4,000 00 1.00 $4,000.00 $4,000.00 30 00
8 Demolition of Existing Facilities 1 LS $6,000 $6,000.00 1.00 $6,000.00 $6,000.00 $0 00
9 Remove Existing Pavement Striping &
|Markings 1 LS $1,200 $1,200.00 1.00 $1,200.00 $900.00 $300 00
10 Class Hl Aggregate Base 100 CY $53.50 $5,350.00 100.00 $5,350.00 $5,350.00 $0 00|
11 Minor Concrete (Curb) 66 LF $35 $2,310 00 66.00 $2,310.00 $2,310.00 $0 00
12 Minor Concrete (Curb and Guitter) 175 LF $55 $9,625 00 207.00 $11,385.00 $11,385.00 $0.00
13 Minor Concrete (Driveway) 288 SF $12 $3,456 00 330.00 $3,960.00 $3,960.00 $0 00
14 Minor Concrete (Sidewalk) 934 SF $11 $10,274 00 934 00 $10,274 00 $10,274 00 $0 00
15 |Minor Concrete (Curb Ramp) 110 SF $8 $880 00 110.00 $880.00 $880 00 $0 00,
16 Detectable Waming Surface (Truncated
IDomes) 89 SF $25 $2,225 00 80.00 $2,000 00 $2,000 00 $0 00
17 Thermoplastic Pavement Markings 366 SF $4 $1,464 00 366.00 $1,464 00 $0 00 $1,464 00
18 Roadside Sign(s), 1-Post 3 EA $600 $1,800 00 300 $1,800.00 $600 00 $1.,200 00
19 Reset Roadside Sign(s), 1 Post 2 EA $300 $600 00 3 00 $900 00 $900 00 $0 00
20 Pedestrian Waming Systems 1 LS $66,000 $66,000 00 1.00 $66,000 00 $33,000 00 $33.000 00
21 Adjust Existing Water Meter to Finish
Grade 1 EA $500 $500 00 3.00 $1,500.00 $1,500.00 $000
T CONTRACT TOTALS §$127,584.00  -eeeee $130,923.00 $92,459.00 $38,464.00
EXTRA WORK _
Amount
Contract Contract Quantity Complete to |Amount Previously Certified] Amount Currently
Item No. Description Quantity Unit Unit Price A Complete to Date Date for Payment Due
N/A N/A ] LS $0 00 $0 00 0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0 00)
EXTRA WORK SUBTOTAL 30.00 e $0.00 30.00 30.00
CONTRACT AND EXTRA WORK TOTAL $127,584.00 emmame $130,923.00 $92,459.00 $38,464.00
Total Earned To Date $130,923.00
Total Retention To Date (5%) $0.00
Previous Payments $124,376.85
AMOUNT DUE $6,546.15]
Recommended by: /
W ?—— 12/12/2013
Mei il Penry, Cunstiuction Manager Date



CITY OF

675 Wildwood Avenue ELL
Rio Dell, CA 95562 g
TO: Mayor and Members of the City Council

THROUGH: Jitf $tretch, City Manager

FROM: Karen Dunham, City Clerk

DATE: January 7, 2014

SUBJECT: Re-appointment of two (2) Members on the Rio Dell Planning
Commission

RECOMMENDATION

1) Approve the re-appointment of Alice Millington and Gary Chapman to the Rio Dell
Planning Commission for three (3) year terms ending December 31, 2016.

BUDGETARY IMPACT

None

BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION

There are currently two (2) vacancies on the Rio Dell Planning Commission as the result
of two expired terms which ended December 31, 2013. The Notice of Vacancy was

posted on December 3, 2013 with the last day for submittal of applications being
December 27, 2013.

The only applicants wishing to be considered for appointment are the two (2)
Commissioners whose terms have expired.

Provided there are no objections or questions from the Council, staff is asking that the

Council simply forego balloting and approve the re-appointment of Alice Millington and
Gary Chapman to fill the vacancies for three (3) year terms ending December 31, 2016.

ATTACHMENT: (2) Applications for Commission Appointment
Notice of Vacancy

85




CQITY OF

> RECENE

iﬂl E
j2.87.13 @4 I%E.ED

CALFORNA

CITY OF RIO DELL
APPLICATION FOR
PLANNING COMMISSION APPOINTMENT

Thank you for expressing your interest in serving the community as an appointed member of
the Rio Dell Planning Commission. All applicants must permanently reside within the City of Rio
Dell at the time of application. The appointed Planning Commissioner will be required to file a
Fair Political Practices Commission (FPPC) Statement of Economic Interest Form 700 required
by California Government Code §87200 et seq. and the City of Rio Dell Conflict of Interest Code.

This application is considered a public record pursuant to the California Public Records Act

(Government Code §6520 et seq.) and may be made available to any member of the public
upon request.

PERSONAL DATA: 2
Name: A/“ %//lsz/é)l
375 dlfdwvosd e Fs Delf

Address Where you Reside:

Mailing Address (if different):
Home Phones. 707 7C -4 8l (iphone. 207 _$02-F96¢

Email Address: MﬁfM C o

EDUCATIONAL DATA:

Ee»ea//%_,,gﬂﬁ’wz‘ p o

EMPLOYMENT DATA:

High School:

College/University:

Sorff R Beohn

Current Employer/Occupation When Employed:

86



GENERAL INFORMATION:

Do you currently serve on a City Board or Commission? )( Yes No
If yes, please list: ; 5 AN 1

Please list any past or present community mvolvement

&w/m(.o-x, ﬁ.s Mﬁ}&ww /92/,3”;1

Please explain why you are interested in the appointment and what you, as a City Planning
Commissioner, would offer to the Planning Commission and the community:

4““’4&%&5 M MMZLM

7764,,._ ,729,, WMS > mﬂ;ﬁ_
M&L—mam

Do you or any member of your immediate family residing in your household, hold a position (paid or
unpaid) with any person or entity, or have a contract with or any obligation to any person or entity, that
might appear to constitute a conflict of interest for a City Planning Commissioner? For purposes of this
question, “entity” specifically includes, but is not limited to, the City of Rio Dell and any entity which
receives funds from the City. Yes No

If yes, please explain:

87



CERTIFICATE OF APPLICANT:

| certify that: 1) | permanently reside within the City limits of the City of Rio Dell; and 2) all
statements made in this application are true and complete. | understand that any false

statement or omission of material facts will subject me to dis

DATE: /—'é/:?q/o?d/j SIGNATURE:

RETURN COMPLETED APPLICATION TO:

Karen Dunham, City Clerk
675 Wildwood Avenue
Rio Dell, CA 95562
Phone: 764-3532
adminl@riodellcity.com

88



CITY OF

£
@ :EE:gELV% RI

ELL

CALBORNA

CITY OF RIO DELL
APPLICATION FOR
PLANNING COMMISSION APPOINTMENT

Thank you for expressing your interest in serving the community as an appointed member of
the Rio Dell Planning Commission. All applicants must permanently reside within the City of Rio
Dell at the time of application. The appointed Planning Commissioner will be required to file a
Fair Political Practices Commission (FPPC) Statement of Economic Interest Form 700 required
by California Government Code §87200 et seq. and the City of Rio Dell Conflict of Interest Code.

This application is considered a public record pursuant to the California Public Records Act

(Government Code §6520 et seq.) and may be made available to any member of the public
upon request.

PERSONAL DATA:

Name: Glgx/ LQ& C‘/\C\Pman

Address Where you Reside: Q2 Wlda  Couct R Del\ | ¢t §ss62

Mailing Address (if different):

Home Phone: (707> GO(-7063 Cell Phone: SA-iE

Email Address: ()c\c\_\‘LeeC \/\g\p man @ va lxoo 0w

EDUCATIONAL DATA:

High School; -\ lca Ur\\glf\ Schoo |

College/University: B b\m\%\c‘('l‘ S *“\jft kt\\\\'@ \\\'.Si‘t/

EMPLOYMENT DATA:

Current Employer/Occupation When Employed: C ¢ t\/ O Q FL C‘\“WV\‘L

89



GENERAL INFORMATION:

Do you currently serve on a City Board or Commission? __ % Yes No

If yes, please list: P \ anNnN W4 Com VWSS 1)
=

Please list any past or present community involvement:

Please explain why you are interested in the appointment and what you, as a City Planning
Commissioner, would offer to the Planning Commission and the community:

L \”\QLP CUW( Commum“f“}/ <}F6b\) QOSPH\,'Q‘V p
\ } 7

Do you or any member of your immediate family residing in your household, hold a position (paid or
unpaid) with any person or entity, or have a contract with or any obligation to any person or entity, that
might appear to constitute a conflict of interest for a City Planning Commissioner? For purposes of this
question, “entity” specifically includes, but is not limited to, the City of Rio Dell and any entity which
receives funds from the City. Yes y No

If yes, please explain:

90



CERTIFICATE OF APPLICANT:

I certify that: 1) | permanently reside within the City limits of the City of Rio Dell; and 2) all
statements made in this application are true and complete. | understand that any false
statement or omission of material facts will subject me to disqualification or dismissal.

DATE: Q ¢. (2, 201>  SIGNATURE: /%, é/f—

RETURN COMPLETED APPLICATION TO:
Karen Dunham, City Clerk
675 Wildwood Avenue
Rio Dell, CA 95562
Phone: 764-3532
adminl@riodellcity.com

91



CITY OF
R

CALIGRNA

DELD)

PUBLIC NOTICE
PLANNING COMMISSION
NOTICE OF COMMISSION VACANCY

Notice is hereby given that (2) vacancies exist on the Rio Dell Planning
Commission. The City of Rio Dell is seeking applications from those who
wish to be considered to fill two (2) vacancies for three year terms ending

December 31, 2016.
Applications may be obtained at and returned to:
City of Rio Dell
Karen Dunham, City Clerk

675 Wildwood Ave.
Rio Dell, CA 95562

Applications must be received by 5:00 P.M. Friday, December 27, 2013.

The new Commission appointments will be made at the January 7, 2014
Regular City Council meeting. Further information may be obtained by

contacting the City Clerk’s office at 764-3532.

’7‘%’2/7 L/ /LQ m/)mn) JR-3-1%

Kag

n Dunham, C\MC Date

92



CiTY OF

Rio Dell City hall R

675 Wildwood Avenue D E LL
Rio Dell, CA 95562 —_—
(707) 764-3532 CALIFORNA
riodellcity.com

January 7, 2014
TO: Hopetable Mayor and City Council Members
FROM: Ji tch, City Manager

SUBJECT:  Adoption of Guidelines for Wildwood Avenue Sculpture Program

IT IS RECOMMENDED THAT THE CITY COUNCIL:

1. Adopt the attached guidelines, as amended by the Council, for the Wildwood Avenue
Sculpture Program, and

2. Direct that the appointment of members to the Wildwood Avenue Sculpture Committee
be placed on the January 21, 2014 for action.

BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION

As the City Council is aware, (2) concrete art/sculpture pedestals were included in the Wildwood
Avenue Enhancement project as the request of the Eagle Prairie Art District and Scotia/Rio Dell
Chamber of Commerce. The pedestals were installed in two different Wildwood Avenue median
locations and include lighting for front and back surface illumination. Now that the Enhancement
Project is complete, the community is anxious to entertain proposals from artists to display their
art/ sculptures.

Experience has shown that a cross section of the community should be involved in the selection
of art pieces for display and that guidelines and an application process should be developed prior
to program implementation. There were very few local guidelines in the County that we could
use as a template and a search of other communities on-line was not productive. However, Art
District Member and local artist Adam Dias did locate an outline to consider from the Redwood
Art Association and City staff fleshed out the attached guidelines for the Council and community
to consider.

Over the last 2 months staff has shared the draft guidelines with the Chamber of Commerce and
Arts District, with a number of changes being made as the result of that work. The basic
elements of the Guidelines recommended at this time are as follows:

1. There is a written application required for each sculpture entered into a selection
competition and photographs or a detailed drawing are required to accompany the
application.

93



2. Artist must sign waiver of liability, assumption of risk and indemnity agreement

3. Selected sculptures will be on display for (1) year.

4. Sculptures must be engineered and construction to bolt onto the concrete pedestal and are
limited as to size.

5. Lights and sounds are not to be emitted or produced from the art.

6. Sculptures are to be installed, removed, maintained or repaired by the artist. The City
may help with lifting a sculpture for installation.

7. The artist is responsible for repairs for the first $500. The City will reimburse the artist
for repairs from $500 to $1,000.

8. High value art (value determined by artist) must be insured by artist.

9. City Council appoints (5) member Sculpture Committee; Art District and Chamber
nominate (1) member each, City Council Members nominate (1) member of the Council
and (1) public member, plus the Community Development Director.

10. Sculpture Committee selects art for display

11. Prize money for selected sculptures may be raised by the community and awarded in a
public ceremony.

12. City shall provide identifying plaques for sculptures.

13. City Council retains ultimate authority and responsibility for program.

With regard to the membership of the Sculpture Committee, it is recommended that the
membership be appointed by the Rio Dell City Council as follows:

(1) (1) member of the City Council,

(2) (1) resident from the community,

(3) (1) Community Development Director

(4) (1) Member from the Arts District

(5) (1) Member of the Scotia/Rio Dell Chamber of Commerce

In the alternate, the membership (of 5 members) could be attained by appointing a member of the
Planning Commission or School Board instead of the community member or member of the City
Council, appointing (1) member from the Arts District and/or Chamber of Commerce and
appointing a second member from the general public or any variation on these themes. The key
to the success of the program just may be determined by having a broadly balanced cross section
of the community on the Committee.

The Eagle Prairie Arts District and the Scotia/Rio Dell Chamber of Commerce support the
program, the guidelines and the process, and appreciate the partnership with the City on this
exciting project. If there was one suggestion to be offered from the groups it is that the Council
considers appointing a teacher or administrator from the local school district in lieu of appointing
a member from the general public.

Cc:  Eagle Prairie Arts District
Scotia/Rio Dell Chamber of Commerce

94



CiTYy OF

675 Wildwood Avenue

Rio Dell, CA 95562 D‘E LL
—

(707) 764-3532 CALFQINA
(707) 764-5480 (fax)
E-mail: cm@riodellcity.com

January 3, 2014

WILDWOOD AVENUE
SCULPTURE GUIDELINES

The City of Rio Dell has installed (2) concrete art pedestals in the medians on Wildwood Avenue
for the purpose of showing sculptures created by local artists. The medians are landscaped with
scrubs, grass and Maple trees. Typically, artists will compete to have their works shown and a local
selection committee will choose the sculptures.

Guidelines for Sculptures

Sculptures to be displayed will be chosen on the basis of artistic excellence, suitability for public
art, 3 dimensional presentation and appropriateness for the Rio Dell setting. Consideration will be
given to safety in design and construction since the artwork will be located in a public outdoor
setting where people may be in contact with them.

The general content of the sculptures could be animal forms, local attractions, natural forms,
landscapes and pieces indicative of the history and culture of the area. A sculpture that could be an

attractive nuisance is not acceptable.

Sculpture Limitations and Setting

Sculptures must be engineered and constructed to bolt onto a concrete pedestal, which is 12” above
the ground, 24” in diameter with a %"bolt pattern placed 14” on center every 90 degrees. Sculptures
should be at least 4’ tall, and due to base loading and wind pressure, are limited to 9 and 3-1/2’
wide. A pattern of the pedestal base is attached to the application

A typical Wildwood Avenue median is 13.5° wide. The 55’ (north) sculpture median has a pedestal
placed in the middle of the island, surrounded by low vegetation-no trees. The other pedestal island

95



(south) is 77° long with the sculpture placed at the south end—Big Leaf Maple tree in the middle.
The sculptures are lighted from (2) sides. Between the sculpture medians is an island for the Town
Clock.

There cannot be any lights or sounds from the art that would be distracting to motorists or a
nuisance to neighboring properties. Additionally, reflective devices and/or reflective paint coatings

must not be utilized.

Responsibility of the Artist

The artist must complete a Wildwood Avenue Sculpture application, mailing it to Rio Dell City
Hall, 675 Wildwood Ave, Rio Dell CA 95562, Attn: Sculpture Selection Committee. Photos of the
completed sculpture must accompany the application. If not yet completed, detail drawing and the
scale of the artwork is to be submitted.

A selected sculpture must be completed at least (3) weeks prior to the installation date and available
for review and inspection by the Selection Committee. The cut-off date is firm, not optional. Visits
to the sculpture studio may be made by the Committee and finished photos of all detail from all
sides must be in the Committee’s possession prior to installation.

The artist agrees to install and remove the sculpture with the assistance of the Committee or City.
Artist agrees to maintain the sculpture throughout the term of exhibition and agrees to repair, restore
or replace any damaged or defective components, or remove the art.

If the sculpture should be damaged or vandalized, the artist is responsible to fund the repairs up to
$500, not including labor. The City will provide additional reimbursement to the artist thereafter, up
to $500. In no event will the City reimburse the artist any sum(s) in excess of $500.00 for
repairs.

The artist must place a reasonable value on the sculpture on the application and prior to installation.
High value sculptures (over $5,000 value) may be determined to be ineligible, unless insured for
full value by a party other than the City and the insurance policy is procured by the artist (or other
third party) prior to installation on public property. The artist shall bear all risk of loss to the
sculpture up and to the time it is properly installed on public property.

The artist shall provide the committee with a list of information to be placed on a plaque at the base
of the artwork, i.e. artist name, title of the sculpture, year completed, media, dimensions, web site
and, approximate weight and selling price if applicable.

96



Benefit to the Artist

e The selected artist will enjoy the prestige of exhibiting their sculpture for 1 year in the
beautiful natural outdoor setting in Rio Dell.

e A plaque giving credit to the artist and identifying the sculpture will be placed at the base of
the artwork.

e You will be honored publically by the Eagle Prairie Art District, the Rio Dell City Council
and other selected forms of media

* You have the opportunity to sell you sculpture at the end of the exhibit period.

Sale of Art

An artist may contingently sell the art while it is on display, but the art will stay on display and will
remain the personal property of the artist (not any buyer) until the specified end of the exhibition.
Such sale is between the artist and the buyer exclusively and no commission will be retained by the
City of Rio Dell. The City will bear no obligation to any sculpture buyer, and any buyer will assume
all risks of loss to the sculpture while it remains on public property. The City may, in its discretion,
purchase sculptures from an artist, if a mutual agreement is subsequently negotiated for purchase.

City Responsibility

The City shall provide staff support to assist the artist in installing and removing the sculpture from
the City’s pedestal. The City will have an identifying plaque placed at the base of the pedestal
identifying the artwork, artist, selling price and other pertinent information as to size, media, and
weight.

The City will reimburse the artist for repairs up to $500 above the artist’s cost as noted above for
damage or vandalism._In no event will the City reimburse the artist any sum(s) in excess of
$500.00 for repairs.

The City reserves the right to have a sculpture removed if it poses a public health or safety risk,
becomes an attractive nuisance or presents a liability to the City. Furthermore, a sculpture that
offends the public decency or is subject to vandalism that offends the public decency shall be
removed by the artist. Whether or not a sculpture is offensive to public decency is a determination
that shall be made by a majority vote of the Rio Dell City Council, in its complete and absolute
discretion, at a regular or special meeting of the Council. A decision by the Council shall be
binding and final. If the artist fails to remove a sculpture with 24 hours of notification, the City

97



shall cause the artwork to be removed and it’s cost for said removal shall be billed to and payable
by the artist.

The art pedestals and medians are the property of the City of Rio Dell, who retains ultimate
authority as to whether to offer them to the public for the display of sculptures and art. The City

may purchase sculptures for installation on one or more pedestals if it chooses.

Wildwood Avenue Sculpture Committee

The Rio Dell City Council may appoint 5 members to the Committee and may remove or replace
members as it sees fit. The committee may meet at the Rio Dell City Hall when required. The
charge of the committee is specifically related to the selection and management of sculptures placed
on City pedestals in the Wildwood Avenue medians, including when art must be removed or
repaired. The committee may also decide not to select any application from artists.

Members of the committee to be nominated and appointed by the City Council are (1) member of
the City Council, the Planning/Community Development Director and (1) member of the general
public. These appointees may not have membership in the Eagle Prairie Arts District or the
Scotia/Rio Dell Chamber of Commerce. The Eagle Prairie Arts District and Scotia/Rio Dell
Chamber of Commerce may nominate (1) member each from their membership.

If any of these appointments remain unfilled for 60 days, the Rio Dell City Council may fill the
vacancy with a member of the public. If a member of the committee misses two or more
consecutive meetings, the City Council may assume that a vacancy has occurred and may move to
fill that vacancy. Committee members shall serve without compensation.

Application Process

All artists desiring to exhibit their sculptures on Wildwood Avenue median pedestals must complete
the Artist Application Form. There shall be no fee for filing the application. Photos showing the
detail from all sides of the sculpture must accompany the application. If the sculpture is not yet
complete, a detailed drawing and description must be attached to the application. The selection of a
sculpture by the committee shall be only tentative-not final until such time as the work is complete.
At that time the committee’s selection may be finalized or they may move on to another applicant.
If the committee is unable to make a selection, the item shall be placed on the agenda of the City
Council for a decision.

98



Deadlines for applications shall be the first work day in April, in anticipation of the installation date
to occur on or before July 4 each year. The committee shall make its selection of sculptures by May
15 and shall prioritize their selection(s) in case a primary selection is not completed or acceptable
(3) weeks prior to the installation date.

Prize Money

Prize money may be raised by the community and awarded to sculptures selected to display their art
on Wildwood Avenue pedestals. Prize money amounts must be determined prior to the release of
applications and shall be stated in the application materials. The presentation of the prize awards
will be made by the Eagle Prairie Arts District in a public ceremony, perhaps during Wildwood
Days. Prize money donations made by commercial or civic organization sponsors will be
acknowledged on the identifying plaque provided by the City.

99



WAIVER OF LIABILITY, ASSUMPTION OF RISK AND
INDEMNITY AGREEMENT
(Wildwood Avenue Sculpture Exhibition)

This Waiver of Liability, Assumption of Risk and Indemnity Agreement is
entered into by and between , (“Artist”), and
City of Rio Dell (“City”). In consideration for being permitted to exhibit the original
sculpture generally described as:

(the “Sculpture),
Artist and City agree as follows:
1. Installation, Maintenance, and Repair. Artist agrees to install and remove

the Sculpture with the assistance of City staff. Artist agrees to maintain the Sculpture
throughout the term of the exhibition and agrees to either: (1) repair, restore or replace
any damaged or defective components; or (2) remove any damaged or defective
Sculpture.

2, Limitation of Liability and Release. In the event the Sculpture is damaged
or vandalized, the Artist is responsible to pay for repairs up to the amount of $500.00, not
including labor. If the cost of repairs exceeds $500.00, the City shall provide additional
reimbursement to Artist, up to a maximum of $500.00. In no event will the City
reimburse the Artist for any sums in excess of $500.00. Artist hereby releases the City,
and its agents, employees and representatives for any and all liability for any loss and/or
damage to the Sculpture, above and beyond the $500.00 payment recited in this
Paragraph 2.

3 Insurance. The Artist must place a reasonable value on the Sculpture prior
to installation. Any Sculpture that is valued over $5,000.00 will only be permitted if the
Artist procures an insurance policy, at its own cost and expense, insuring against any
damage to the Sculpture.

4. Indemnity. Artist agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the City and its
agents, officers, and employees from and against any and all claims, actions, suits,
procedures, costs, expenses (other than the $500.00 payment recited in Paragraph 2,
above), penalties and liabilities of every type and nature, including, without limitation,
attorneys fees, arising out of the exhibition of the Sculpture, and to reimburse City from
any such expenses incurred.

5. Severability. Artist expressly agrees that the foregoing waiver and
assumption of risks agreement is intended to be as broad and inclusive as is permitted by
the laws of the State of California and that if any portion thereof is held invalid, it is
agreed that the balance shall, notwithstanding, continue in full legal force and effect.

100



6. Acknowledgment of Understanding. Artist has read this waiver of
liability, assumption of risk, and indemnity agreement, fully understands its terms, and
understands that Artist is giving up substantial rights, including Artist’s right to sue.
Artist acknowledges that Artist is signing this agreement freely and voluntarily, and
intends by his or her signature to be a complete and unconditional release of all liability
to the greatest extent allowed by law.

Artist:

Dated;:

Signature

Print Name

City:

Dated:

Signature

Print Name and Title

101



Laeffmiz >

s DistiF—

6 Wilnaxirhe /Tox 202 Ko Pell(4 95562
iy eprd e @enail com

January 3, 2014

To: Honorable Mayor Thompson and City Council
Attn: Mr. Jim Stretch, City Manager
City of Rio Dell
675 Wildwood Avenue
Rio Dell, CA 95562

From: Eagle Prairie Arts District
406 Wildwood Avenue
Rio Dell, CA 95562

RE: Wildwood Avenue Sculpture Guidelines
Dear Mayor Thompson and City Council,

The board of the Eagle Prairie Arts District supports the Wildwood Avenue Sculpture Guidelines as
drafted, with one minor amendment. We would like to recommend to Council that the composition of
the Wildwood Avenue Sculpture Committee be changed to include a member of the school district as
opposed to a general member of the public. We think that this minor change will incorporate our local
educators and through extension, the youth of our community. Including the school district will round
out participation of our community in this process and better define the final committee member.

The Arts District would like to take this opportunity to show our appreciation to City staff, specifically
the City Manager, Mr. Jim Stretch, for taking the time and effort to consult with us in the development
of these guidelines. These guidelines will act to bring our community together in the common goal of
beautifying our City through artistic display.

Sincerely and with Highest Regards,

Nick Angeloﬁé#
Executive Director

Eagle Prairie Arts District
707-407-6205
Nangeloff.ceo@gmail.com

102



To: Honorable Mayor Thompson and City Council
Attn: Mr. Jim Stretch, City Manager
City of Rio Dell
675 Wildwood Avenue
Rio Dell, CA 95562

From: Rio Dell/Scotia Chamber of Commerce
406 Wildwood Avenue
Rio Dell, CA 95562

RE: Wildwood Avenue Sculpture Guidelines
Dear Mayor Thompson and City Council,

The board of the Rio Dell/Scotia Chamber of Commerce supports the Wildwood Avenue Sculpture
Guidelines as drafted, with one minor amendment. We would like to recommend to Council that the
composition of the Wildwood Avenue Sculpture Committee be changed to include a member of the
school district as opposed to a general member of the public. We think that this minor change will
incorporate our local educators and through extension, the youth of our community. Including the
school district will round out participation of our community in this process and better define the final
committee member.

The Chamber would like to take this opportunity to show our appreciation to City staff, specifically
the City Manager, Mr. Jim Stretch, for taking the time and effort to consult with us in the development
of these guidelines. These guidelines will act to bring our community together in the common goal of
beautifying our City.

Sincerely and with Highest Regards,

7 > F /
AL
Nick Angeloff
Board Member
Rio Dell/Scotia Chamber of Commerce
707-407-6205
Nangeloff.ceo@gmail.com

406 Wildwood Avenue, Rio Dell CA 95562
707.506.5081 rdscmonica@gmail.com

http://www.riodellscotiachamber.or; Page 1

103



CITY OF

Rio Dell City hall m

675 Wildwood Avenue D E I_JL

Rio Dell, CA 95562

L .
(707) 764-3532 CALIFOANA
riodellcity.com
January 7, 2014
TO: Honorable Mayor and City Council Members

FROM: Jim Stretch@\/lanager

SUBJECT:  Surplus (2) Public Works Trucks and Purchase (1) Used 2002 % Ton Pickup

IT IS RECOMMENDED THAT THE CITY COUNCIL:

1. Declare a nonoperational 1995 Chevrolet 2 ton pickup truck (Vin# -
1GCEK14KXSZ209150) and a deteriorating 1993 Ford F-350 pickup truck (Vin#-
1FDKF37H7REA00822) surplus to the City, to be offered as trade-in or credit for a
replacement vehicle, and

2. Approve the purchase of good condition used 2002 % ton GMC diesel pickup at a cost
not to exceed $12,000, spread 25% to the Streets, 25% each to Water and 50% to the
Wastewater Fund, and

3. Defer the purchase of the used $50,000 Roller approved in the 2013-14 Capital &
Programs budget until the 2014-15 fiscal year.

BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION

The attached interoffice letter dated 12-3-13from the Streets Superintendent to the City Manager
explains the present situation with trucks used on a daily basis by the Streets, Water and
Wastewater Funds

The Public Works Department has (1) 20 year old pickup that has not been operational for a
couple of years and a 21 year old model that is rarely used due to a multitude of electrical and
mechanical problems. The Department has located a local 2002 GMC 4x 4 % ton diesel that is in
good mechanical condition with an asking price of $10,900, plus tax and license. The seller
reconditions vehicle and will take the City’s old units in trade.

Funding for the purchase is to be provided amongst the Funds at 25% Streets, 25% Water and
50% Wastewater. Since the Water fund does not have the funding to share the cost, it is proposed
that the purchase of a used Roller included in the 2013-14 Final Budget be deferred until next
fiscal year. The Water Fund’s share of that cost was $7,500 as compared to $3,000 for the 2002
GMC pickup.

104




The recommendation is to declare (2) old pickup trucks surplus to be as trade-in value; authorize
the purchase of a 2002 reconditioned 6.6 liter diesel GMC pickup not to exceed $12,000 and
defer the purchase of a used Roller ($50,000) this fiscal year to free up the money to make the
purchase.

Cc:  Streets Superintendent
Wastewater Superintendent
Finance Department

105




CiTY OF

5 Wilw velzue h R.l O
Rio Dell, CA 95562 L
(707) 764-3532 DEI—/

e

CALIFOANA
To: Jim Stretch, City Manager
From: Randy Jensen, Water / Roadways Sup.
Date: January 3, 2014
Subject: Public Works Vehicle Purchase
Jim,

An opportunity has presented itself recently to purchase a 2002 GMC 2500 4x4 Truck for the
Public Works Dept. This vehicle would replace our 1994 Ford 1 ton. With this purchase, the
1994 Ford and the 1993 Chevy (that has been parked for over a year) will be used as a trade in.

Currently the public works department has a 1994 Ford 1 ton truck that has been quickly
deteriorating. There has been recent motor and clutch issues, ongoing electrical problems and its
general practical usefulness for the department. The department has only used this vehicle lately
at a minimum, and the sole purpose for asphalt cold patching due to its reliability and problems.
The 1994 Chevy truck was parked and put on the department’s surplus list at the time of
purchasing the 1996 Ford 4x4 from Del Oro Water Company in Ferndale.

With the purchase of the 2002 GMC, this vehicle will carry the Utility canopy box and slide out
bed that was originally installed in the Police truck. The 2002 GMC will be the primary vehicle
for towing the sewer machine due to the sewer machines weight factor. Also, by having the
Utility Canopy and slide out bed, it can also be used to house the utility line locating equipment
and other sensitive electronic equipment while keeping them protected from the weather.

The specification on the 2002 GMC and asking price:

Price — $10,900 + tax and licensing
Year - 05/2002

Make — GMC

Drive train — 4x4 -3 /4 Ton

Engine — Diesel 6.6 liter

Miles — 113474

Transmission — Allison Tranny

106



>, D&

e
<

S

VAL e
t»rfr a

e

b =

l'(
) 5‘5
J
]

|
i,
¥

P

gy
;' !

I
"

e

g

107



2002 GMC Sierra 2500 HD Regular Cab

2001|2002 | 2003  New2014 Styte Long Bed v

Hileage: 113,474 Change  [FN tho

DR oy
Edit ophons  Change style

pricing | photos kbb expert revieww § consumer reviews | ratings | compare

Used Car Prices Sae Tods /5ol Values »

STATE FARM §332

FPROGRESSIVE

Suggestad Retait @ Private Party @

NATIONWIDE

AM FAMILY

Excellent & e 2 : e :

0511,162 Find Deals Near You o 15Ca! DRat" Find the lowest raie,

Verify Conditicn Eanlinobite) EVEN IF IT'S NOT
WITH US.

Very Good ©

510'862 Free VIN Check Go PROGRETUVE

Good © /AutoCheck ta VI o Problemt ‘ s

$10,737

pgri Know Your Credit Score?

$10,237 P © Getyours now

from America’s #1
online provider.

Search Cars for Sale SRS

e e il 3

near Rio Dell LI Startfor only S1#

Vizv, actual photos compare pricas. and buy your next car 2‘
Vity n?

2002 GMC Sierra 2500 HD Regular Cab

2001 (2002 | 2005 | New 2014 | Style Long Bed v

Mismge:113,474 Change  [FI e

Edtoptons  Change syle

pricig | photos 5 | kb expert revieav | consummer reviews

fatimpge | cennjnme

Used Cal’ prices See Jrade bS5t Vaues » " w
! ~ With savings

over $500, I'd
switch to me.

Suggested Retail © Private Party @

Find D=z!s Near You

Excellent @
© $12,237 Free VIN Check -
Autotheck Ho VIM? tio Protlerd e
? D TR p
Kred‘t SCOE? et yours now £3:Experian

Take the wheel with
America's #1 provider

of online Credit
Search Cars for Sale Reports & Scores.

near Rio Dell 35 P
LNow ForS1 %

ith snolinent in Evpanan Cradt Trackar:

View aclual photos compare pricas. aud by your next car

GMC ¥ Semacaasto V]

108



WENDT CONSTRUCTION CO., INC.
1660 NEWBURG ROAD

PROPOSAL

FORTUNA, CA 95540 DATE PROPOSAL #
(707) 725-5641 LIC. #622738 r— —
NAME / ADDRESS
City of Rio Dell
675 Wildwood Ave
Rio Dell CA 95562
PROJECT
DESCRIPTION QTY COST TOTAL
2002 GMC 2500 4X4 3/4 TON LONG BED PICKUP; 6.6 10,500.00 10,500.00
ENGINE; DIESEL; AUTOMATIC; 113,392 MILES, P/S;
A/C; AM/FM RADIO;
VIN 1GDHK24162E296011
DMV FEES 420.00 420.00
SALES TAX 788.00 788.00
KZAMA “L ’Zﬂ”(/—'
TOTAL $11,708.00

ACCEPTANCE OF PROPOSAL: The above prices, specifications and conditions are satisfactory and are hereby accepted. You are

authorized to do the work as specified. Payment will be made as outlined above.

Signature

109



Vehicle Registration Fee Calculator Page 1 of 1

CALIFORMIA DEPARTWENT OF
‘zov. MOTOR VEHICLES

You have 0 tems in your shopping cant

Vehicle Registration Fee Calculator

Transaction Date: January 03, 2014
Type of Calculation: Used Vehicle Purchase
Vehicie License Number: 1138153
Vehicle Identification Number: 1GDHK24162E296011
Type of Vehicie: Commerciai
Model Year: 2002
Make of Vehicle: GMC
Motive Power: Diesei
Number of Axles: 2
Unladen Weight: 7,080 ibs
Acquired From: Purchase
Acquired/Purchase Date: January 03, 2014
Purchase Price: $10,500.00
County: Humboidt
Zip Code: 95562
Registration Period: Jan 03, 2014 - Jan 31, 2015
[Current Registration: | 43.0
[Current California Highway Patrol: 24
[Current Weight Fee: 257.
[Current Vehicie License Fee: 68.00)
Eurrent County Service Authority for Freeway Emergencies Fee: 1.@
lEurrent Fingerprint ID Fee: 1.00
@rrent Auto Theft and/or DU! Crime Deterrence Program: 1.
urrent Abandoned Vehicle Fee: .00
%rrent Air Quality Management District: 6.0
[ait FueiTech Reg Fee: 3.00)
[Transfer: 15.
Use/Saies Tax: 788.00
[Total Registration Fees: J[_$420.00

[Total Use/Sales Tax: Il

5788.()@
Lérand Total Registration Fees: 181 .208.0_%_1

See Registration Fees, Special Interest License Plale Fees, and Smog
Abatement/High Polluter Fees for additionai information.

This is an estimate based on the information provided. Fees may vary

depending on the actuai vehicle reqistration. All fees are subject to statutory
change.

[ Calculator Home Page ] [ Calculate Another Vehicie

Help us improve our online services. Please take a moment to complete a brief
Survey.

Conditions of Use | Privacy Policy

To assist you better, your DMV website session Is being recorded for quality assurance.

Copyright © 2010 State of Califomia
Adobe Acrobat Reader enabies you to view and print PDF fiies.
To incorporate the iatest accessibiiity features download of the latest version of Acrobat Reader may be required

110

httned/amaina Amv ra anviameann/FeeCalenlatnrWeh/mcedVehicleFees.do 1/3/2014



Yy OF

A
DECD

CALFORNA

675 Wildwood Avenue
Rio Dell, CA 95562

TO: Mayor and Members of the City Council
THROUGH: Jim S City Manager

FROM: Karen Dunham, City Clerk

DATE: January 7, 2014

SUBJECT:  Ordinance No. 314-2014 Establishing Purchasing Procedures Section 3.10.110
and amending Section 3.30.100 of the Municipal code

RECOMMENDATIONS

Conduct the second reading (by title only) and adopt Ordinance No. 314-2014 Establishing
Purchasing Procedures Section 3.10.110 and amending Section 3.30.100 of the Municipal Code.

BUDGETARY IMPACT
None
BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION

The draft ordinance was presented to the Council at the December 17, 2013 meeting and is being
presented at this time for a second reading and adoption.

As reported at the last meeting, EPA has completed a desk review audit of the City’s EPA
Brownfield Grant. The EPA has made two recommendations; to adopt a lease vs. purchase
policy and to include disciplinary procedures for any willful violator of these policies.

Staff have drafted a policy to meet EPA’s requirement, and the main principles are:

1. Inmost situations, outright purchase will prove to be most economical. However, there
may be certain circumstances that warrant a lease/rental.
a. The short-term or seasonal need for equipment may warrant lease/rental vs.

purchase.
b. Highly technical equipment with a very short useful life may warrant lease/rental

vs. purchase.

111



c. When ancillary benefits are offered with the lease such as maintenance, upgrades,
or other marketing incentives that are valued above the cost of financing
lease/rental may be the preferred alternative.

d. In circumstances where the City does not have sufficient capital to make a
purchase.

2. A provision has also been added which specifies that any willful violator will be
disciplined subject to the policies set forth in the City of Rio Dell Employee Handbook.

Adoption of this ordinance will bring the City into compliance with the EPA.

112




ORDIANCE No 314-2014
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF RIO DELL
AMMENDING ORDIANCE NO. 298-2012
PURCHASING PROCEDURES

The City Council of the City of Rio dell does ordain as follows:

Section 10: Lease vs. Purchase Analysis. Normally the City encourages the outright
purchase of equipment as opposed to lease, lease-purchase, rental, or rental-purchase
agreements. In most situations, the outright purchase will prove to be the most economical if
calculated over the useful life of the product. However there may be certain situations that
warrant further investigation of lease or rental options. These situations are summarized as
follows:

a. Short-term or seasonal needs for equipment may dictate that purchase is
unreasonable. If the period of need for the equipment is substantially less than its
anticipated useful life expectancy, then rental or lease options should be
investigated and compared to the purchase cost less the anticipated resale value.

b. In case of highly technical equipment whose useful life cannot be accurately
projected, lease or rental options offered through the manufacturer, the distributor
or third parties may be investigated, as a viable alternative to purchase. In such
situations analytical comparisons of purchase, lease or rental options should be
made to determine which represents the best interest of the City.

c. Ancillary benefits of the lease or rental (maintenance costs, upgrades, vendor
promotions, special marketing incentives) and situations where the net additional
cost of lease or rental is less than the cost of money make that type of
arrangement the more prudent investment.

d. When initiating a requisition for the lease, lease-purchase or long-term rental of
equipment, the originating department should clearly explain the necessity or
desirability of that type of arrangement.

e. If these alternate arrangements have been identified for major equipment
purchases only because of the lack of current funding, other options such as those
described below need to be explored.

f. Departments should first attempt to find the necessary funds from internal
resources. If no such internal options exist, evaluate existing payment options to
determine the most effective course of action for the City. If it is determined that a
loan option is cost effective, the department head should request approval through
the City Manager.

Section 11: Unlawful Purchases. No purchases or contracts shall be made contrary to the
provision of his ordinance. No contract shall be purposely split or subdivided to avoid the

113



provisions of this ordinance. Any employee who willfully violates this policy will be subject to
discipline up to and including termination pursuant to the disciplinary policies set forth in the
City of Rio Dell Employee handbkk.

Section 12: Effective Date. This ordinance shall take effect and be in full force thirty days
following the date of its passage. It shall be posted in three public places in the City of Rio Dell,
State of California, pursuant to Government Code Section 36933.

Section 13. Conflicts. All ordinances and parts of ordinances or resolutions, in conflict
herewith, are hereby repealed to the extent of such conflicts and no further.

INTRODUCED AND FIRST READING (by title only) held on December 17, 2013 by the
following vote:

AYES: Mayor Thompson, Councilmembers Johnson, Marks, Wilson and Woodall
NOES: None
ABSENT: None
ABSTAIN: None

Jack Thompson, Mayor
Attest:

Karen Dunham, City Clerk

SECOND READING (by title only) and adoption occurred on January 7, 2014 by the following
vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

Jack Thompson, Mayor

Attest:

I, Karen Dunham, City Clerk for the City of Rio Dell, State of California, do hereby certify the
above and foregoing to be a full, true and correct copy of Ordinance No. 314-2014 adopted by
the City Council of the City of Rio Dell on January 7, 2014.

Karen Dunham, City Clerk

114



CiTY OF

7 RI E
675 Wildwood Avenue DELL)

Rio Dell, CA 95562 s

TO: Rio Dell City Council

THROUGH: James @lch, City Manager

FROM: Karen Dunham, City Clerk

DATE: January 7, 2014

SUBJECT:  Adoption of 2013 California Building Codes and Appendices
RECOMMENDATION

Receive Staff Report; open Public Hearing and receive public input; close Public
Hearing; make a motion for the second reading (by title only) and adopt Ordinance No.
315-2014 amending Building Codes and Appendices, Section 15.05.020 of the Rio Dell
Municipal Code.

BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION

The draft ordinance was presented to the Council at the December 17, 2013 regular
meeting and is being presented at this time for a second reading and adoption.

As reported at the last meeting, the State of California Building Standards Commission
updates Building Codes every three (3) years based on the model uniform codes
published by the International Code Council . The new California Code of regulations,
title 24, was published in July, 2013. The 2013 California Building Standards Codes
(Codes) adopted by the Building Standards Commission went into effect 180 days after
the July publication by the State. The Codes must be enforced by each City and County
as of January 1, 2014.

Each jurisdiction in California may either adopt these codes as written or may establish
more restrictive building standards deemed necessary to address local climatic,
geological, or topographical conditions. Staff’s recommendation is to adopt the Codes as
adopted by the State Building Standards Commission based on model uniform codes
published by the International Code Council.

All of the California Building Codes required to be adopted by the City of Rio Dell are
listed in Exhibit B.

115



ORDINANCE NO. 315-2014

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF RIO DELL
AMENDING BUILDING CODES AND APPENDICES,
SECTION 15.05.020 OF THE RIO DELL MUNICIPAL CODE

WHEREAS, the California Building Standards Commission is responsible for
administering California’s building codes, including adopting, approving, publishing,
and implementing codes and standards; and

WHEREAS, the California Building Standards Code is published every three years and
amends the California Code of Regulations, Title 24; and

WHEREAS, these codes, based substantially on the model codes published by the
International Code Council, are commonly referred to as the California Building Code
(“Code”), and include, but are not limited to, building, plumbing, mechanical, electrical,
fire and energy codes; and

WHEREAS, in January 2013, the State of California Building Standards Commission
adopted many of these codes with amendments and published them as California codes;
and

WHEREAS, the new California Code of regulations, Title 24, was published in July 2013.
The State also adopted in January 2013 the following California codes specific to California:
California Energy Code, California Administrative Code, California Existing Building Code,
California Historical Code, and the California Green Building Standards Code; and

WHEREAS, the codes adopted by the Building Standards Commission go into effect 180 days
after publication by the State and must be enforced by each City and County as of January 1,
2014.

NOW, THEREFORE, the City Council of the City of Rio Dell does hereby ordain as follows:

SECTION 1. DECLARATION OF INTENT

The purpose of this ordinance is to repeal, in its entirety, Chapter 15.05.020 Building Codes of
Title 15 — Construction Codes of the Rio Dell Municipal Code and replace in its entirety with
Ordinance No. 315-2014 including Exhibit B attached hereto and codified in this title, division
and chapter and on file in the City Clerk’s office.

SECTION 2. CONFLICTS

All ordinances and parts of ordinances or resolutions, in conflict herewith, are hereby repealed
to the extent of such conflicts and no further.

Ordinance No. 315-2014 2013 Building Codes Prepared by: Karen Dunham, City Clerk 116



SECTION 3. EFFECTIVE DATE

The effective date of this ordinance is thirty (30) days after its adoption by the City Council.

INTRODUCED AND FIRST READING (by title only) held on the 17th day of December, 2013
by the following vote:

AYES: Mayor Thompson, Councilmembers Johnson, Marks, Wilson and Woodall
NOES: None
ABSENT: None
ABSTAIN: None

Jack Thompson, Mayor

ATTEST:

Karen Dunham, City Clerk

SECOND READING (by title only) held on the 7th day of January, 2014 by the following vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

Jack Thompson, Mayor

ATTEST:

I, Karen Dunham, City Clerk for the City of Rio Dell, State of California, do hereby certify the
above and foregoing to be a full, true and correct copy of Ordinance No. 315-2014 adopted by
the City Council of the City of Rio Dell on January 7, 2014.

Karen Dunham, City Clerk

Ordinance No. 315-2014 2013 Building Codes Prepared by: Karen Dunham, City Clerk

117



EXHIBIT B
The following California Building Codes are required to be adopted by the City of Rio Dell:

CALIFORNIA ADMINISTRATIVE CODE
2013 California Administrative Code (Part 1of Title 24)
Based on the 2012 International Building Code (IBC).

CALIFORNIA BUILDING CODE
2013 California Building Code (Part 2 of Title 24), including Chapter 1 Division II
(administration), and Appendices A (qualifications), C (agriculture), F. (rodent proofing), G
(flood resistant), H (signs), I (patio covers), and J (grading)
Based on the 2012 International Building Code (IBC).

CALIFORNIA RESIDENTIAL CODE
2013 California Residential Code (Part 2.5 of Title 24) including Chapter 1 Division II
(administration), and Appendices E (Manufactured Housing used as dwellings), G (swimming
pools, spas, and hot tubs), J (existing building and structures), K, (sound transmission), N
(venting methods), O (gray water recycling systems), P (sizing of water piping systems).
Based on the 2012 International Residential Code (IRC).

CALIFORNIA ELECTRICAL CODE
2013 California Electrical Code (Part 3 of Title 24)
Based on the 2012 National Electrical Code (NEC)

CALIFORNIA MECHANICAL CODE
2013 California Mechanical Code (Part 4 of Title 24), including Chapter 1 Division II

(administration)
Based on the 2012 Uniform Mechanical Code ((UMC)

CALIFORNIA PLUMBING CODE
2013 California Plumbing Code (Part 5 of title 24), including chapter 1 Division II

(administration)
Based on the 2012 Uniform Plumbing Code (UPC)

CALIFORNIA ENERGY CODE
2013 California Energy Code (Part 6 of Title 24), including Chapter I Division II

(administration)

CALIFORNIA HISTORICAL BUILDING CODE
2013 California Historical Building Code (Part 8 of Title 24) including Chapter I

Division II (administration)

CALIFORNIA FIRE CODE

Ordinance No. 315-2014 2013 Building Codes Prepared by: Karen Dunham, City Clerk 118



2013 California Fire Code (Part 9 of Title 24), including Chapter I Division II
(administration)

Based on the 2012 International Fire Code (IFC)

CALIFORNIA EXISTING BUILDING CODE
2013 California Existing Building code (Part 10 of Title 24)
Based on the 2012 International Existing Building Code (IEBC)

CALIFORNIA GREEN BUILDING STANDARDS CODE - “CAL Green”

2013 California Green Building Standards Code (Part I of Title 24) (Tier 1) including
Chapter 1 Division II (administration)

CALIFORNIA REFERENCED STANDRDS CODE
2013 California Referenced Standards Code (Part 12 of Title 24)

1997 UNIFORM BUILDING CODE
1997 Uniform Housing Code
Published by the International Conference of Building Officials as referenced by
the California Department of Housing and Community Development and pursuant
to the provisions of Section 17958, 17958.5, 17958.9, and 17959 of the California
Health and Safety Code

Ordinance No. 315-2014 2013 Building Codes Prepared by: Karen Dunham, City Clerk

119



CITY Of

675 Wildwood Avenue 4 Rl E
Rio Dell, CA 95562 .—_l l )
(707) 764-3532 DE

——
CALECINA

For Meeting of: January 21, 2014

To: City Council

From: Kevin Caldwell, Community Development Director @

Through: Jim St% City Manager

Date: January 2, 2014

Subject: Establishment of Environmentally Sensitive Habitat Area Regulations

Section 17.30.080 of the Rio Dell Municipal Code

Recommendation:

That the City Council:

1. Receive staff’s report regarding the proposed text amendment;

2, Open the public hearing, receive public input, and deliberate; and

3. Introduce Ordinance No. 308-2014 establishing Environmentally Sensitive Habitat Area

(ESHA) Regulations, Section 17.30.080 of the Rio Dell Municipal Code (RDMC) and
continue consideration, approval and adoption of the proposed Ordinance to your
meeting of January 21, 2014 for the second reading and adoption

Background/Summary

Staff originally presented the Draft Environmentally Sensitive Habitat Area (ESHA) regulations
to the Planning Commission at their meeting of October 23". Staff recommended setbacks for
both perennial and intermittent streams and other wet or sensitive areas.

ESA Regulatins Text Amendment CC January 7, 2014 ] Bl 120



The Planning Commission recommended some fairly substantial changes, including reduced
setbacks and some additional changes to the proposed Ordinance. Below is a copy of the
Commission’s recommended changes:

17.30.080(c) Streamside Management Areas are identified and modified as follows:

(1) Fifty (50) feet, measured as the herizental on the ground distance from the stream
transition center line on either side of perennial streams.

(2) Twenty-Five (25) feet, measured as the herizentad on the ground distance from the
stream transition center line on either side of intermittent streams.

(d) Where necessary, the width of Streamside Management Areas may be expanded to include

significant areas-ef-riparian-vegetation-adiacent-to-the-bufferarea, slides and areas with visible
evidence of slope instability, not to exceed 100 feet measured as a herizental on the ground
distance.

(e) The Streamside Management Area meay shall be reduced or eliminated where the City
determines, based on specific factual findings, that it will not result in a significant adverse
impact to fish, wildlife, riparian habitat, or soil stability.

17.30.080(d) Erosion control measures for development within Streamside Management Areas
shall include the following:

(1) During construction, land clearing and vegetation removal shall be minimized.

(2) Construction sites shall be planted-with-native-ernaturalized-vegetation-and
mulched with natural or chemical stabilizers to aid in erosion control and insure re-
vegetation.

The first change the Commission recommended was that the setbacks be from the centerline of
the streams rather than the stream transition line. The Commission recommended setback of
fifty (50) feet from the centerline of perennial streams would provide no protection at all in the
case of the Eel River. As the Council is aware the Eel River streambed in the area is at least a
couple hundred feet wide. A fifty (50) foot setback from the centerline of the Eel River will still
be within the river channel itself and will not include the riparian areas on the banks of the
river.

The policy as originally recommended by the Commission would not provide any protection at
all for the riparian habitat that is intended to be protected under the proposed regulations. In
addition, utilizing the centerline of a meandering river is also problematic. The intent of the
proposed regulations is to protect the riparian vegetation within the river channel and on the
adjacent streambanks. It should be noted that even using the stream transition line as defined
as originally recommended by staff may not include riparian habitat along the bank, depending

ESHA Reguons ext AmendmeCnuary 7,2014

121



upon the slope of the bank. As such, staff is recommended that the Streamside Management
Area or buffer be established from the top of the streambank or hinge point and that the
distance be measured horizontally as originally recommended. Below is a diagram illustrating
staff's recommended setbacks for both perennial and intermittent streams:

Hinge Point
Hinge Point

Perennial Intermittent Intermittent | Perennial

Stream Stream Stream Stream

Sethack Setback Setback setback

Transiion Transition
Line Stream Line
Channel
25' 25’ Riparian Corridor 25' 25'

Streamside Management Areas

The second revision the Commission recommended was to eliminate the language to expand
the width of Streamside Management Areas to include significant areas of riparian vegetation
adjacent to the buffer area. Although staff is not aware of any areas containing significant
riparian vegetation adjacent to recommended Streamside Management Areas within the City,
the inability to expand the Streamside Management Area where appropriate may result in an
adverse impact to the resources. This would be contrary to the purpose of the regulations and
existing General Plan policies. As such, staff is recommending that the original language be
retained and slightly modified. Staff recommended that the expanded Streamside
Management Area not exceed 100 feet measured as a horizontal distance from the top of the
streambank or hinge point for perennial streams and 50 feet for intermittent streams.

The third revision the Commission recommended was to substitute the term “shall” for the
recommended term “may” in regards to reducing or eliminating the Streamside management
Area where the City determines, based on specific factual findings, that it will not result in a
significant adverse impact to fish, wildlife, riparian habitat, or soil stability. Staff is supportive
of this recommendation.

The final revision to staff’s original recommendation was to eliminate the requirement for
planting “...native or naturalized vegetation...” as an erosion control measure for development
within Streamside Management Areas. The Commission felt the provision was redundant

ESHA Regulations Text Amendment CC January 7, 2014 122



because Section 17.30.080(4)(c) requires the planting of disturbed areas with riparian
vegetation if natural regeneration does not occur within two years of the completion of the
project. Staff concurs and supports the recommendation.

Below is a copy of staff’s recommended changes to the Planning Commission’s originally
adopted recommendation:

Section 17.30.080
(c) Streamside Management Areas are identified and modified as follows:

(1) Fifty (50) feet, measured as the horizontal distance from the hinge-point of the
riparian corridor on each side of perennial streams.

(2) Twenty-Five (25) feet, measured as the horizontal distance from the hinge-point of
the riparian corridor on each side of intermittent streams.

(d) Where necessary, the width of Streamside Management Areas may be expanded to include
significant areas of riparian vegetation adjacent to the buffer area, slides and areas with visible
evidence of slope instability, not to exceed 100 feet measured as the horizontal distance from
the hinge-point of the riparian corridor on each side of perennial streams and 50 feet measured
as the horizontal distance from the hinge-point of the riparian corridor on each side of
intermittent streams.

Staff presented our concerns to the Planning Commission at their meeting of December 11,
2013. After explaining and discussing the shortcomings of the Commission’s original
recommendation, the Commission agreed with staff’'s recommendations and recommends that
the Council and adopt Ordinance No. 308-2014.

Procedures for Zoning Ordinance Amendments

Pursuant to Section 17.35.010 of the City of Rio Dell Municipal Code, the following City
procedures are required to amend the Ordinance:

e An amendment may be initiated by one or more owners of property affected by the
proposed amendment, as set out in Section 17.35.010(3), or by action of the Planning
Commission, or the City Council.

e The application of one or more property owners for the initiation of an amendment
shall be filed in the office of the City Clerk on a form provided, accompanied by a filing
fee.

e Subject only to the rules regarding the placing of matters on the Planning Commission
agenda, the matter shall be set for a public hearing.

ESHA Regulations Text Amendment CC January 7, 2014

123



Notice of hearing time and place shall be published once in a newspaper of general
circulation at least ten calendar days before the hearing or by posting in at least three
public places.

At the public hearing, the Planning Commission shall hear any person affected by the
proposed amendment. The hearing may be continued from time to time.

Within 40 days of the conclusion of the hearing, the Planning Commission shall submit
to the City Council a written report of recommendations and reasons therefore.

Subject only to the rules regarding the placing of matters on its agenda, the City Council,
at its next regular meeting following the receipt of such report, shall cause the matter to
be set for a public hearing. Notice of the time and place of the hearing shall be given as
provided in Section 17.35.010(5), hereof.

At the public hearing, the City Council shall hear any person affected by the proposed
amendment. The hearing may be continued to a specified future date, but shall be
concluded within 60 days of the commencement thereof.

The City Council shall not make any change in the proposed amendment until the
proposed change has been referred to the Planning Commission for a report, and the
Planning Commission report has been filed with the City Council.

Zone Reclassification Required Finding:

1. The proposed amendment is consistent and compatible with the General Plan and any
implementation programs that may be affected.

The Zoning Regulations do not currently contain provisions regarding environmentally sensitive
habitat areas. Chapter 2, Natural Environment, of the General Plan contains goals to preserve
and protect river, streams, drainage channels and natural habitats. Policy P2.1.7-2 of the
General Plan contains the following language:

P2.1.7-2 Ensure that environmentally sensitive habitat areas (ESHA’s) such as the
Eel River corridor, streams and drainage channels with riparian habitat, and
forested areas that could potentially support sensitive species are buffered to
protect against any significant disruption of their habitat values.

Accordingly, the corresponding implementation measure requires the City to: “...prepare
Development Regulations that require identification of open space and sensitive habitat areas
in proposed developments.”

ESHA Regulations Text Amendment CC January 7, 2014 124



In addition, the recently adopted Conservation and Open Space Element also contains a
number of goals, policies and implementation measures calling for the protection of
environmentally sensitive habitats, including the establishment of development regulations.

The proposed establishment of Environmentally Sensitive Habitat Area (ESHA) regulations is
consistent with the General Plan.

2. The proposed amendments have been processed in accordance with the California
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA).

The primary purpose of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) is to inform the
decision makers and the public of potential environmental effects of a proposed project.

Based on the nature of the project, staff has determined that the project is Statutorily Exempt
pursuant to Section 15061(b) (3) of the CEQA Guidelines, Title 14, Chapter 3 of the California
Code of Regulations. Pursuant to Section 15061(b) (3) of the CEQA Guidelines this exemption is
covered by the general rule that CEQA applies only to projects which have the potential for
causing a significant effect on the environment. Where it can be seen with certainty that there
is no possibility that the project in question may have a significant effect on the environment,
the project is not subject to CEQA. The City currently has no environmentally sensitive habitat
regulations requiring the protection of natural resources. The proposed Environmentally
Sensitive Habitat Area (ESHA) regulations will provide for the protection of environmentally
sensitive resources. Based on the nature of the proposed amendments, staff believes there is
no evidence to suggest that the amendments will have a significant effect on the environment.

Financial Impact

The City is responsible for the costs associated with the proposed amendment. The cost is
insignificant and will not result in additional budget expenditures or revisions.

Attachments:

1. Proposed Environmentally Sensitive Habitat Area (ESHA) regulations, Section 17.30.080
of the Rio Dell Municipal Code (RDMC).

2. Draft Ordinance No. 308-2014 establishing Environmentally Sensitive Habitat Area
regulations, Section 17.30.080 of the Rio Dell Municipal Code.

ESHA Regulations Text Amendment CC January 7, 2014 125



CITY OF

17.30.080 Environmentally Sensitive Habitat Areas (ESHA’s) DRI LL
E

(1) Purpose e

The purpose of these regulations is to ensure that environmentally sensitive habitat areas are
protected for both the wildlife inhabiting them as well as the enjoyment of present and future
residents of the City.

The presence of environmentally sensitive habitat in the vicinity of a proposed project shall be
determined during the review process for discretionary projects and for ministerial building and
grading permit applications, when the proposed building development activity involves new
construction or expansion of existing structures or grading activities. Wetland delineation by a
qualified biologist using criteria acceptable to the Department of Fish and Game may be
necessary and shall be required when wetland characterization and limits cannot be easily
identified by a site inspection.

(2) Definitions

(a) “Environmentally Sensitive Habitat Areas” (ESHA's) means anadromous fish streams,
perennial and intermittent streams, sensitive species rookeries and nest sites, wetlands,
riparian areas and habitats of rare and endangered plants and animals.

(b) “Riparian Corridor” means the area between the top of streambanks or hinge-points of the
streambanks containing riparian vegetation and the adjacent upland area.

(c) “Riparian Vegetation” means pertaining to, or situated on the banks of a stream, river, lake
or pond such as willows, alders, cottonwood, wax myrtle, big leaf maple, California laurel, red
elderberry, etc.

(d) “Stream Channel” means the area of a stream between its stream transition lines.
(e) “Streamside Management Areas (SMA’s)” means riparian buffer areas for protecting
sensitive fish and wildlife habitats and minimizing erosion, runoff and interference with surface

water flows.

(f) “Stream Transition Line” means the line closest to a stream where riparian vegetation is
permanently established.

(g) "Wetlands" means lands which may be covered periodically or permanently with shallow
water and which include saltwater marshes, freshwater marshes, open or closed brackish water

marshes, swamps, mudflats, fens, and vernal pools. (Fish and Game Code, Section 2785(g)).

(h) Definitions Diagram

Zoning Information/Environmentally Sensitive Habitat Area Regulations/January 2014

ATTAMAURMMENIT 1

126



Hinge Point

-~

\ Hinge Point

Perennial Intermittent Intermittent | Perennial
Stream Stream S Stream Stream
setback Setback Stream /V Setback Setback

Transition
Line Stream
Channel
25 25’ Riparian Carridor 25 25’
Streamside Management Areas

(3) Development Standards
(a) Stream Channels. Development within stream channels is limited to the following projects.
(1) Fishery, wildlife, and aquaculture enhancement and restoration projects.
(2) Road crossings subject to Section 1600 et seq of the Fish and Game Code.
(3) Flood control and drainage channels, levees, dikes, and floodgates.
(4) Mineral extraction consistent with other State regulations.

(5) Small-scale hydroelectric power plants in compliance with applicable State
regulations.

(6) Wells and spring-boxes, and agricultural diversions.

(7) New fencing, so long as it would not impede the natural drainage or wildlife
movement and would not adversely affect the stream environment or wildlife
movement.

(8) Bank protection, provided it is the least environmentally damaging alternative.

Zoning Inforation/Environmenta Sensitive Habitat Area Regulations/January 214

127



(9) Other essential projects, including municipal groundwater pumping stations and
infiltration galleries provided they are the least environmentally damaging alternative,
or necessary for the protection of the public's health and safety.

(b) Streamside Management Areas. Development within Streamside Management Areas shall
be limited to the following uses:

(1) Development permitted within stream channels.

(2) Public access parking areas and trails when it can be demonstrated that it would not
degrade fish and wildlife resources or water quality, and that vegetative clearing is kept
to a minimum.

(3) Timber management and harvests activities under a timber harvesting plan or non-
industrial timber management plan, or activities exempt from local regulation as per
California Public Resources Code 4516.5(e)

(4) Road and bridge replacement or construction, when it can be demonstrated that it
would not degrade fish and wildlife resources or water quality, and that vegetative
clearing is kept to a minimum.

(5) Removal of vegetation for disease control or public safety purposes.

(6) Bank stabilization projects when it can be demonstrated that it would not degrade
fish and wildlife resources or water quality, and that vegetative clearing is kept to a
minimum.

(c) Streamside Management Areas are identified and modified as follows:

(1) Fifty (50) feet, measured as the horizontal distance from the hinge-point of the
riparian corridor on each side of perennial streams.

(2) Twenty-Five (25) feet, measured as the horizontal distance from the hinge-point of
the riparian corridor on each side of intermittent streams.

(d) Where necessary, the width of Streamside Management Areas may be expanded to include
significant areas of riparian vegetation adjacent to the buffer area, slides and areas with visible
evidence of slope instability, not to exceed 100 feet measured as the horizontal distance from
the hinge-point of the riparian corridor on each side of perennial streams and 50 feet measured
as the horizontal distance from the hinge-point of the riparian corridor on each side of
intermittent streams.

e —

Zoning Information/Environmentally Sensitive Habitat Area Regulations/January 2014

128



(e) The Streamside Management Area shall be reduced or eliminated where the City
determines, based on specific factual findings, that it will not result in a significant adverse
impact to fish, wildlife, riparian habitat, or soil stability.

(4) Mitigation Measures.

Mitigation measures for development within Streamside Management Areas shall, at a
minimum, include:

(a) Retaining snags unless felling is required by CAL-OSHA, or by California Department of
Forestry (CALFIRE) forest and fire protection regulations, or for public health and safety
reasons, approved by the appropriate agency. Felled snags shall be left on the ground if
consistent with fire protection regulations as long as they have no economic value.

(b) Retain live trees with visible evidence of use as nesting sites by hawks, owls, eagles, osprey,
herons, or egrets.

(c) Replanting of disturbed areas with riparian vegetation (including such species as alders,
cottonwoods, willows, sitka spruce, etc.) shall not be required unless natural regeneration does
not occur within two years of the completion of the development project.

(d) Erosion control measures for development within Streamside Management Areas shall
include the following:

(1) During construction, land clearing and vegetation removal shall be minimized.
(2) Construction sites shall be mulched with natural or chemical stabilizers to aid in
erosion control and insure re-vegetation.

(3) Longslopes shall be minimized to increase infiltration and reduce water velocities
down cut slopes by such techniques as soil roughing, serrated cuts, selective grading,
shaping, benching, and berm construction.

(4) Concentrated runoff shall be controlled by the construction and continued
maintenance of culverts, conduits, non-erodible channels, diversion dikes, interceptor
ditches, slope drains or appropriate mechanisms. Concentrated runoff will be carried to
the nearest drainage course. Energy dissipaters may be installed to prevent erosion at
the point of discharge where discharge is to natural ground or channels.

(5) Runoff shall be controlled to prevent erosion by on-site or off- site methods. On-site
methods include, but are not limited to, the use of infiltration basins, percolation pits, or
trenches. On-site methods are not suitable where high groundwater or slope stability
problems would inhibit or be aggravated by on-site retention or where retention will
provide no benefits for groundwater recharge or erosion control. Off-site methods

Zoning Information/Environmentally Sensitive Habitat Area Regulations/January 2014

129



include detention or dispersal of runoff over non-erodible vegetated surfaces where it
would not contribute to downstream erosion or flooding.

(6) Disposal of silt, organic, and earthen material from sediment basins and excess
material from construction will be disposed of out of the Streamside Management Area
to comply with California Fish and Game and Regional Water Quality Control Board.

(e) Winter operations (generally October 15 thru April 15) shall employ the following special
considerations:

(1) Slopes shall be temporarily stabilized by stage seeding and/or planting of fast germinating
seeds such as barley or rye grass; and mulched with protective coverings such as natural or
chemical stabilizations.

(2) Runoff from the site shall be temporarily detained or filtered by berms, vegetated filter
strips, and/or catch basins to prevent the escape of sediment from the site. Drainage controls
are to be maintained as long as necessary to prevent erosion throughout construction.

(5) Other Wet Areas.

Development, except for wells and spring-boxes, in or adjacent to other wet areas, including
natural ponds, springs, vernal pools, marshes and wet meadows (exhibiting standing water
yearlong or riparian vegetation) shall be consistent with the standards for streamside
management areas, where appropriate.

e —

Zoning Information/Environmentally Sensitive Habitat Area Regulations/January 2014

130



ORDINANCE NO. 308 — 2014
CITY OF

R

e

CruGen

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF RIO DELL REGARDING
THE ESTABLISHMENT OF ENVIRONMENTALLY SENSITIVE HABITAT AREA
REGULATIONS, SECTION 17.30.080 OF THE RIO DELL MUNICIPAL CODE:

THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF RIO DELL ORDAINS AS FOLLOWS:

WHEREAS the Zoning Regulations do not contain provisions regarding environmentally sensitive
habitat areas; and

WHEREAS Chapter 2, Natural Environment, of the General Plan contains goals to preserve and
protect river, streams, drainage channels and natural habitats; and

WHEREAS the corresponding implementation measure requires the City to: “...prepare
Development Regulations that require identification of open space and sensitive habitat areas in
proposed developments.” and

WHEREAS the recently adopted Conservation and Open Space Element also contains a number of
goals, policies and implementation measures calling for the protection of environmentally
sensitive habitats, including the establishment of development regulations; and

WHEREAS the purpose of the proposed regulations is to ensure that environmentally sensitive
habitat areas are protected for both the wildlife inhabiting them as well as the enjoyment of
present and future residents of the City; and

WHEREAS the City has reviewed and processed the proposed amendments in conformance with
Sections 65350 — 65362 of the California Government Code; and

WHEREAS the City has reviewed and processed the proposed amendments in conformance with
Section 17.30.010 of the City of Rio Dell Municipal Code; and

WHEREAS the City finds that based on evidence on file and presented in the staff report that the
proposed amendment is consistent and compatible with the General Plan and any implementation
programs that may be affected; and

ESHA Regulations Ordinance December 2013

e e e e s~

131



WHEREAS the proposed amendment has been processed in accordance with the applicable
provisions of the California Government Code and the California Environmental Quality Act
(CEQA); and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Rio Dell finds that:

1. The proposed amendments are consistent with the General Plan and any applicable specific
plan; and

2. The City has determined that the proposed amendments are Statutorily Exempt pursuant to
Section 15061(b) (3) of the CEQA Guidelines, Title 14, Chapter 3 of the California Code of
Regulations.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Rio Dell does
hereby ordain as follows:

Section 1. Section 17.30.080 of the Rio Dell Municipal Code is hereby established as follows:
17.30.080 Environmentally Sensitive Habitat Areas (ESHA's)
(1) Purpose

The purpose of these regulations is to ensure that environmentally sensitive habitat areas are
protected for both the wildlife inhabiting them as well as the enjoyment of present and future
residents of the City.

The presence of environmentally sensitive habitat in the vicinity of a proposed project shall be
determined during the review process for discretionary projects and for ministerial building and
grading permit applications, when the proposed building development activity involves new
construction or expansion of existing structures or grading activities. Wetland delineation by a
qualified biologist using criteria acceptable to the Department of Fish and Game may be necessary
and shall be required when wetland characterization and limits cannot be easily identified by a site
inspection.

(2) Definitions
(a) “Environmentally Sensitive Habitat Areas” (ESHA's) means anadromous fish streams, perennial
and intermittent streams, sensitive species rookeries and nest sites, wetlands, riparian areas and

habitats of rare and endangered plants and animals.

(b) “Riparian Corridor” means the area between the top of streambanks or hinge-points of the
streambanks containing riparian vegetation and the adjacent upland area.

ESHA Regulations Ordinance December 2013 132



(c) “Riparian Vegetation” means pertaining to, or situated on the banks of a stream, river, lake or
pond such as willows, alders, cottonwood, wax myrtle, big leaf maple, California laurel, red
elderberry, etc.

(d) “Stream Channel” means the area of a stream between its stream transition lines.

(e) “Streamside Management Areas (SMA’s)” means riparian buffer areas for protecting sensitive
fish and wildlife habitats and minimizing erosion, runoff and interference with surface water flows.

(f) “Stream Transition Line” means the line closest to a stream where riparian vegetation is
permanently established.

(g) "Wetlands" means lands which may be covered periodically or permanently with shallow
water and which include saltwater marshes, freshwater marshes, open or closed brackish water

marshes, swamps, mudflats, fens, and vernal pools. (Fish and Game Code, Section 2785(g)).

(h) Definitions Diagram

\ Hinge Point

Hinge Point

Perennial Intermittent Intermittent | Perennial

Stream Stream Stream Stream

Setback Setback Setback Setback

Transition Transition
Line Stream Line
Channel
25’ 25’ Riparian Corridor 25 25’
Streamside Management Areas

(3) Development Standards
(a) Stream Channels. Development within stream channels is limited to the following projects.

(1) Fishery, wildlife, and aquaculture enhancement and restoration projects.

S
ESHA Regulations Ordinance December 2013

133



(2) Road crossings subject to Section 1600 et seq of the Fish and Game Code.

(3) Flood control and drainage channels, levees, dikes, and floodgates.

(4) Mineral extraction consistent with other State regulations.

(5) Small-scale hydroelectric power plants in compliance with applicable State regulations.
(6) Wells and spring-boxes, and agricultural diversions.

(7) New fencing, so long as it would not impede the natural drainage or wildlife movement
and would not adversely affect the stream environment or wildlife movement.

(8) Bank protection, provided it is the least environmentally damaging alternative.
(9) Other essential projects, including municipal groundwater pumping stations and
infiltration galleries provided they are the least environmentally damaging alternative, or

necessary for the protection of the public's health and safety.

(b) Streamside Management Areas. Development within Streamside Management Areas shall be
limited to the following uses:

(1) Development permitted within stream channels.

(2) Public access parking areas and trails when it can be demonstrated that it would not
degrade fish and wildlife resources or water quality, and that vegetative clearing is kept to
a minimum.

(3) Timber management and harvests activities under a timber harvesting plan or non-
industrial timber management plan, or activities exempt from local regulation as per
California Public Resources Code 4516.5(e)

(4) Road and bridge replacement or construction, when it can be demonstrated that it
would not degrade fish and wildlife resources or water quality, and that vegetative clearing
is kept to a minimum.

(5) Removal of vegetation for disease control or public safety purposes.

(6) Bank stabilization projects when it can be demonstrated that it would not degrade fish
and wildlife resources or water quality, and that vegetative clearing is kept to a minimum.

(c) Streamside Management Areas are identified and modified as follows:

ESHA Regulations Ordinance December 2013 134



(1) Fifty (50) feet, measured as the horizontal distance from the hinge-point of the riparian
corridor on each side of perennial streams. ,

(2) Twenty-Five (25) feet, measured as the horizontal distance from the hinge-point of the
riparian corridor on each side of intermittent streams.

(d) Where necessary, the width of Streamside Management Areas may be expanded to include
significant areas of riparian vegetation adjacent to the buffer area, slides and areas with visible
evidence of slope instability, not to exceed 100 feet measured as the horizontal distance from the
hinge-point of the riparian corridor on each side of perennial streams and 50 feet measured as the
horizontal distance from the hinge-point of the riparian corridor on each side of intermittent
streams.

(e) The Streamside Management Area shall be reduced or eliminated where the City determines,
based on specific factual findings, that it will not result in a significant adverse impact to fish,
wildlife, riparian habitat, or soil stability.

(4) Mitigation Measures.

Mitigation measures for development within Streamside Management Areas shall, at a minimum,
include:

(a) Retaining snags unless felling is required by CAL-OSHA, or by California Department of Forestry
(CALFIRE) forest and fire protection regulations, or for public health and safety reasons, approved
by the appropriate agency. Felled snags shall be left on the ground if consistent with fire
protection regulations as long as they have no economic value.

(b) Retain live trees with visible evidence of use as nesting sites by hawks, owls, eagles, osprey,
herons, or egrets.

(c) Replanting of disturbed areas with riparian vegetation (including such species as alders,
cottonwoods, willows, sitka spruce, etc.) shall not be required unless natural regeneration does
not occur within two years of the completion of the development project.

(d) Erosion control measures for development within Streamside Management Areas shall include
the following:

(1) During construction, land clearing and vegetation removal shall be minimized.
(2) Construction sites shall be mulched with natural or chemical stabilizers to aid in erosion
control and insure re-vegetation.

(3) Long slopes shall be minimized to increase infiltration and reduce water velocities
down cut slopes by such techniques as soil roughing, serrated cuts, selective grading,
shaping, benching, and berm construction.

ESHA Regulations Ordinance December 2013 135



(4) Concentrated runoff shall be controlled by the construction and continued
maintenance of culverts, conduits, non-erodible channels, diversion dikes, interceptor
ditches, slope drains or appropriate mechanisms. Concentrated runoff will be carried to the
nearest drainage course. Energy dissipaters may be installed to prevent erosion at the
point of discharge where discharge is to natural ground or channels.

(5) Runoff shall be controlled to prevent erosion by on-site or off- site methods. On-site
methods include, but are not limited to, the use of infiltration basins, percolation pits, or
trenches. On-site methods are not suitable where high groundwater or slope stability
problems would inhibit or be aggravated by on-site retention or where retention will
provide no benefits for groundwater recharge or erosion control. Off-site methods include
detention or dispersal of runoff over non-erodible vegetated surfaces where it would not
contribute to downstream erosion or flooding.

(6) Disposal of silt, organic, and earthen material from sediment basins and excess
material from construction will be disposed of out of the Streamside Management Area to
comply with California Fish and Game and Regional Water Quality Control Board.

(e) Winter operations (generally October 15 thru April 15) shall employ the following special
considerations:

(1) Slopes shall be temporarily stabilized by stage seeding and/or planting of fast germinating
seeds such as barley or rye grass; and mulched with protective coverings such as natural or
chemical stabilizations.

(2) Runoff from the site shall be temporarily detained or filtered by berms, vegetated filter strips,
and/or catch basins to prevent the escape of sediment from the site. Drainage controls are to be
maintained as long as necessary to prevent erosion throughout construction.

(5) Other Wet Areas.

Development, except for wells and spring-boxes, in or adjacent to other wet areas, including
natural ponds, springs, vernal pools, marshes and wet meadows (exhibiting standing water
yearlong or riparian vegetation) shall be consistent with the standards for streamside
management areas, where appropriate.

Section 2. Severability

If any provision of the ordinance is invalidated by any court of competent jurisdiction, the
remaining provisions shall not be affected and shall continue in full force and effect.

e

ESHA Regulations Ordinance December 2013

136



Section 3. Limitation of Actions

Any action to challenge the validity or legality of any provision of this ordinance on any grounds
shall be brought by court action commenced within ninety (90) days of the date of adoption of this
ordinance.

Section 4. CEQA Compliance

The City Council has determined that the adoption of this ordinance is exempt from review under
the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA), pursuant to Section 15061(b)(3) of the CEQA
Guidelines. The City currently has no environmentally sensitive habitat regulations requiring the
protection of environmentally sensitive habitat. The proposed Environmentally Sensitive Habitat
Area (ESHA) regulations will provide for the protection of environmentally sensitive resources.
Due to the nature of the proposed code revision, there is no evidence that a significant impact to
the environment would occur as a result of adoption of the Ordinance.

Section 5. Effective Date
This ordinance becomes effective thirty (30) days after the date of its approval and adoption.

| HEREBY CERTIFY that the forgoing Ordinance was duly introduced at a regular meeting of the City
Council of the City of Rio Dell on January 7, 2014 and furthermore the forgoing Ordinance was
passed, approved and adopted at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Rio Dell, held
on the 21% of January 2014 by the following vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

Jack Thompson, Mayor

ATTEST:

I, Karen Dunham, City Clerk for the City of Rio Dell, State of California, hereby certify the above and
foregoing to be a full, true and correct copy of Ordinance No. 308-2017 adopted by the City
Council of the City of Rio Dell on January 21, 2014.

Karen Dunham, City Clerk, City of Rio Dell

e —

ESHA Regulations Ordinance December 2013

137



	CC Agenda-2014-01-07 Part 1
	CC Agenda-2014-01-07 Part 2

